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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
China Healthwise Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”), | present to you the annual results of the

Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong and the telephone numbers and the website of the

Company are (852) 2268 8248 and www.healthwise.com.

RESULTS

The Company hereby announces its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2024 (the "Reporting Year” or "FY24"). For the Reporting
Year, the Group's tumover decreased by approximately (“approx.”) 22%
to approx. HK$ 114 million, compared with approx. HK$ 146 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the "FY23" or “Corresponding
Year”).

Gross profit margin for the Reporting Year was approx. 33% compared
to approx. 41% in the Corresponding Year. Overall, loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approx. HK$40 million compared
with HK$135 million in the Corresponding Year. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024 (FY23: Nlil).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, revenue decreased mainly due to (1) the
decrease in revenue from the investment in financial instruments segment
from a net gain of approx. HK$6 million in FY23 to a net loss of
approx. less than HK$ 1 million in the Reporting Year; (2) the decrease
in revenue from the Chinese health products segment from approx.
HK$130 million in FY23 to approx. HK$113 million in the Reporting
Year; and (3) the decrease in revenue from the money lending segment
from approx. HK$11 million in FY23 to approx. HK$1 million in the
Reporting Year. The Group recorded a decrease in loss for the year
ended 31 December 2024 as compared fo the Corresponding Year.
The decrease in loss was mainly due to a decrease in the impairment
loss under expected credit loss ("ECL") model (net with reversal of
impairment loss) recognised in respect of the Group's loan receivables
from AppProx. HK$107 million in FY23 to AppProx. HK$2 million in
Fy24.

Chinese Health Products

Chinese health products business engaged in the sales of Chinese and
other pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and dried
seafood products to wholesaler and refailer. Nam Pei Hong Sum
Yung Drugs Company Limited, one of our subsidiaries, engages in the
business of trading and refail of “Sum Yung” (2% and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” (37T )
is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

During the Reporting Year, this segment had contributed revenue of
approx. HK$ 113 million (FY23: HK$130 million) and segment loss
(before taxation) of approx. HK$6 million [FY23: profit of HK$3 million).
As at 31 December 2024, there were 10 (31 December 2023: 10)
retail shops of Nam Pei Hong.

The decrease in revenue contributed by the Chinese health products
business during FY24 was mainly atiributable by the challenging
economic environment, particularly within the local retail sector,
throughout the Reporting Year. This situation has significantly altered
consumer spending patterns. Consumers nowadays are more focused
on budgeting and place a greater emphasis on cost-performance value.
As a result, many residents of Hong Kong are increasingly opting to
allocate their expenditures towards purchases in Mainland China. This
shift has adversely affected the Group's revenue during FY24 compared
fo FY23.
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Money Lending

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans amounting to approx. HK$ 1 million
(FY23: HK$11 million), and reported a segment loss (before taxation)
of approx. HK$10 million (FY23: HK$ 116 million). The decrease in
inferest income was mainly because of the increase in loan receivables
being classified to stage 3 (creditimpaired) during FY24 and ceased
fo generate inferest income. Conversely, the decrease in segment loss
(before taxation) was mainly atfributable to the decrease in allowance
provided for ECL on the Group's loan receivables during FY24.
Loan receivables with an aggregate outstanding amount of approx.
HK$300 million were classified to stage 3 as at 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: HK$294 million), representing approx. 97%
fo the gross oufstanding balance of the loan receivables (before any
recognition of ECL allowance) as at 31 December 2024 (31 December

2023: 95%).
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[before any recognition of ECL allowance]
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During FY24, the Group did not grant any new loan to any new
customer but extended the final repayment date of a revolving loan
facility granfed to a substantial shareholder of the Company, with the
loan facility principal amount of HK$Q million. Details of the provision
of financial assistance to a substantial shareholder of the Company
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 22 March
2023 and 26 February 2024. During the Reporting Year, the Group's
customers made repayment of the loan principals and interests amount
to approx. HK$ 12 million to the Group whereas approx. HK$4 million
drawings were made to a substantial shareholder of the Company
under the revolving loan facility.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

At the end of the Reporting Year, the Directors performed an impairment
assessment on the Group’s loan receivables with reference to a
valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
measured impairment on loan receivables using the “expected credit
loss model” established by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments. During FY24, approx. HK$2 million of impairment
loss under ECL model (nef with reversal of impairment loss) was further
recognised (FY23: HK$107 million). At 31 December 2024, eleven
(31 December 2023: eleven) loans remained outstanding, in which {i)
two (31 December 2023: three) loan receivables with the aggregate
gross balance of approx. HK$Q million (31 December 2023: HK$18
million) were classified under stage 1 |(initial recognition), and |ii) nine
(31 December 2023: eight) loan receivables with the aggregate gross
balance of approx. HK$300 million (31 December 2023: HK$294

million) were classified under stage 3 (creditimpaired).

RBEFER EE2RBE LB LEEME
MmE 2 HERSHAER 2 BB FETTR
B -ZAERESEAADT BV KRS EL
FOmeMmTASH Z [FEHEEBEER] G
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BEODAN_EGEET(CZUREE: —FBZ
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The carrying amount of loan receivables from money lending business of B ZARSREMERGEE L BB EREEELT -
the Group was as follows:
As at 31 December 2024
R-ZE-WFE+=-A=+—H
Stage 2
Stage 1 (Significant
(Initial increase in Stage 3
recognition) credit risk)  (Creditimpaired) Total
EoPEE
E—MEER (FERR E=RRE
(FH8Z) Kigighn) (FERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT THET TERT
Gross balance of loan [EE AR BER
receivables (before any (EARAEMBEHEE
recognition of ECL allowance) E1ERHERD) 8,932 - 299,723 308,655
less: accumulated allowance W HEEEBEL
for ECL, nef BHEEIE (364) - (299,723) (300,087
Loan receivables, net W E T FEE 8,568 - - 8,568
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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

As at 31 December 2023
RZE-=F+=-A=1+—H

Stage 2
Stage | (Significant
(Initial increase in Stage 3
recogpnition) creditrisk)  (Creditimpaired) Total
FFEER
E—FEER (FERR FEFEE
(M HER) AL N) (FERE) BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET FHT THET
Gross balance of loan [EWE i R
receivables [before any (EREFABEE
recognifion of ECL allowance) EIERER) 17,592 - 293,721 311,313
less: accumulated allowance for Bl : BHIEEEREZ
ECL, net Rk (497) = (293,721) (294,218)
Loan receivables, net EWETF5 17,095 - - 17,095

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one (FY23: four) loan
receivable with gross balance of approx. HK$6 million (FY23: HK$96
million) were re<classified from stage 1 (initial recognition) to stage 3
(creditimpaired) as the customer, which was named Customer L in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
interim report for the period ended 30 June 2024, failed to seffle the
principal and interest for more than three months during the Reporting
Year. None (FY23: one) of the loan receivables with any gross balance
(FY23: HK$31 million) were reclassified from stage 2 (significant
increase in credit risk) to stage 3 (creditimpaired) during FY24.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

Following an impairment assessment conducted by the Board, along
with the valuation assessment conducted by an independent valuation
expert. Based on the valuation as af 31 December 2024, accumulated
allowance for ECL on the Group's loan receivable amounted to approx.
HK$300 million, versus approx. HK$294 million as at 31 December
2023. The increase in amount mainly represented (i] approx. HK$2
million (FY23: HK$107 million] impairment loss under ECL model (net
with reversal of impairment loss) recognised in profit or loss during FY24,
and (i) approx. HK$4 million (FY23: nil) of the unwinding of discount.
As at 31 December 2024, among to the fotal allowance for ECL,
approx. less than HK$ 1 million (31 December 2023: less than HK$ 1
million) was recognised for loan receivables classified under stage 1
(initial recognition), nil {31 December 2023: nil) was recognised for
loan receivables classified under stage 2 (significant increase in credit
risk) and approx. HK$300 million (31 December 2023: HK$294
million) was recognised for loan receivables classified under stage 3
[creditimpaired).

KEEERITRENG  THBL GEEERET
HEFG - BER=Z-_NF+=-A=+—HZ
HE - AEEZEEKERZEREEBE 2R
BBH=FEET MR- BE_=F+_-A=+—
BRI AE-_BALTHEESBIL 2oL MNE
DR MNP HRFEE  RNIESTRIAZEREE
EBERENIE T ZREBE (MERBREBERERD)
W_BEBAL(C=WERFE: —EZLtEEE
T0) K i) BERRBEIR AN B BB T (= REE
m) N_T_WE+_—_A=+—0 EEHE
BEEBEzBEHERET HIR—BEBT(ZE
—=Ff+-A=+—RH:PR—EEFT)ER
DERE—TEER (VT HER) Z W EKMER
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BREO=EET(ZE_=F+=-A=+—08:
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Expected Credit Loss by Stage (%)
ERREREEER (%)

As at 31 December 2024: Stage of ECL/
Gross balance of loan receivables
[before any recognition of ECL allowance)
W-B_MFE+—A=+—H:
FEHIEEEIERE U E R AR
(FEREAITEEE BB B R ERT)

As at 31 December 2023: Stage of ECL/
Gross balance of loan receivables
[before any recognition of ECL allowance)
NZB_=F+_A=t—H:
TEE= GRS IBMER RN B SR At r e RE
(HERE AR E BB EER)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

Stage 1 (initial recognition) Stage 2 (Significant increase in credit risk) Stage 3 (Creditimpaired)
m Stag g m Stoge 2 (Sig m Stog p

FREE (MFHER) B (EERBAEBIZM)

Note: The aggregate amount of loan receivables classified under stage 1 (inifial
recognition) and stage 2 (significant increase in credit risk) represented
less than 1% of the total gross balance of the Group's loan receivables
(before any recognition of ECL allowance] as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Further information on the Group's money lending business, including
[i) business model, (ii] internal control system, |iii] basis of defermining
the allowance for ECL on loan receivables, (iv) major ferms of each
outstanding loan receivables, and (v) actions taken for recovering the
loan receivables classified under stage 3 (creditimpaired) are disclosed
in note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Reporting Year, the Group's investment in financial instruments
business generated dividend income and realised gain/loss on sale of
financial instruments with a segment loss (before taxation) of approx.
HK$6 million (FY23: HK$6 million) mainly including (i) a loss of approx.
HK$4 million (FY23: HK$10 million) arising on change in fair value of
financial assets af fair value through profit or loss; and (i) a realised loss
of approx. less than HK$ 1 million (FY23: realised gain of HK$6 million)

by disposal of certain listed equities.

Movements in the listed and unlisted equities held by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:
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Audited Audited

R KEZ

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

—E-E —E=F

+=HAH=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At beginning of year REF 40,420 57,313
Acquisitions W i 1,866 5,104
Loss arising on change in fair value NHESEBEL ZEE (4,187) (10,344)
Disposals fanfi= (2,508) (11,653)
At end of year RER 35,591 40,420
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the RZZTZWNE+=—A=+—H &XxEEREzH

Group at 31 December 2024 are as follows: TERBELTRAFBEAT :
Percentage of
fair value os Fair value
compared fo gain/[loss)  Percentage of
the consolidated recognised  shareholding
Cost of Number of fofal assets of during the held by

sharesat  shoresheldat  Fairvalveot  the Groupat  yearended  the Group at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
S REE
—2-mE  —E-pE
R +=A t=h 1
B ZBIRf )iy Er=Ff =+-A =—B-m%
-3-mE t=B  -%-mf A¥EE LEE t=A
t=A =+-H t=A KE@ BRR =+-H
=t-A2 BEZ =t-HZ GREE ZBYE ES 3L
B EA RGHE AVE #BEZEAL  KE/(BR)  BREAM
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal acfiviies HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERLTRALR TEXH TET Th TET TET
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and enteriainment related businesses, including
[stock code: 1003) development and invesiment in filn and TV programmes righs,
BEEBEEARAR as well as operation of an online video plafform.
(Huanxi Media Group Limited) RRRREAERY  CRRERRETYRERBIRE
(RIS : 1003) DREBEGRIATA - 32,057 19,650 9,137 7% 4,028 0.54%
Ocean line Port Development Limited An inlond terminal operator in the Peaple’s Republic of China
[stock code: 8502) [the “PRC") and is principally engaged in the provision of port
EMEDERERAR logistic sevices (including uploading and unloading of cargoes,
(RARE : 8502) bulk cargo handling services, confainer handling, siorage and other
services).
REARATE ((HE ) MAEED &R - TRREEONR
(BREHEN HHERE SXERE BER
i) - 8,400 31,588 9,003 7% (1,895) 3.95%
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Life insurance and ofher financiol businesses including
[stock code: 376) subscription fees and management fees for products launched,
EREREEERAR platform fees for distibution of thirdparties producs,
(RIRE : 376) adminisiration fee for employees siock ownership plan
management senvices ond brokerage commission income efc..
AERBREAMERER  BEETERNRRER
ERE AHESHERNTAE BIRK:HE
REERERELASRAS - 34,959 7,206 7,494 6% 288 0.19%

* EHES
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Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the

Group at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

R-ZB_=F+-_A=1+—8 AKEKBEZE
TEAREBLMRAFBAT :

Percentage of
fair value as Fair value
compared fo gain/lloss)  Percentage of
he consolidated recognised  shareholding
Cost of Number of fofal assefs of during the held by
shoresaf  shoresheldof  Foirvalueat  the Group o yearended  the Group ot
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
i
e 3 REE
R Y Rt R
R ZFZ=F R =t-H t=H  Z%==%
B t=A  Z%==F DTG =t-R t=A
+=A =t-A +=A AEE FREEED =t+-R
=t+-B2Z BEZ  =t—HZ FREE 2RV K&E
RipmA R %A ATE #EzESL  kE/(BB)  BRESK
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activifies HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ERLTRALE TREH TR T TR TR
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and entertainment related businesses, including
[stock code: 1003) development ond invesment in film and TV programmes righs,
BERREEARLNA" as well os operation of an online video platform
(Huanxi Media Group Limited| RRRREAERY  CRRERRETYRERBIRE
(RfA 5% - 1003) DREEEGHATE - 36,482 22,660 15,182 10% (9,744) 0.62%
Ocean line Port Development Limited An inland terminal operafor in the PRC and is principally engoged
[stock code: 8502) in the provision of port logistic sewvices (including uploading
EMEOERARAR and unloading of cargoes, bulk cargo handling senvices,
(RS : 8502) confainer handling, storage and other services).
MEMARENLES T EREBONR
(BREDEN SRR SRERE BRER
HAhR) 8,400 31,588 10,898 7% 2,894 3.95%
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Life-insurance and other financial businesses including
[stock code: 376) subscripfion fees and management fees for products launched,
ERCREAARAR platform fees for distibution of tirdhparties products,
(R{A 5 - 376) administation fee for employees stock ownership plan
management services and brokerage commission income efc..
ASRBRAMEREYR  BERTERNABER
EBE DEESHERNTAE BIRK:HE
RBEERERELAEINE - 36,486 7,526 7,526 5% (602) 0.19%
* EHES
The Group had made investments with a short fo long term perspective AR B EEHERERGIRE @ §EHEERIE AU

with the objective of making capital gain as well as income from
dividend. The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of listed equity
securities in various industries. The directors believe that the future
performance of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group is
largely affected by economic factors, investor senfiment, demand and
supply balance of an investee company's shares and fundamentals
of an investee company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual investee company in
the Group's equity portfolio, and proactively adjust the Group's equity
portfolio mix in order to improve its performance.

S RBEWA - ARERERZEITR EWBRA
BHRZEZTRERE - EFHE AKEFA
ZEBLTBRREZARKRABEARE LXEHE
AE -REERS HREQBRRD 2HRKBER
REERERRZEARE (WIERERRZHEE
EBEARARZRER  MBERBALKRKAZ) I
FE oW BEEEVERLEREZ  LHEAE
ERFEAAZBHARRELRZEARE L
BRABAEEIHEREMS AREERHE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

PLANS AND PROSPECTS
Chinese Health Products

Due to a slowerthan-expected global economic recovery and ongoing
geopolitical uncertainties, consumers’ spending patterns have become
cautious and conservative. Traditional large-scale shopping festivals,
which had contributed significant sales previously, are now experiencing
lackluster performance. Additionally, consumers are increasingly budget
conscious and resfrained in their purchasing decisions, making retail
promotions more challenging and less profitable. Also, consumers
nowadays are more emphasis on costperformance value. As a result,
many residents of Hong Kong are increasingly opting fo allocate their
expenditures fowards purchases in Mainland China. This shift has also
adversely affected the Group's Chinese health products business during
FY24 compared to FY23.

The Group operated 10 stores as af 31 December 2024. The sales of
high-end products such as cordyceps sinensis (Z#&E &), ginseng (A
2%, bird's nests (3 ), fish maw (£ ), and scallops (7T B | declined
during FY24, with a yearioyear decrease ranging from approx. 10% to
34%. In contrast, sea cucumbers (/%%) have shown remarkable sales
growth during FY24, increased by approx. 28% compared to FY23.
Management team put efforts on direct sourcing during FY24, which
keeps cosfs and prices competitive fo atract customers. The Group has
also been actively launching seasonal health product portfolios and
other promotional activities to maintain market visibility and engagement.
Same as previous vears, the Group participate in largescale shopping
events, food festivals and Brands and Products Expo (L& &) which
have achieved similar performance fo last year by providing more
promotions and discounts fo the customers. Also we continued to
promote and sell products through live broadcasts and various electronic

platforms like "HKTV mall”.

The local retail business is expected to be challenging due to inflation,
recruitment difficulties, increasing ongoing and operational costs as
well as the rising rental expenses. Management feam had already
implemented a series of cost control measures, enhanced overseas
sourcing efficiency fo reduce cosfs and strengthened training among
staffs to maintain itself competitive in the industry.

14 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

MBI R AR
R

BHREHREEERSHKBRFAREEARFEN
BEORTHEEM - BEEHERABRARERT
BEEMERNHEE ZCBRALBYHWS KRR
ZEAR IS HEEEEZEEREERERHE
RRENH - BHTE(RFEEHEAIKMEATE
K- R MSHEEEQEEREELEZE -
Bt - FZBEERARERZEZETBEAMH
RN _=MRFE WHEEABETE
B E BN — O B 2 P R R E K
TR E -

RZEBE-WME+_A=+—H AEELEET
MZEME RN REE  £BEE - A2
e TRk TESEEEREBREESHEABEHMT
R TEBANTHEIZTEASZ=1TH-
2T B2R MY REE ZHEmEEN
E B_ZHBEFEEENAIZ TN\ &R
EFR NP BEEANE D NREERE L
HBRARERRF N #MEsIBEE - AEER
SEHENTHERERES REMREES - LA
REMBBAERTF2HE B BEF K &
ESEL2EAMEYE ERAKIERSEED
AERRHEZERRTN  HHEERBFHEAF
FEE o Mol - BRMVEESBIRISE B R K HKTV
mal | EZEETFEHEERMEEER °

RRNBERER  BERE BELEREERDN
EF - AREERX BT BRAMTEXRBS
EEREE - EEERC L — RN A -
RIS R R R A PR S N5k 8 TEE A
MBEBEREANBF -



Looking ahead, we will enhance the promotion of convenient ready-
to-eat health products, such as Tai Chi Ginseng Fruit [ A% 2 [E R),
Collagen Jelly (BBRZR ), Pure Sea Cucumber Essence Capsules (4%
GRAEERTE), Probiotics F+ (zm AR F+), Platycodon throat lozenges
(FEENEREMEE ), and various herbal teas, to aftract local consumers
and younger customers. Also, we plan to collaborate with MAME LAB,
a professional postpartum care center, to infroduce and promote a
range of prenatal and postnatal maternal health care products through
this platform. Additionally, in partership with Weimob (#%82), we will
soon launch on the Xiaohongshu (/N4L &) social platform, enabling
our brands to interact directly with consumers and engage with young,
capable customer groups, particularly within the PRC market. Moreover,
fo enhance customer relationships and improve business efficiency,
we will upgrade and refine the customer membership system (CRM
System) along with various discount programs. Management team had
leveraged technology to atfract and retain consumers in this competitive
market, thereby increasing business opportunities.

Money Lending

The Group's loan receivables together with accrued inferest receivables
decreased to approx. HK$9 million as of 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: approx. HK$17 million). The significant drop in
amount was primarily due fo the increase in loan receivables being
classified to stage 3 (creditimpaired) and impaired as well as the
repayment made by the Group's customers during FY24.

The Group expects the business environment for money lending will
be challenging and difficult in the foreseeable future. It is because the
inferest rate of Hong Kong Dollar is expected fo remain in a relatively
high level in 2025, which may deter potential borrowers due fo the
increased borrowing cosfs. Additionally, the uncertainty stemming from
heightened geopolitical tensions between the United States and China
is also impacting borrowers’ demands. The Group will closely monitor
the repayment pattern of our customers and formulate an action plan
of recovery should the risk of default increases. Qur recovery strategy
can involve a wide range of actions, which includes the revising
of repayment terms, adding of collaterals/guarantees, reaching of
sefflement, the commencement of legal actions against the cusfomers,
and/or enforcement on collaterals/guarantees, etc. The Group will
also be more cautious by strengthening its credit policy and risk control

policy.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Investment in financial instruments

The Group will closely monitor various factors such as global economy,
investment senfiment and fundamentals of investors and their future
prospects and proactively adjust our portfolio in order to improve our
performance. The Group will change our equity portfolio mix from time
fo time and realise the equities held by the Group info cash as and
when appropriate.

Business Portfolio Management

The current business strategies of the Group with an aim fo achieve
the best use of its resources and improve its overall performance and
portfolio diversification have been continuously evaluated. The Company
has been actively looking for business opportunities to diversify the
revenue sources of the Group in order to creafe shareholders’ value
through making investments and/or acquiring business or projects that
have promising outlooks and prospects.

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and bank balances were
approx. HK$10 million (31 December 2023: HK$ 14 million). The
Group's borrowings, convertible loan notes and straight bonds payable
were approx. HK$33 million (31 December 2023: HK$29 million),
approx. HK$ 14 million (31 December 2023: approx. HK$72 million)
and approx. HK$49 million (31 December 2023: nil), respectively. As
at 31 December 2023, balance of convertible loan notes amounted
to approx. HK$72 million representing the convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of approx. HK$120 million, which was
unsecured and issued on 11 October 2018 and matured on 10
October 2024, with approx. HK$72 million remained outstanding
upon the maturity date (2018 Convertible Bonds”). In this regard, 8%
straight bonds with principal amount of approx. HK$55 million and
6% convertible bonds with principal amount of approx. HK$17 million
were issued on 31 December 2024 ("2024 Bonds") to set off in full
the outstanding amount of the principal under the 2018 Convertible
Bonds. The maturity dafe of 2024 Bonds would be the date falling on
the day being two years from the date of issue of 2024 Bonds, e.g. 30
December 2026, the conversion price at which the convertible bonds
may be converted into ordinary share of the Company is HK$0.088
per ordinary share. As at 31 December 2024, convertible loan
notes and bonds payable amounted to approx. HK$14 million and
HK$49 million respectively, represented the fair value of the liability
components of the 2024 Bonds determined at the issue date. The
2024 Bonds are pledged with 100% of the fotal issued share of a
subsidiary of the Company as security for the payment obligation under

the 2024 Bonds. Further details of the 2024 Bonds are set out in the
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Company's announcements dated 19 August 2024, 9@ September
2024, 20 September 2024, 8 October 2024, 8 November 2024,
15 November 2024, 22 November 2024 and 17 December 2024,
and the circular of the Company dated 27 November 2024.

Gearing ratfio, calculated as the fotal borrowings, straight bonds
payable and convertible loan notes divided by total assets was
approx. 79% as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: 67%).
As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded fofal current assets
13 million (31 December 2023: HK$140 million)
and total current liabilities of approx. HK$73 million (31 December
2023: HK$143 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated by
dividing the total current assets by the current liabilities, was approx.
1.6 (31 December 2023: 1

shareholders’ fund from approx. HK$4 million as at 31 December

of approx. HK$ 1

.0). The Group recorded a decrease in

2023 to a net liabilities position of approx. HK$ 18 million as at 31
December 2024. The decrease was mainly due fo the operating loss of
the Group during the Reporting Year.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approx. 90 employees

and confract workers based in Hong Kong headquarters. The number
of employees of the Group varies from time to time depending on
operation needs and they are remunerated based on industry practices.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to sincerely thank my fellow Board members
and senior management, and all the employees for their contribution
and dedications to the Group, which enabled us to overcome the
challenges encountered during the Reporting Year. My appreciations go
fo our investors, customers, financiers and suppliers for their support to
the Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and Executive Director

1 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEET RO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue
for approx. 22% from approx. HK$ 146 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approx. HK$114 million for the year ended 31
December 2024. The decrease was mainly due fo (1) the decrease in
revenue from the investment in financial instruments segment from a net
gain of approx. HK$6 million in FY23 to a net loss of approx. less than
HK$1 million in the Reporting Year; (2) the decrease in revenue from the
Chinese health products segment from approx. HK$ 130 million in FY23
to approx. HK$ 113 million in the Reporting Year; and (3) the decrease
in revenue from the money lending segment from approx. HK$ 11 million
in FY23 to approx. HK$ 1 million in the Reporting Year.

Cost of goods sold ("COGS”") represent the cost of Chinese health
products sold. COGS decreased by approx. 11% from approx. HK$86
million in FY23 to approx. HK$76 million in FY24. The decrease in
COGS in line with the approx. 13% decrease in revenue from the
Chinese health products business.

The gross profit decreased to approx. HK$37 million for the Reporting
Year versus approx. HK$60 million in FY23. Gross profit margin
decreased to approx. 33% (FY23: 41%) mainly due to the realised
loss from the investment in financial instruments segment as well as
the decrease from interest income generated from the money lending
business for the Reporting Year. The variation of product mix sold from
the Chinese health products also atfribute to the decrease in the gross
profit margin.

Other income, gains and losses, net for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted fo a loss of approx. HK$10 million (FY23: HK$10
million). Other income, gains and losses, net mainly represented fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approx. HK$4 million (FY23: HK$ 10 million) and the loss on substantial
modification of convertible loan notes of approx. HK$6 million (FY23:
nil).

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2024 increased to approx. HK$29 million, representing an increase
of approx. 4% against approx. HK$28 million in the Corresponding
Year. The increase in selling and distribution expenses was mainly due
fo more promotions activities and events were organised by the Group
fo boost sales and to maintain market visibility and engagement with
customers in relation to the Chinese health products business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit Ratio

EF %

For the year ended 31 December 2024, 31 December
2023, 31 December 2022, 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020

B E TR & 5T

Selling Expense/Revenue

HEMX WA

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022,
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 and for the period
from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
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General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to apProx. HK$26 million (FY23: HK$38 million). The
decrease in general and administrative expenses was mainly due fo the
cost saving measures implemented in the Reporting Year.

Finance costs incurred mainly for interests on convertible loan nofes,
borrowings and lease liabilities during the Reporting Year of approx.
HK$8 million as compored with ApProx. HK$Q million in FY23.

Impairment loss under the expected credit loss model (nef with reversal
of impairment loss| provided for the year decreased to approx. HK$2
million for the Reporting Year versus approx. HK$107 million in
FY23. Impairment assessment on the Group's loan receivables was
performed and based on the valuation prepared by an independent
professional valuer. The impairment loss provided for the Group's loan
receivables under ECL model (net with reversal of impairment loss)
decreased significantly as there were only one loan receivable (FY23:
five] being re<classified to stage 3 [creditimpaired) during FY24. As
at 31 December 2024, loan receivables with aggregate outstanding
amount of approx. HK$300 million were classified as stage 3 (31
December 2023: HK$294 million), representing 97% to the total gross
loan receivable balances (before any recognition of ECL allowance)(31

December 2023: 95%).
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Impairment loss on rightof-use assets for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to approx. HK$1 million (FY23: less than HK$1
million) resulting from certain loss-making shops operated by the Group.

All'in all, the Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of
approx. HK$40 million in the Reporting Year compared with approx.

ﬁ::%:m¢+:ﬂz+—5¢¢§’E$%
Bz ETEEEHS FREEEREEE
H—EEBT(C=FBRFEE  PR—EEBT) -

EME AKRERBEFEESEREMGE
BAWNTERBLT MR_=MRFERRD

HK$135 million in FY23.

General and administrative expenses/Revenue
—RBRITBEEX WA

For the year ended 31 December 2024, 31 December
2023, 31 December 2022, 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020

REBEE_FE_WNF+_HA=+—H ZFT_=F+=
A=+—H Z—F-_—_F+-_A=+—H ZF-_—%
FTZA=T—AR=FE_FFIH=1+—HIFE

31 December 2024 o

31 December 2023 26%
—B_=Ft+"A=t+-A

31 December 2022
=g==£t+=A=+-8 27%

31December 2021
—B——F+=-A=+-H 19%

31 December 2020

—F—%t-H=t-H AR

0% 10 20 30 40

—B=FThAE&ET-

Finance Costs/Revenue

g R WA

For the year ended 31 December 2024, 31 December 2023,
31 December 2022, 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020
REBEZE-_F-WHWEF+=—A=4+—H "
=+—HF ZF-_—F#+-H=+—H"
=t —AR=FE=—FFI—H=1T—HIFE

:?::¢+—ﬁ
—F+=A

=

—g-mEt+—A=+-8
31December 2023 6.1%
—B-=Ft=A=t-8
31 December 2022
—FFt-A=t—
31 Decemberzozw
FT=A=t—

—p—_

31 December 2020
—E-BFt+t=A=t+—-8

5.1%

3.8%

13.7%

0 5] 6 9 12 15 18

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2024, the non-current assets decreased approx.
12% to approx. HK$9 million compare with approx. HK$ 10 million in
the previous year. The decrease in non-current assets was mainly due
to (i) approx. HK$1 million (FY23: less than HK$1 million) impairment
of right-of-use assets was recognised in relation to some loss-making
shops operated by the Group and |ii) the decrease in loan receivables
confributed by the increase in loan receivables being classified to stage
3 [creditimpaired) and impaired as well as the repayment made by the
Group's customers during the Reporting Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management placed much emphasis on inventory control and will
maintain a sufficient inventory level fo match future demand and to confrol
cost of sales. The decrease in inventories of approx. 11% was recorded,
compared fo the Corresponding Year, value of inventories decrease
from approx. HK$56 million as at 31 December 2023 to approx.
HK$50 million as at 31 December 2024. Inventories turnover days
were 253 days compared with 236 days in the Corresponding Year.
Operation teams keep closely monitor the inventory level to ensure they
are maintained af a reasonable level. Exira inventories may be stocked
up as the yearend approaches in order to accommodate the anticipated
increasing demand for the upcoming Chinese New Year.

CEEIERE YA

EREIERHNEE  USERRRFEKFNU
ENRRBEREFHEXE - FERHEERFE
MAHBES 2T FEEERA T _=F+_
A=Z+—RAZORTARBEETRLE TN
FT-_A=T—BZHATEET FEAEH
RIBRT=X MERFERIS-_B=1T X"
LEERKETYEREFEKRTY  URERLER
REEEHE - EEFERLI  XSRINEMER
ABC & BN SRR 2 BT F TR MG I 2 T3k -

Inventories
=78

31 December 2024
—®-mE+=A=+—8

31December 2023

49,770

Total Liabilities
EEHBE

31 December 2024
Ss-mE+=A=+—A 140,426

31 December 2023

——=£+=f=1-A 56023 —-=Ft=A=t-A 145,272
31December 2022 31 December 2022
—F-_—#t-A=t-H 58,1121 —B-—F+-A=t+-A 149,010
31 December 2021 31 December 2021
—2——&t+t—A=t-A G —E——&t-A=t+-H 121,031
31 December 2020 31 December 2020
—B-¥F+-A=1+-A 47,964 —B-®F+=A=1-A (62254
0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 0 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000
HK$'000 HK$'000
8T 8T

The trade receivables remained stable as at 31 December 2024 at
approx. HK$4 million, compored with approx. HK$6 million as af
31 December 2023. Debtor turnover days were 15 days in FY24
compared with 14 days in FY23. The Management regularly evaluates
the Group's customers, assesses their known financial position and the
credit risks.

Cash and bank balance as at 31 December 2024 were approx.
HK$10 million, compared with approx. HK$14 million as at 31
December 2023. The Group dealt with different revenue and
expenditure currencies during the Reporting Year such as HK$, US$ and
RMB.

Trade payables, other payable and accrued charges remained stable
as at 31 December 2024. Trade payables, other payables and
accrued charges were approx. HK$33 million as at 31 December
2024 compared with approx. HK$33 million as at 31 December
2023. The trade payables mainly consisted of payables relating to
material purchases and the trading products. During the Reporting Year,
creditor turnover days were 99 days compared with 100 days in FY23.

R-ZE-_WF+-_A=t—HAZREEZRI#
FRE AREBEET MR-_ZF_=Ft+_
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BE  ARRERZBENENEBES ZERE
BHR T =1+ _HA=t+—HZH—RZF—8
EETRAE_Z_WE+ _A=1t—HZH
NTARBEBT TERAR MNP BFEET
AMBESRERESZ A FERBANRBREF

The aggregate balance of borrowings, convertible loan notes and
straight bonds payable decreased to approx. HK$96 million as at 31
December 2024 from approx. HK$ 101
2023, mainly affributable to the net effect from the recognition of the

million as at 31 December

fair value of convertible bonds and straight bonds issued during FY24

and the decrease in convertible loan notes matured during the Reporting  EREAM AT MR E R BB R D < F M -
Year.
Debtor Turnover Days Current Ratio
=3 3
FE L2 B 7% 3 4 TR EhEE =
31December 2024 m 31 December 2024 m
—EomEt=A=+—H —B-mE+=A=+—H
_31 December 2023 14 31 December 2023 098
—®-=F1t=-A=t-H —®—=#£+-A=+-H
31 Decermber 2022 - 31 December 2022 8
—®——&#+-A=+—-H —E2-——%+-A=+-A ’
1 December 2021 31 December 2021
S@:E;i:%ez+()—a 12 —g-——#+-A=+-H 1.68
31 December 2020 18 31 December 2020 578
—E=EEt=A=t-A —g-wt=p={-n :
0 10 20 30 a0 50 0 2 4 6
Days Times
B feid

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total assets of approx.
HK$122 million (31 December 2023: HK$150 million) which was
financed by shareholders’ fund, payables and borrowings. The Group
mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in HK$, US$ and RMB
and did not have any related hedges for the year ended 31 December
2024 (FY23: nil). No financial instrument was used for hedging
purpose. The Group adopted a prudent funding and treasury policy and
managed the fluctuation exposures of exchange rafe and inferest rate on
specific fransactions.

As at 31 December 2024, The Group's borrowings with an outstanding
principal amount of approx. HK$19 million (31 December 2023:
HK$15 million) were denominated in HK$ (bore interest at a fixed
rafe), repayable on demand or within one year and were pledged by a
subsidiary's investment in Hong Kong listed equities with carrying amount

of HK$35 million (31 December 2023: HK$40 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s borrowings with an outstanding principal amount of
December 2023: HK$14 million) were

denominated in HK$, bore inferest at Hong Kong Prime Rate (as quoted

approx. HK$14 million (31

by the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited) plus
4% per annum and maturing on 16 May 2024. The mature date was
subsequently extended to 16 May 2026 with the interest rate amended

12% per annum during the extension period (e.g. 17 May 2024 to
16 May 2026). The borrowing were repayable on demand and secured
by share charge over issued shares in a subsidiary of the Company and
guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, balance of convertible loan notes amounted
to approx. HK$72 million representing the convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of approx. HK$120 million, which was
unsecured and issued on 11 October 2018 and matured on 1
October 2024, with approx. HK$72 million remained outstanding
upon the maturity dafe (“2018 Convertible Bonds”). In this regard, 8%
straight bonds with principal amount of approx. HK$55 million and
6% convertible bonds with principal amount of approx. HK$17 million
were issued on 31 December 2024 ("2024 Bonds") to set off in full
the outstanding amount of the principal under the 2018 Convertible
Bonds. The maturity dafe of 2024 Bonds would be the date falling on
the day being two years from the date of issue of 2024 Bonds, e.g. 30
December 2026, the conversion price at which the convertible bonds
may be converted info ordinary share of the Company is HK$0.088 per
ordinary share. As at 31 December 2024, convertible loan notes and
bonds payable amounted to approx. HK$ 14 million and HK$49 million
respectively, represenfed the fair value of the liability components of the
2024 Bonds determined at the issue date. The 2024 Bonds are pledged
with 100% of the total issued shares of a subsidiary of the Company as
security for the payment obligation under the 2024 Bonds. Further defails
of the 2024 Bonds are sef out in the Company’s announcement dated
19 August 2024, @ September 2024, 20 September 2024, 8 October
2024, 8 November 2024, 15 November 2024, 22 November 2024
and 17 December 2024, and the circular of the Company dated 27
November 2024.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded fotal current assets
13 million (31 December 2023: HK$140 million)
and total current liabilities of approx. HK$73 million (31 December
2023: HK$143 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated by
dividing the total current assefs by total current liabilities, was approx.
1.55 (31 December 2023: 0.98). The Group recorded a decrease
in shareholders’ funds from approx. HK$4 million as at 31 December
2023 to a net liabilities position of approx. HK$ 18 million as af 31
December 2024. The decrease was mainly due to the operating loss of

of approx. HK$1

the Group during the Reporting Year.

Total Assets

EEMAE BE&

31 December 2024 m
—®-mFE+=A=+—H

31 December 2023

Borrowings

It

RZZBE_NF+ZR=+—8B KxEBEKE)

&
=

BHEEREN B T=B88T(ZT_=
F+-A=+—H: —RGBETEBEL LAPE
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=t—B:—FEOET=888T) - AKEZR
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31 December 2024
Ss-mE+=A=+—8 32,572

31 December 2023

—g-=gtop=t-g | 149870 —e==F+-A=t-A B2
31 December 2022 31 December 2022

—=——&#+-A=+-A 287,659 —g——ai-p=t-n 31,264

31 December 2021 31 December 2021

—®——F+=-A=+-A 314,095 —2——f+=A=+-H (S
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Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, the Group did B EMlE A FREMELHHEEIN R=2F

not have any debt securities issued and outstanding, or authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, any term loans (secured, unsecured,
guaranteed or not), any other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature
of borrowing including bank overdrafts and liabilities under acceptances
[other than normal trade bills) or acceptance credits, any mortgages or
charges, or other material contingent liabilities or guarantee at the close
of business on 31 December 2024. Foreign currency amounts have
been translated af the approx. exchange rates prevailing at the close of

business on 31 December 2024.

The Group's operation relied upon the support from suppliers and
financial institutions. Facilities and credit terms are provided on the basis
of which certain financial and operational undertakings are complied
with. On behalf of the Board, the Directors are of the opinion that, affer
taking info accounts the Group's internal resources and cash flow from
operations, the Group will have sufficient working capital fo satisfy its
present requirements for the next twelve months from the date of this
report in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact the

Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future performance

and how the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive

statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,

but rather those risks which the Group currently believes may have a

significant impact on the Group's performance and future prospects.

B E TR & 5T

FERRETHBEER

AREFEREE ZMBIRN 2EBREIARKE
Rz ETBRAR &TEHEEI%WLK&ZK%IQDH%
fRZFREBRIN T -

B AR AR VRS AR B E bR 2 FT A B R
RAREARR 2 B H BRI - RS ERE A
{*Eiﬁﬂﬁ REHAREZ KRB L RKAREK
EXFE

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
FTERR e FEER
Strategic risk Strategic risk is the risk that medium and e  Extensive invesiment management experience

RS MR bR

Economic risk
O R B

Credit risk

=5
l:l/\

long-term profitability and/or reputation of
the Group could be adversely impacted by
the failure either to identify or implement the
correct strategy, or to react oppropriotely to
changes in the business environment.

SR 14 PR A TR 2K B 7 1 K T e L SR B
FHEXRRECELEE &Fgﬁﬁﬂ$ﬁ
@EPHH&EHH%W EN R/ HBBERT
MEEZEAR

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn
in economic conditions could impact the
Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability to
repay loans and lower asset vo|ues
RERBRASIEATFPENEEERME
BURRRIEM N BEE Tﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%%$%.
KRB EEETTRAR -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counferparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

EERBRANERITACZEFIRFHTF
REBTESNET  AEBEAXMBE
Bz Rk -

of the Board.
EFENREEEBZEERR -

®  Regularly review on strategy and performance
of each business unit.
E AT R R EA 2 R MR -

®  Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

A RERBERATEOERES -

®  Regularly review forward looking indicafors to
identify economic conditions.

TE B AT AU IR 1 $5 15 DA B AR IR 1R -

e Fully understand customers and carry out
credit quality assessment on customers before
granting loans.
RELERNZHETREFPLH TP ELT
EEE RN -

®  Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.

EHMERBUERLFZEATOKEE -
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ERET R RS

Principal risks

TERRE

Description
RE

Mitigating actions
EFRIE

Liquidity risk

Price risk

BAR R

Exchange risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due.
mBECRREARNEERERITHIISAZ
MBBEEZRER -

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group's income and the
value of its holdings of equities.

B ER AR ERNE B WA R EFRR
EEECREZFH AR -

Exchange risk is the risk that changes in
foreign exchange rates will affect the Group's
income and the value of ifs holdings of asses.
EHERABTEAEBRAREMFEE
EBEZINEEREE) 2 ERE -
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Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of
financial position.
EHERRBE S MPBIRRE
Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBEERDE S HIRAGE -

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in
securifies listed on sfock exchanges.
BEBERENRGAETELRRBRBE
TR

Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance
in place, or believed to be available before
committing investment projects.
AEREBEIBREAABFAAIEIK
BEESE °

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address
any porifolio issues promptly.
EHERREREHES ABNR IR E @R
BHEAREE -

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

BREZERZEAD BERRER -

Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use of financial
instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward
rate agreements, fo hedge this exchange risk.
B ERM MR R RIR R E L ER -
VWHEERF/ERZBEATERAERIA (N
EHIMNE A XY - HMNE B AR KR BN R 5 35
SR K E R
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CEEIERE YA

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

TEmE AES FEER

People risk People risk is the risk of loss the services of @ Provide competitive reward and benefit
AERR any directors, senior management and other packages that ensure our ability fo attract and

key personnel which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group's businesses.
AZRBATMES SRAEEABNRHE
MEBABRIEREAIEHAEBREE
REARTMZEZ AR

legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a
breach of laws and regulations could lead to

legal and regulatory risk

ERELEERR
litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting
in additional costs being incurred, civil and/
or criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.
FREREERRAERERRER RS
BFas  #AEHAMD  ELEBINKE R
ERIMERFREEBREZRR

Capital and Financial Risk

Our capital and financial risk management are set out in the Note 37
and Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had an authorised share
capital of HK$1,500,000,000 divided info 150,000,000,000 shares
of a par value of HK$0.01 each, of which 770,480,436 shares of
the Company (the “Share”) were in issue. Except disclosed in Notes
34 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements in relation to the
Group's convertible loan nofes and share option scheme, no convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar right by the Company or its
subsidiaries were outstanding during the year.

refain the employees we need.
REALFE N2 BB RENFEAEERAN
SEBERENBEIRBEMBIAL

®  Ensure that the staff of the Group has the
right working environment to enable them fo
do the best job possible and maximise their
satisfaction at work.
BRASEZEIRABEZTIERENS
BT RRAAGEMET TERRAREMIE
BETZIEREE -

*  Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that
sufficient resources being made available to
implement any required changes.
ERRERREZEHNERIERATAL
BREANBEEMBREZEE -

e Seek legal or other specialist advice as

appropriate.
HERSIOARAHMERALER
XK MBRER

B EAR LM BREREREREG A B HEREMN
iE 37 K PHFE38 -

IRAZRAB

RZZ-_WFE+=-_A=+—H A28KEER
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, cerfain financial assets held by a subsidiary
of the Company amounted to approx. HK$35 million were pledged for
the Group's borrowing of approx. HK$ 19 million.

As at 31 December 2024, borrowings amounted to approx. HK$14
million were secured by share charge over issued shares in a subsidiary
of the Company and guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2024, 100% of the issued shares of a subsidiary of
the Company were pledged as security for the payment obligations of
the Company under convertible bond nofes and straight bond payables
with principal amounted to approx. HK$72 million.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

During the Reporting Year, no proceed from fund raising activities was
used. As at 31 December 2024, there was no unutilised proceed from
fund raising activities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

Saved from those mentioned in this annual report, the Group did
not have any other significant investments or acquisitions or sales of
subsidiaries during the Reporting Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31

December 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 December
2024.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognise the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The Board
believes that high standards of corporate governance provide a
framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business risks,
enhance fransparency, achieve high standard of accountability and
profect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of
policy which provides guidance on the application of the corporate
governance principles on the Group, with reference to the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as sef out in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities [the “Lisfing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2024.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGIES

For many vears, the Board has focused on pursuing the corporate
purpose of empowering and developing our employees to creafe long-
term value and sustainable growth for our shareholders.
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The Board recognises the need to establish the correct culture and values
to pursue the Company’s purpose and fo ensure good standards of
behavior are maintained throughout the Group. To fosfer the Company’s
culture, the Board continues to promote the following values within the

Group:

(a) Integrity

We insist on trustworthy behavior and always acting with integrity
— “doing the right thing”, infernally and extemally.

(b) Responsible

We conduct our business in a responsible way and are
responsible for our actions, outcomes, and reputation.

(c) Collaborative and supportive

We foster a collaborative and supportive environment for
attracting, developing, and retaining the best talent for our
business.

(d) Teamwork

We promote teamwork in a fair and open environment, where
employees and their contributions are valued and respected.

(e) Customer focus

We take the time to know our customers and understand their
business needs, so they feel listened to and valued. We are
responsive and flexible, ensuring they stay with us for the long
term.

In pursuing the Company’s purposes, the Company adopts two principal
strategies, namely: (i) o grow recurring earnings, cash flow and capifal
return and to sfrengfhen its financial position; and (i) to attract, retain,
and develop falented employees.

The Board believes that the culture of a business, in conjunction with
its values, is vitally important to the Company’s successful long-term
performance. How the Board members conduct themselves sefs the
culture within the Group — a good standard of behavior has fo be set
from the top.

The Board constantly monitors the Company’s culture to ensure that

policies, practices, and behavior throughout are aligned with the
Company's purpose and strafegies.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) sef out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2024. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required
to notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement
from the Chairman prior fo any dealings in the Securities.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of
the Company and monitoring the performonce of the management,
approving the consolidated financial statements and annual budgets.
It focuses on the formulation of business strategy, policy and contral.
Day-to-day operations of the Company are delegated to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Group. The Board reviews
and approves key matters affecting the Company's sfrategic policies,
finances and shareholders, such as consolidated financial statements,
dividend policy and major corporate acfivities. Decisions of the Board
are communicated fo the management through Executive Directors who
have affended Board meetings.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises six
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board. Their
names and brief biographies are set out on pages 58 to 61 of this
annual report.

Liobﬂif\/ insurance for Directors and senior management officers of the
Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal
liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors are high calibre executives
with diversified industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and
experience fo the Company. One of the Independent Non-executive
Direcfor possesses recognized professional qualifications in accounting.
All Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through their
confribution at Board meetings.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written annual confirmation of independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, are independent
in character and they also meet the independence guidelines as sef out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board meetings are scheduled at approx. quarterly intervals, and
additional meetings will be held when required. The Directors have
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary of the Company. Independent professional
advice may be taken by the Directors as required. There were sixteen
Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2024.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rofation once every three
years and are subject fo reelection in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy
and direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities,
provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective
functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The
Chief Executive Officer is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's sirafegies and the co-ordinafion of
overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the fifle of Chief Executive Officer
up to the date of this annual report. In the absence of the Chief
Executive Officer, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the Board,
namely Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion, Mr. leung Alex, Ms. Lo Ming
Wan, Mr. Yuan Huixia and Mr. Yang Qiangsheng (appointed on 27
January 2025), therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have been/will continue to
be properly segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title of
Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees have been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available fo shareholders upon request.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and, if upon request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/HELD

Board meetings are held from time to time to discuss key matters
re|oﬁng to the Group's strategy, business operation, risk management,
performance and governance. Meetings of Chairman and Independent
Non-executive Directors were held without the presence of other
Executive Directors.
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EEELRRE

The atftendance records of each Director at the meetings of the

\\

BEENEBE_T_NF+_A=1— EIJtEF“

shareholders, the Board, Audit Commitiee, Remuneration Committee HERR  -EEF€  BELES FMEES
and Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2024 RREZZE S & 2otk & 0T
are set out below:
2024
Annual
General Exfraordinary
Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit Meeting General
Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee (“AGM”) Meeting
—E-MF
BRERBERE
(TREBF KRR
Exg FMZEEE REEEE ERKZEEE N -=-l)) BRIAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman) — ZFHEE 554 (/%) 16/16 2/2 2/2 - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion  SREX(ESE4
(Vice Chairman) BIE ) 16/16 - - - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lleung Alex R RE 16/16 = = = 1/1 2/2
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BRIt 16/16 - - - 1/1 2/2
M:r. Tse Chi Keung B 5R &
(resigned on (R=—Z—mF
30 September 2024) AA=Z+HED) 8/8 - - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Yuan Huixia REERLE 16/16 = = = 1/1 2/2
Independent Non-executive BIUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen ERBEL
(resigned on 1 July 2024) (E/\\—gfmi N/A
T A—HEfE) 4/4 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1 NEH
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REFRFE 16/16 2/2 2/2 4/4 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BEMELE 16/16 2/2 2/2 4/4 1/1 2/2
M:r. Tsang Chin Pang B RIS LA
(appointed on 1 July 2024) (R=—Z—mEF N/A N/A N/A
+A—BEZE) 11/11 TNE A NEH 2/2 TEHA 2/2

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1) AND (2), AND
3.10A OF THE LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all fimes met
the requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and (2}, and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent

non-executive directors (representing at least one-third of the Board)

with af least one independent non-executive director possessing

appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In defermining the independence of directors, the Board follows the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. The Company has
received from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024. The
Compoany considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship between the members of the Board.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with
comprehensive induction fraining regarding fo the Group’s operations
and governance policies, as well as their role and responsibilities
as Board members. legal advice on Hong Kong law as regards the
requirement under the Listing Rules that are applicable to Board member
of a listed company, the obligation as Directors and the possible
consequences of making false declarations or giving false information to
the Stock Exchange are give by a firm of solicitor qualified to advise on
Hong Kong law pursuant fo Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules.

To assist Directors’ confinuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors fo attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills fo ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development programmes, such as external seminars organised by
qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the fraining
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by the
Company. Proper induction training and legal advice were provided to
the newly appointed Director pursuant fo Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors also understand the importance of confinuous professional ~ EEIF TR EIBEE X ER c S Z MW AGH 2 HE
development and are committed fo participating any suitable training to A& B ZF3)l » LAZE KB HHE 2 M & &

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. B o

According fo the records provided by the Directors fo the Company — i%BR#E BB IS 2 45T B A A D T2t 2 504% -
pursuant fo the CG Code, all Directors have participated in appropriate cBEEONOEREEENSREE Y I5ES
continuous professional development activities during the Reporting Year  waxmszs.giz=—=—me+—A=+—H)F
under review. The individual training record of each Director for the year ERE . R B EFIET Y ERE YRR T

ended 31 December 2024 is summarised below:

Directors’ duties and
responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/

Updates on Laws, Rules and

Business related/Accounting/

Financial/Management or

Regulations other professional skills
ESCRERBE XSRS EZ: 2]V 0k
SEG - BB R AR 2 B EEFHMEXR R
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ Reading seminars/
materials conferences materials conferences
HEHHE HEwEE
B R M B kS B M B 23
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Chairman) THEE(FE) v v v v
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton SREUE S (BIE/E)

(Vice Chairman) 4 v v/ 4
Mr. leung Alex RIS E v v v/ v/
Ms. lo Ming Wan SRt v v v v/
Mr. Tse Chi Keung i E L

(resigned on 30 September 2024)  (RZ=ZT=M%F

NA=FHB#T) v v v v
Mr. Yuan Huixia RIBERE v/ v/ v/ v/
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES

Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen mimGE kA

(resigned on 1 July 2024) (RZZ_m4

+A—REE) v v v v
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REBFRF & v v v/ v/
Mr. Llien Wai Hung EEERE v v v v/
Mr. Tsang Chin Pang ZRMSEE
(appointed on 1 July 2024) (RZZE_m4
+tA—BEZEE) v/ v v v/
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INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND INPUT TO THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the

Board, the Company has esfablished the following mechanism, and

the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism are reviewed

annually.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

(g

(h)

The Board must ensure the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors and at least onethird of its
members being independent non-executive directors (or such
higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules) from fime
fo time.

Each Board committee must comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors.

The independence of independent non-executive directors is
assessed upon appointment, annually, reappointment, and at any
other time where the circumstances warrant reconsideration.

The independent non-executive directors are required fo inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in their
personal particulars that may materially offect their independence.

Independent non-executive directors receive fixed fees for their
role as members of the Board and Board committees and are not
entitled to equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or grants)
with performance-related elements.

Further re-appointment of an independent non-executive director
lincluding the long-serving independent non-executive director)
is subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders.

Independent non-executive directors should not be involved in
the daily management of the Company nor in any relationship or
circumstance which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgement.

All directors are entifled to seek independent professional advice
on issues relevant to their function and duties at the Company's
expense.

Corporate Governance Report

EEELRE

REZERUHBIYRRRIHBE

REREFSRREMHBIER LMY  ARFE
B NIIS - TBFHZEHNERBERRE
MIEHEITIRRT

) EXSEABERELSZE=ZRBIUNFRNTE
F YAARELA=DZ—HNKERE
VHEHTER(HLEMRAATEERNES
FIt) °

b BEFZBEEX

FHERK -

VERAZ BB IENITE

) HZE BFEEBIUFRTEERTE
MEGBANTAEMER BEBIE
EITRHE -

(d) TW%Q?F%M?%%E’MA’I B EMEL

““%TEI%I\EFEEK%@“ : Q\'J{BZQ?
/,\E—JTTEI'H ATNERBRHAR

o] BIUFNTEFREETEFEREFTZR

BEelREMKRETHES:  BEEESHE
EEH AR ARSI A E R B (a0 - BERR
HERIEL) -

() BIFRKTESR (BRRPEBRIBILIEHR
TEF)ME—FER  ANBLRERTY
A BRRELAE -

o BUFRTEETTELEARFANATEE

BT EEERNEEEHTES #IJE_%E
BB RN -
h) FMEEFEERIEEBEIBREGHENE

HSRBUYMNBEXER - BRARARFAE -

FESEREEREARAT —E-MER 37



Corporate Governance Report
TEELRE

()  Directors are required fo declare their and their connected entfities’
direct or indirect inferests, if any, in proposals or transactions fo be
considered by the Board at Board meetings and withdraw from
the meetings as appropriate.

(il The Chairman of the Board meets with the Independent Non-
executive Directors at least annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific ferm, but are subject fo retirement from office by rofation and re-
election in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s byelaws.

DIVERSITY

The Board believes that a diversified Board brings constructive challenge
and fresh perspectives fo discussions. The Board considers diversity, in
its broadest sense (and not limited to gender), during Board composition
reviews and the development of selection criteria for appointing a new
director.

The Company's Board diversity policy, which is available on the
Company's website, provides that the selection of candidates during the
nomination process will be based on a range of diverse perspectives.
These perspectives include but not be limited fo gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge, and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on the merit and contribution the selected candidates will bring fo the
Board. The policy does not contain any measurable objectives or targefs
for implementation. The policy is reviewed annually by the Board to
ensure ifs effectiveness.

The Company currently have both male and female directors on the
Board. To achieve and improve gender diversity, each time a new
director is appointed fo the Board, where possible, both male and
female candidate will be shortlisted.

Defails on the gender ratio in the Group's workforce can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board's composition under RAFMAE - EFFEZ oL EE < AR B
maijor diversified perspectives was summarised as follows: s

Board Diversity
ExEgs it

Designation

B

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFPITES

Professional Industry

BRITE

Gender Female
MR 3 7

Age group
FRAER

Length of service (Year) Within 1 year

IRIEFE (F) —FZR
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

The Company has adopted a directors’ remuneration policy aiming
fo set ouf the overall guiding principles and sfructure for remuneration
packages of direcfors to affract, mofivate, reward, and refain the right
falent in pursuing and driving the Company’s long-term goals and
ensuring business sustainability and growth. The directors’ remuneration
policy comprises remuneration guiding principles and remuneration
structure. The remuneration of executive directors is defermined based
on, among others, their scope of duties, responsibilities, skills, and
experience required, corporate and individual performances, prevailing
market practice, and general economic situation. The remuneration
of non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors is
defermined based on, among others, the number of board committees
served, experience and level of responsibilities undertaken and
prevailing market practice. In the remuneration structure for independent
non-executive directors are not entitled to reward with equity-based
remuneration. A copy of the directors’ remuneration policy is available
on the Company's website.

Defails of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in Note 14(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The details of the five individual with highest emoluments are set out in
Note 14(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management (excluding
directors) by band are sef out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Tsang Chin Pang and
Mr. lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. lei Hong Wai. Mr. lai Hok
Lim is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The functfion of the
Remuneration Committee is fo review and make recommendations to
the Board on the Company's remuneration policy for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management. As part of the decision-making
process, the Company has adopted the standard declaration of inferest
procedures for all Board and committiee meetings to ensure that no
director or committee member will be asked to participate at any
decision-making of matters in which they have a material interest, such
as decisions regarding his own remuneration. The fees of the Non-
executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are determined by the Board.
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All members of the Remuneration Commitiee met twice during the year
ended 31 December 2024 for a proposal on remuneration packages
and employment contracts for submission to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee also reviewed the share option scheme adopted by the
Company and the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
regarding fo share scheme. No share option was granted under the
share option scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024. No
material matter relating to the share option scheme, such as grant,
vesting, lapse, cancellation or exercise, was brought to issue during the
year requiring the review or approval of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company adopfs a competitive remuneration package for its
employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
a performance related basis in order fo attract, refain and mofivate
talented executives/employees fo strive for future developments and
expansion of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in 2006. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Tsang Chin Pang
and Mr. Lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. lei Hong Wai. Mr.
lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
function of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience| of
the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes to complement the Group's corporate
strategy.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will
consider various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience and length of service.

On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity. All appointment will be based on merit and confribution that
the selected candidates would bring fo the Board.
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The Company has adopted a nomination policy aiming to ensure the
Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge, and diversity of
perspectives appropriafe fo the requirements of the Company’s business.
The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select, and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
fo selection criteria including but not limited fo:

(a)  diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge and length of service;

(b)  commitment to responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest:

(c) quo|ificoﬂons, inc|uding occomphshmenf and experience in the
relevant industries the Company’s business is involved in;

(d)  independence;
[e)  reputation for integrity;

(fl  potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board;
and

(g)  plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend retiring
director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration
fo the selection criteria, including but not limited fo:

(a)  the overall contribution and service of the retiring director(s) to
the Company, including but not limited fo the attendance of
the meetings of the Board and/or its committees and general
meetings where applicable, in addifion fo the level of participation
and performance on the Board and/or its committees; and

(b)  whether the refiring direcfor(s| continue(s) to satisfy the selection
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend candidate(s)
for the position(s) of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company by giving due consideration to the factors including but not
limited to those set out in Rules 3.10, 3.10A and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in addition to the selection criteria.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the

appointment of a direcfor in accordance with the following procedures

and processes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

()

(h)

the Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to
the current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;

the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in idenfifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing directors, advertising, recommendations from
a third party agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the
Company with due consideration given to the selection criteria;

the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such
as interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information
of the selected candidate fo the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where an non-executive director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation to the
Board on the proposed remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
inferviewed by the members of the Board who are not members
of the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

all appointments of directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as director of the relevant director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as direcfor, as the case may be) to be
filed with the relevant Companies Registry.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to review the composition of the Board, the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy and make recommendations
on the appointment and re-election of Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, an Audit Committee was established on
14 March 2000. The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Chin Pang,
Mr. Lai Hok Llim and Mr. lien Wai Hung. Mr. Tsang Chin Pang is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The chairman of the Audit Committee
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters.

Written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board since the
date of establishment. The principal activities of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting
process (including the preparation of the interim and annual results,
infernal controls and corporate governance).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee
held four meetings including the review of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2023, and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2024 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such consolidated financial statements, and the
planning meetings with the auditors in reaction to the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2024 and the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2024. In addition, the Audit Committee also had
fwo private meefings with the independent auditor without the presence
of management to discuss any area of concem during the year. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set ouf in the
section headed “Number of Meetings Attended,/Held” of this report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters defermined by the external auditor under Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing for the year ended 31 December 2024. It also reviewed
and discussed the review report on risk management and infernal control
systems of the Group from APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services Limited, an independent risk management and internal
control review adviser appointed by the Board fo carry out an annual
independent review. The Audit Committee also discussed the Group's
risk management and internal confrol systems with the Executive Directors
fo ensure the Executive Directors had performed their duties fo have
effective systems properly in place. The Audit Committee also discussed
the accounting policies and pracfices that might affect the Group and
compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting with the management and external audifors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions sef out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and is safisfied with the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid or
payable fo the independent auditor for the audit services amounted to

approx. HK$900,000.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements as set out on pages 77 to 216. The
statement of the external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is sef out on pages 71 to 76.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, except those defailed
in Nofe 3 to the consolidated financial statements and those under the
"Key Audit Matter” section to the Independent Auditors’ Report, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concem.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management
of the Company, as well as confinuous moniforing the effectiveness
of such internal controls and risk management. The Board has
delegated such responsibility to the management of the Company. The
management, under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-
going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks

faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management

that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit

Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and

experience of sfaff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting

function, as well as their training programmes and budges.

(a)

46

the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e |dentify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assess the risks identified by using the assessment criferia
developed by the management; and

e  Consider the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
®  Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment: and

e  Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes fo prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
®  Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in

place;

© Revise the risk management strafegies and infernal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;
and

®  Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and

the Board regularly.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper mainfenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group
and endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified risks
and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures.
The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed fo manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures
fo achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
infernal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.
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As the Company does not have an internal audit function, the
Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services Limited as its risk management and infernal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual review
of the risk management and infernal confrol systems for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. Such
review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under
rofation basis. The scope of review was previously defermined and
approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings and
areas for improvement to the Audit Committee and management.
The Board/Audit Committee are of the view that there are no
material internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from
the Adviser are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that
they are implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Board therefore considered that the risk management and infernall
control systems are effective and adequate.

the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely disclosure
are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy
regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information,
which includes:

e  Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

e Designated persons and departments to defermine further

escalation and disclosure as required; and

e Designafed persons authorised fo act as spokespersons and
respond fo external enquiries.

The Board reviewed the need for an internal audit function, but has

decided that because of the size of the Group, it cannot be justified at

present. The Board will review this decision annually.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications

and experience, fraining programmes and budget of the Group's

accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Company has adopted a policy and procedures on disclosure of
inside information which contains the guidelines to the Directors and all
the relevant employees of the Group to ensure that the inside information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and
timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is safisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
confrols and risk management functions for the Reporting Year and up
fo the date of issuance of this annual report is reasonably effective and
adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. lo Ming Wan, is the Company Secretary of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She reports to the
Chairman. Ms. Lo has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31

December 2024.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND PREVENTION OF BRIBERY

The Company is committed o maintaining good corporate governance,
emphasising accountability and a high degree of transparency which
enable its stakeholders to have trust and faith in the Company to take
care of their needs and to fulfill its social responsibility. In line with this
commitment, the Group expects and encourages ifs employees and other
parties who deal with the Group [e.g. customers, contractors, suppliers,
creditors and debtors, etc.) to report any misconduct, malpractice or
iregularity within the Group. The Company has a whistleblowing
policy that provides the reporting channels and guidance on reporting
possible impropriefies in matters of financial reporting or other matters.
All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in the
meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and his/her/ifs
identity will be kept confidential. A copy of the whistleblowing policy is
available on the Company's website.

The Company commits to maintaining confidence in the integrity of the
Group. All directors and employees should show the highest business
integrity in their dealings with others and should conduct the Group's
business in accordance with the law and principles of good business
practice. The Company prohibits all forms of bribery and corruption and
has embedded in the Group's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics a
set of prevention of bribery policies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, the Company has approved and adopted a
dividend policy. The Company considers the dividend policy creates
flexibility on the Board in declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the dividend policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. The declaration, payment, and
amount of dividends are subject to the Board's discrefion having regard
to the following factors:

(a)  the earnings, financial conditions, capital requirements and future
plans of the Group;

(b)  the shareholders interests of the Company;
(c)  the economic outlook;

(d)  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders;

(e) the statutory and regu|ofory restrictions on the payment of

dividends by the Company; and

(i any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders” interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant fo the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person

for election as a Director of the Company are available on the
Company's website (www.healthwisehk.com).
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Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Llaw (the “law”). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 72 of the Articles of Association (the “Articles”) of
the Company. Pursuant to Article 72 of the Arficles of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company, or on the writtlen requisition of
any one member which is a recognised clearing house, deposited at
the registered office specifying the objects of the meetfing and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the dafe
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-fenth of the poid up copHo\
of the Company which carries the right of vofing at general meetings
of the Company. Such meefing shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the fotal voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetfings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed fo them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the Company:

Address: Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Tel: (852) 2268 8248

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, nofice or sfatement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company highly values its relationship with its shareholders
and other stakeholders. It has put in place an effective corporate
communication system which provides transparent, regular and timely
public disclosures fo ifs shareholders and other stakeholders. The main
features of the system are as follows:

e The Company maintains a corporate website (www.healthwisehk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Group, including
core business, financial reports, public announcements, circulars
and news of the Group, is disclosed. Shareholders can obtain
corporate communication electronically via the Company’s
website.

e The Company esfablishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders and other stakeholders through
annual reports, inferim reports and other publication.

e AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The respective Chairmen of the Board
and Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees (or in the
absence of the Chairmen of such Committees, another member
of each Committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate)
will endeavor to be available to answer questions raised by
shareholders.

e Separate resolutions are proposed af general meetings for each

substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.
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®  Details of the proposed resolutions to be put forward at a general
meeting are, where necessary or appropriate, included in a
circular to the shareholders dispatched prior to the date of the
relevant general meefing.

e All resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting are taken
by poll. The poll results are published on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company’s website in
accordance with Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy, which is available
on the Company's website, ensures that shareholders and the investment
community are provided with equal and timely access to information
about the Company, including ifs financial performance, strategic goals
and plans, material developments and corporate governance, and
also allows them to engage actively with the Company. The policy
sefs out various communication channels, including, among others, the
Company's website, investor briefings, and shareholders’ meetings,
through which shareholders may communicate with and provide
feedback to the Company from time to time. The policy is reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure ifs effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board reviewed the
policy and considered that the policy was effective and sufficient,
given that multiple channels were in place and adopted to facilitate
communications with shareholders and the investment community in
conformity with market practices.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company's byelow during the year. The
Company’s byelaw are available on the website of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and investment in financial instruments. The principal activities of ifs
subsidiaries are sales of Chinese health products, money lending and
investment in financial instruments.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and segment information is sef out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024

are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page /7.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out in Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 18
to 28.

The Company has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. The Company will
seek professional legal advice from legal advisers, where necessary, o
ensure fransactions and business to be performed by the Company are
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the year

ended 31 December 2024 (year ended 31 December 2023: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in page 80 and Note 30 fo the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share copifo| of the Compony during
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Defails of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions and responsibilities,
and individual performance of the Directors, senior management
and general staff and are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

Certain Direcfors voluntarily waived their entiflement to the Director’s
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2024, details are sef
out in Note 14(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 13
June 2025 to Wednesday, 18 June 2025 (both days inclusive), during
which period no fransfer of shares will be effected. In order to defermine
the entiflement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company fo be held on Wednesday, 18 June 2025 (2024 AGM),
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 12
June 2025.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and

liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial periods.

TFEMBHRE

MAXE BEREE-

TERBAAEENBER AN BHEASHE 2

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-mE —E-=F —E-— —E-—F —EoTE
+=A=+—-8 +t—A=+—H +ZA=+—H +-ZA=+—H +t-A=+—8H
EEE FFE HFE FE IHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 113,575 146,317 142,058 170,079 137,853
Loss before income tax from REBECEERK
continuing operations ZBRFEHAIEE (40,028) (132,059 (56,401) (100,580) (72,929
Income fax (expense]/credit T8 E: (%) /K% (253) (2,499 2127 (2,466) 3,648
Loss for the year from FARBRHERERD
continuing operations ZER (40,281) (134,558) (54,274) (103,046) (69,281)
Profit for the year from FRREBRIHEE
discontinued operations R E R = - - - 44,059
Loss for the year FREE (40,281) (134,558) (54,274) (103,0406) (25,222
Attributable to: N3
Owners of the Company ARAZHEBA (40,281) (134,558) (54,274) (103,0406) (25,222
[40,281)  (134.558) 54274)  (103,046) 125,222
Total assets BEHE 122,046 149,670 287,659 314,095 434,278
Total liabilities BELT 140,426 145,272 149,010 121,031 137,987
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (B4 E4t),/ @iz (18,380 4,398 138,649 193,064 206,291
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
do not have any distributable reserves (31 December 2023: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31

December 2024.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 August 2024, the shareholder of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

The ferms of the Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Rule
17.03 of the Listing Rules. A summary of the particulars of the Scheme
as required under Rule 17.09 of the Listing Rules is sef out in Note 29
fo the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up fo the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton (Vice Chairman)

Mr. leung Alex

Ms. Lo Ming Wan

Mr. Tse Chi Keung (resigned on 30 September 2024
Mr. Yuan Huixia

Mr. Yang Qiangsheng (appointed on 27 January 2025)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Hok Lim

M. Lien Wai Hung

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen (resigned on
Mr. Tsang Chin Pang (appointed on

1 July 2024)
1 July 2024)
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

In accordance with Arficle 116 of the Company’s Articles, the Directors
refiring by rotation at the forthcoming AGM are Ms. Lo Ming Wan
and Mr. Yuan Huixia. In addition, Mr. Tsang Chin Pang and Mr. Yang
Qiangsheng hold their office until the forecoming AGM, which is the
first AGM since their appointments and eligible for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM in accordance with Article 99 of the Company's
Atticles. They will refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as Directors af the 2024 AGM.

Biographical defails of Directors and senior management are sef out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lei Hong Wai, aged 56, has over 23 years of extensive experience
in corporafe management, investment and business development. He
is the Chairman of the Board and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. He also holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of Efernity
Finance Group Limited, the substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
Mr. lei is currently the chairman of the board of directors and an
executive direcfor of Eternity Investment Limited (“Etemity”), a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) under stock code: 764. In 2002, Mr. lei was a
director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies Limited, which
promotes inferaction amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 59, has over 35 years of
experience in the area of corporate finance and securities industries.
He is the Vice Chairman of the Board. He holds a Master Degree in
Accounting and Finance from the University of Lancaster in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Cheung is also a director of Eternity Finance Group
Limited, the substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is
currently an executive director of Eternity and he was an executive
director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (“Global Mastermind”)
(stock code: 8063), a company listed on GEM operated by the Stock
Exchange during the period form 16 December 2016 to 23 July 2020
and subsequently appointed as the chairman of the board of Global
Mastermind since 24 July 2020 fo 13 November 2024. Mr. Cheung
was an Executive Director of the Company during the period from 11

October 2016 to 16 December 2016.
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Mr. leung Alex, aged 46, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr.
leung had worked in two infernational accounting firms from December
2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia.
He has more than 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
corporate management as well as in the field of corporate finance,
mergers and acquisition matters, financial and accounting management,
corporate governance and compliance affairs. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. leung was an
executive director of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1466
during the period from 11 April 2016 to 30 August 2023.

Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 39, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Insfitute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has over 15 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, company secrefarial matters and financial
management.

Mr. Tse Chi Keung, aged 43, obtained his Bachelor Degree of
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management gained from certain senior positions in an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong and a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He also held
direcforships in cerfain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tse tendered
his resignation as an Executive Director as well as his office in the

Group's subsidiaries with effect from 30 September 2024.

Mr. Yuan Huixia, aged 44, has been admitted as a practicing solicitor
in the People’s Republic of China and has over 16 years of extensive
experience in corporate management, investment, legal affairs and
business development. He holds a Doctorate Degree in law, a Master
Degree in law and a Bachelor Degree in Llaw from the Southwest
University of Political Science and law in the People’s Republic of

China.

Mr. Yang Qiangsheng, aged 56, was appointed as the Executive
Director on 27 January 2025. He has been engaged in the field of
biotechnology and biomedicine for 12 years and is experienced in the
operation and management in these fields.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 60, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, respectively. He has over 33
years of experience in auditing, financial management, mergers and
acquisitions gained from certain senior finance related positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong
Kong and a company listed in the United States of America. Mr. Wong
was an independent non-executive director of Eternity for the period
from 7 November 2011
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an

fo 28 June 2024. He is currently a Practicing

independent non-executive director of Huanxi Media Group Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock
code: 1003). Mr. Wong tendered his resignation as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 July 2024.

Mr. Lai Hok Lim, aged 66, has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1989. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree and holds a Bachelor of Arts {Law) Degree from
the University of Sussex in the United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Llaw
Degree from Beijing University in the PRC. Mr. Lai was an independent
non-executive director of Global Mastermind during the period from 27

July 2020 to 19 November 2024.

Mr. Lien Wai Hung, aged 61, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1997. Mr. lien was also the chairman of the board of
direcfors and an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under sfock code:
8130, during the period from 15 September 2010 to 31 July 2018
and 27 April 2010 1o 31 July 2018, respectively.

Mr. Tsang Chin Pang, aged 46, was appointed as the Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee

1 July 2024. He is currently the chief financial officer and company
secrefary of Realord Group Holdings Limited (“Realord”), a company
1196), since August 2021.
Mr. Tsang graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and

listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
Technology with a bachelor of business administration in finance.

He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tsang has over 23 years of experience in the field
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of auditing, accounting and finance. He has worked in infernational
accounting firms from September 2001 to February 2011 and was the
chief financial officer and company secrefary of Realord from February
2011 1o July 2016 and of D&G Technology Holding Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1301) from

November 2016 to September 2020.

Company Secretary

Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 39, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has over 15 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, company secrefarial matters and financial
management.

DIRECTORS’” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Direcfors have entered info a service agreement with the Company for
either with an initial term of three year commencing from the date of
their first appointment or without a specific term or proposed length of
service, buf they are all subject to the general requirement of refirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meetfing of the
Company under the Arficles of Association. The service agreement shall
continue unless terminated by either party by giving a written notice.
Under the agreement, the Directors will receive an annual fee.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which is not ferminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled fo be indemnified
out of the assefs of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
damages, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in the execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has faken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors of the Group.
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DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and confracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business fo which the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which Directors of the Company and
the Direcfors’ connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Year or at any fime
during the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
(Vice Chairman and executive director of the Company) have interest
in approx. 25.99% and 15.29%, respectively, of the issued share
capital of Eternity Investment Limited (stock code: 764, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange engaging in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending, design and sale
of jewelry products and operation of a golf course in the PRC, through
themselves and their beneficial interests in Twin Success International
Limited. In addition, Mr. lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive direcfor and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion
is an executive director of Etemity Investment Limited. Therefore, Eternity
Investment Limited competes with the Group’s money lending business
and investment in financial instruments business.

As at 31 December 2024, save as mentioned above, the Directors
were not aware of any business or interest of each Director,
management shareholder and their respective associate, that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person have or may have with the Group.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2024, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactfions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company
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Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company

BEZE#RIT MBEXRRIECBT

EEpE 54 EBEREAE RAEBD L

M:r. lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 18,663,636 2.42%
PR KL EREAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive B EXFTEEIN  R_ZE_WNFE+-_A=+—

nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, B @ #ifE%E  FETHRABRKEZBHEAL

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31 December 2024.

Nofe:

Ms. Song Ping ["Ms. Song”], the spouse of Mr. Yang Qiangsheng (“Mr. Yang”),
an Executive Director appointed on 27 January 2025, holds 38,000,000
issued ordinary shares of the Company as a beneficial owner up fo the date of
this report, representing 4.93% of the issued capital of the Company. Mr. Yang
is deemed, or faken to be interested in the share in which Ms. Song is interested
for the purpose of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2024, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the Securifies
and Futures Ordinance shows that the following shareholders had
nofified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of

the Company.

FERR

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of (a)

the Company

RZZB-_WNF+-A=+—H ' ARFAREES
FHEHRIFEIOKEFEZ T ERRELMER
R NIBRREREEARRERTRAZAH
BEAMEARRE -

AARBREAEZSHE-EAEER
ZHR

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

FEZERIT (HAXRAFERT

RREE 8% SEEREE RABDE

Eternity Finance Group Limited Beneficial owner 169,042,824 21.94%
KIEEMBEBEAR AR EREAA

Riche (BVI) Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 169,042,824 21.94%

HELE kS
Eternity Investment Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 169,042,824 21.94%

KIEREIRERRAE Y

Notes:

XL E S

These Shares were registered in the name of Eternity Finance Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Riche (BVI) Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Efernity Invesiments Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under sfock code: 764.
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(b) Convertible bonds (b) TRERES

Number of

convertible Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity bonds held  underlying shares

BEZARRK
REEH 5% BEHFHE HEROEE
Heng Tai Finance Limited Beneficial owner 190,909,090 190,909,090
BEmEAA

Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited  Inferest in a controlled corporation 190,209,090 190,209,090
TREBEEREEBRAF XA E R S
Notes: Btat
These convertible bonds were registered in the name of Heng Tai Finance % % 7] #4 B 18 % LA Heng Tai Finance Limited 2
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heng Tai Consumables Group EER ERTRHEREEERARIZEZEN
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock BRR] TRHEHEREEER AR ZBRHREER
Exchange under stock code: 197. FrEMR £ (BRI - 197) °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors B EXFTEEEN  R-_ZE_WNF+-_A=+—
are not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or B @ EHEH A ABE([ATEM A TR B R AR A
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company or its Sk EABHEAE 2 Ik RABREIR (0 R #E B B AR
associated corporation(s) which would require to be recorded in the R BEIRIEFEFE S & HEEHIEXVELE 33616 E F
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of FEZERM 2 EmIAR °

Part XV of the Security and Futures Ordinance.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2024, the outstanding balance of the loan made
by the Group to the following borrowers, all are independent third party
customers, which exceeds 8% under the assets ratio defined under Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

BELHRAE 13 I3 FRELEE

RZBE-_WME+_A=+—H ' ARRIA T5IE
RA(EBEBBILE=FRFP)IEHERZKE
ERTE MZEHREBE EWMARE14.07001) K
FIRAEEELERZADZ/\ -

Gross Allowance Details refers
Interest rate carrying for ECL  Net carrying to the announcement
Borrower per annum amounts recognised amounts of the Company dated
MERR
RHMEEEER RAEAR T AHZ
fERA FR R MEREE - FTRZBE R AREE DNEFTREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT T THTT
Yuen Hoi Po 8% 60,828 (60,828) - 4 July 2018 and 8 July 2020
RBR —E-NFLAmOBER
—E-_ZFtHNR
He Jianmin 12% 67,865 (67,865) = 3 October 2019
a2 —E-hF+A=H
Chan Koon Wa 9% 52,577 (52,577) - 6 December 2020
Ik 73 2 —E-FEF+=HH

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

The following change was made fo the information of the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up fo the date of this
report:

On 28 June 2024, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Eternity Investment Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under the stock code: 764).

On 1 July 2024, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
in order fo devote more time fo his personal commitments.

On 1 July 2024, Mr. Tsang Chin Pang was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, his biographical defails are set out under the
section of “Directors” in this report.
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On 30 September 2024, Mr. Tse Chi Keung resigned as an Executive
Director as well as his office in the Group's subsidiaries.

On 13 November 2024, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton resigned as an
executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (a company
lisled on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange under the stock code:
8063).

On 19 November 2024, Mr. Lai Hok Lim resigned as an independent
execufive director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (a company

lisled on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange under the stock code:
8063).

On 27 January 2025, Mr. Yang Qiangsheng was appointed as the
executive Director, his biographical details are set out under the secfion
of "Directors” in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In the event that the Company issues, otherwise than pursuant fo the
Scheme, for cash consideration of any new shares or securities (including
options and warrants) in the Company convertible into ordinary shares
(the “New Issue Securities”), the holders of the Company’s preference
shares (the “Preference Shares”) are enfitled to subscribe, or procure
subscribers to subscribe, for all or part of the New Issue Securities. Any
New Issue Securities not subscribed for by the holders of Preference
Shares may be subscribed for by the holders of ordinary shares in the
Company upon terms and conditions no more favourable than those
offered to the holder of Preference Shares.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the contracts of service with the Directors or any persons
engaged in the fulltime employment of the Group, no confracts
concering the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered info or exisfed
during the Reporting Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases aftributable to the Group's
largest customers and suppliers are as follows:

EEEN

EREFEAN  ARAREEEINAEEET
ERTEZETAALARITZREE QI
PIARBEZEBRTAERROXH 2 EERIT
BEI M RFREAGH

FTEEFRHEER

AEESAEFPMMERMAEZHEERRERD
Feanw

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

S BH=E

—F_NF —F=F

+=A=+—-8B t-A=1+—H

LFE HFE

% %

— the largest customer — mARP 1 3
— five largest customers combined — EREFAE 1 7
— the largest supplier — RAHEER 23 19
— five largest suppliers combined — ERHEEAET 59 62

No Direcfors or their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and no
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers nofed above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed (together with the management and
external auditor) the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2024.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Direcfor an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed fo maintaining, and has maintained good
relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view
to fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive to implementing the Group's
strafegies and business objectives, as well as the Group's business
development and sustainability in the long term.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Company is committed fo profecting
the environment in the areas where we operate. To ensure our business
development and sustainability, the Company endeavors to comply
with the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and
to adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as af the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the public float of the shares of the
Company is sufficient to meet the minimum level as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Llimited who will refire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the appointment of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

There were no changes in auditor of the Group during the past three
years.

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

BAFHTESZHBYM

ARREEERBUIIFNTESTRIE LHRANE
SBISEAEBUMEL 2 FERRAE - ARAR
REBRBIUFNTESHEEYL

BES FFRFRHUEHZBE

RIEERETRERERHARR 2 RBER -
ARBBINEEES TP RHEEFRS (AL
ERFT) REBER UBFPRATAKREZR
BEEBRE BREMS TEMNRARE 2%
BRREARENE -

BERBRRRE

EA—MAREZEE ARARNRERMNE
EAEZ BB - ARRESERRTHEM -
ARABNETREREBLERRER - LR
A U o B RS ORI FD - BEIRED 40 Y
b o

BEHALABRERE

REARBMBGRAHAEMEAEESAM  RA
BETNEARA < RERERATEY  AREK
D ARFHREN & EMRRIPTRE 2 &AKKF

M

RERBRREBBEFSIMEHABERARE
% ZRBETRRE TR BB RERET -
ARABNEERRBFAS LIREZTRFES
AN R ER AR RA R AZEEN ZIRER

AEBRBE=FAILEFRZHE -

RESEREERERAT —T-MER 69



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practice are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 fo 53 of this
annual report.

On behalf of the Board
China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and executive Director

1 March 2025
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HLB) B #7 & 3t & ¥ # 5 & o 4

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company”] and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 77 to 216,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stafements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audiitors” Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$40,281,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024 and,
as of that date, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
HK$18,380,000. Its current and non-current borrowings
[included convertible loan notes and bonds payable) amounted to
HK$32,572,000 and HK$63,300,000 respectively, while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$9,701,000 only. These
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability fo continue as a going concem.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the confext of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have

RREELER

RREZFHEREESZZBEHE - AR
EUBHRRCBERRABEEZER - HERRE

EEERERF AV BHRRIE AR RRETT
RIEM - BEE T EHELERREREB2ER -
RIERRERECEATHERER] — s
ZEEN BPEBE TEEERERAREE
ECRRESER -

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to

be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

HEERER

Expected credit losses ( “ECL") assessment on loan
receivables

ERERzBAMEFEBR (RABEEEE] FHE

Refer to Notes 4, 5, 23 and 38(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

A2 HEREMIERARMEL - 5 23 % 38(q) °

At 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of loan
receivables was approximately HK$8,568,000.
Accumulated allowance for ECL of approximately
HK$300,087,000 was provided for loan receivables.
RIZE-_WME+-_A=+—H BEREXREEELS
NBETARBNTERT CRBURERFREREES
BEABEHN=RZTN\ELTET-

During the year ended 31 December 2024, allowance for
ECL, net of approximately HK$2,350,000 was recognised
for loan receivables.
BE_Z_NMF+_A=+—HILFE  EREKRER
BREHCEEEERE IRV _—_a=TRa88 T -

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credif risk for exposures.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable information
including historical and forwardHooking information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this
purpose.

REHEEH - EEEFAEERREGAREM - &
SEZRETEMUNTETEEXNEISIBE N TS ZE
BRABXHZEBEY  BRBERAEEER -

We identified ECL assessments on loan receivables as a
key audit matter due to use of significant judgement and
estimates.
EERERERZEREEFENGHNABREEZS
H - REAE R EAERHE GG -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREERERAZAN

Our procedures in relation fo management's ECL assessment on
loan receivables included but not limited to:
EENEEBHBRERFL 2 BREEBRNGETZ
Brefd(BETRR) :

e Understanding the credit control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures on periodic
review of loan receivables and ECL assessment on loan
receivables;

e THREREMETEEERERET BREABEKREN
REWEFRz BREE BN 2 EREHNER

e  Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging
profile of loan receivables to the underlying agreements;

o EBEER MR B E SRR 2 R

e Checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent sefflement of
loan receivables to bank receipts; and

o  HERABKERERITURZEREE X

e Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL provision

methodology, examining the key dafa inputs on a sample
basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the ECL.

e FIATEHEEERERENEARTEE WMmEERBA
BBRUTHERRER TR YERANETRMSE
EEEMARRK  BREELRATIEEER -

We found that the management judgement and estimates used
in ECL assessment on loan receivables were supported by
available evidences.

EERR EREEREREFFTERBEEEREL ZH
i &% (4 5T AT RIS B IR S HF o



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this Other Information, we are required fo report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alfernative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BETRE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e |denfify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's infernal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and relafted disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related fo events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability fo continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention in
our audifors’ report fo the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group fo
cease fo confinue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit fo obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we idenfify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, acfions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BETRE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
audifors' report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: PO5029

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FEEGREMBEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MNF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—EWE —EZ=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F&T FHET
Revenue WA 6 113,575 146,317
Cost of sales FHE A (76,226) (86,023)
Gross profif E 5 37,349 60,294
Other income, gains and losses, net HEalgA - Wz R EE - R 7 (10,481) (10,167)
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHZ T (29,037) (27,874)
General and administrative expenses —RITHE A (26,414) (37,529)
Finance costs BB KA Q (8,299) (8,993)
Impairment loss under expected BHEEBERENIERATZ
credit loss model, net B EFRR (2,350) (107,469)
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets ERAEEERERE 16 (796) (321)
Loss before income tax FrPTIS TR E 18 8 (40,028) (132,059)
Income tax expense S Hif X 10 (253) (2,499)
Loss for the year FAEE (40,281) (134,558)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax IR EZ K2 k=
Item that may be reclassified subsequently —~ B 1& Al j¢ & E #7772 2
to profit or loss: HBERCIEE -
Exchange differences arising from BEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations bE 5, = 5E 3 307
Other comprehensive income for the year, FAHKRFIEREMEE
net of tax g 3 307
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEHEEIERE (40,278) (134,251)
loss for the year attributable o RRABEEARGEERNEE
owners of the Company (40,281) (134,558)
Total comprehensive loss affributable fo RRE B AL EEBERSE
owners of the Company (40,278) (134,257)
Loss per share attributable to owners of AARHE AEEEREE
the Company
— Basic and diluted — EARKEE (5.23) (17.46)
12 cents &1l cents Bl
hESEREERERAN —T-MFH 77



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2024 M-ZT-_WFE+_-_A=+—H

2024 2023
—EWE —EZ=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E R S 15 408 482
Rightof-use assets FREEE 16 6,963 7,502
Financial assets at fair value through BRATVESABRZ EREE
profit or loss 20 576 559
Lloan receivables RIS E KX 23 849 1,472
8,796 10,015
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 49,770 56,023
Trade and other receivables, deposits U 5 BR R Ko L A e LUK IR
and prepayments Be MANFRIA 22 8,845 13,727
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE 34 2,200 -
Lloan receivables FEME R 23 7,719 15,623
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESABRZ EREE
profit or loss 20 35,015 39,861
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEFEY 24 9,701 14,421
113,250 139,655
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables and T E 5 BR R R HoAth e A~ /IR
accrued charges KIEsTE A 25 33,490 33,427
Lease liabilities HE&aE 16 5,222 5,790
Borrowings BE 26 32,572 28,722
Tax payable e IR 1,714 2,775
Convertible loan notes A EREE 34 = 72,239
72,998 142,953
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (&E)FE 40,252 (3,298)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 49,048 6,717
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBIRAER

As at 31 December 2024 MR-ZT-_WMF+_-_A=+—H

2024 2023
—EWE —EZ=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F&T FHET

Non-current liabilities ERBASE
lease liabilities HE&E 16 2,644 2,149
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 34 14,300 -
Bonds payable FEM B % 35 49,000 =
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 27 1,484 170
67,428 2,319
Net (liabilities)/assets (B EEFE (18,380) 4,398

EQUITY s

Share capital [N 28 7,705 7,705
Reserves it (26,085) (3,307)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (BXREBHM) faEE (18,380) 4,398

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2025 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
ZEE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

HEMBBERN_ZE_AF=A=+—HEES
SHEREETIE YA THNEFKREE:

Leung Alex
R
Director

EF

BEFHT EE B X S e ISR 2 A ER 5 -

PEEEREIERAERAR —T_MER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEEDEHERR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #H#E_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

Retained
Convertible Exchange profits/
Share Share  loan notes — fluctuation  (accumulated
capial premium equity reserve reserve |osses) Total
B4
EXNRE- EXR® R[REEHN/
B BB EE BERE mE (RiER) wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET THET THET THET
(Note 28)
(Fi7E28)
At 1 January 2023 R=ZE=-=F—H—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 (476) 85,910 138,649
Exchange differences arising on BMEBNRBEEECENZR
ranslation of foreign operations = = = 307 = 307
Loss for the year FERNER = = - - (134,558) (134,558)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEELER = - - 307 (134,558) (134,251)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZZ=4+t-A=t—H
1 January 2024 k=ZZ-mE—-HA—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 (169) (48,648) 4,398
Exchange differences arising on BB EREE ELZR
franslation of foreign operations = = = 3 = 3
Loss for the year FRNEE = = - - (40,281) (40,281)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNZABELSE - - - 3 (40,281) (40,278)
Lapse of convertible loan notes TRREREBERN = = (19,835) = 19,835 =
Issuance of convertible loan notes B RRESRER = = 17,500 = = 17,500
At 31 December 2024 RZZZWF+=A=+—H 7,705 25,675 17,500 (166) (69,094) (18,380)

Natfure and purpose of reserves are disclosed in Note 30 fo the

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MNF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
liks3 FHET TET
Operating activities RExK
Loss before income tax B PTS T AIEE (40,028) (132,059)
Adiustments for: A TIEH A
Inferest expenses B 5 9 8,299 8,993
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRETE
plant and equipment 15 329 383
Depreciation of rightof-use assets ERESERE 16 6,841 5,232
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets EAEEERERR 16 796 321
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net U EFBEE BT 23 2,350 107,469
Loss on written off of property, M= - BB RREEE
plant and equipment 7 2 2
Loss on substantial modification of MR EFREBREXNEF ZEHE
convertible loan notes 7 6,300 -
Fair value loss on financial assets BRAVEFABRZ EREE
at fair value through profit or loss, net Z RV EEEFRE 7 4,187 10,344
Operating cash flows before working LEEREHRI KEHERE
capital changes (10,924) 685
Decrease/|increase) in inventories FERLD,/(EmN) 6,253 (202)
Decrease in trade and other U B Z Rk N HoAt e s RR
receivables, deposifts and prepayments e RN FIER L 4,882 994
Decrease in loan receivables FEWE TR 6,177 ©,487
Decrease in financial assets at BRAFEFABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREERD 642 6,549
Decrease in trade and JEAH 5 B % % L At A5 KT I
other payables and accrued charges et & R A (3,652) (2,474)
Cash generated from operations REXBPRF2EE 3,378 14,339
Income tax refunded REIFFEH - 153
Net cash generated from RETERBZ
operating activities ReFA 3,378 14,492
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FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #H#E_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-WmF —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Liks3 FHER TET
Investing activity REZED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE¥% - MiE && 15 (257) (191)
Net cash used in investing activity RETEFMAZR SR (257) (1971)
Financing activities BEED
Inferest paid SEREAIESS 36 (4,523) (7,861)
New borrowings PRI 36 9,472 1,000
Repayment of borrowings EEER 36 (5,622) (3,542)
Repayment of principal portion of EBEEERB A ES
lease liabilities 36 (7,171) (6,634)
Net cash used in financing activities METHMAZRESEEE (7,844) (17,037)
Net decrease in cash and REeERASEEY
cash equivalents WA EER (4,723) (2,7306)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SMEE RE 5~ & 3 307
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZRERAEEEY
the beginning of the year 14,421 16,850
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZAESRBASEEY
the end of the year 9,701 14,421
Represented by: -
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIReEEY 24 9,701 14,421
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS
China Healthwise Holdings Limited # Bl %5 &8¢ fi2 BR {2 AR B BR 2 A

(the "Company”] is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. lts shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands, and the
principal place of business of the Company is at Unit 1209, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and principally
engaged in investment in financial instruments. lts subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the "Group”) are
principally engaged in sale of Chinese health products, money
lending business and investment in financial instruments.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 fo
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Report of the Directors of the annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

FEAMIEEMBREER (FE
MBREER ) REBITAR

84

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments fo HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
fime, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

(a)

REAFEREER 2B BUHKR
HEEAMEET A

RAFR - AR B i R & B 5% 0
REBXEAELG G ([FE
SRR ) RN T _MEFE—
A— Bz &FRa 2 FERRERG £
Mz NONE BB ImEEAERTA :

Amendments fo HKFRS 16 lease liability in a Sale and ErMBmEEl ERERMNBEERE
leaseback F16RIEFTA

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current B gL BENBEAREK
or Non-current and related F1REFTAR ERBREERE
amendments fo Hong Kong F5WH 2 AAERT
Inferpretation 5 (2020) R(ZZEZTHF)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with el ffs 225 K IR
Covenants E1REBIIA BfE

Amendments fo HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangement BEAERAE/R HERRERH

and HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set outf in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continved)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments fo HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

vet effective:

Amendments fo

HKFRS @ and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments fo HKAS 21
HKFRS 18
Annual Improvements

fo HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

HK Int 5 (Amendments)

be determined.
2025.
2026.

2027.

Amendments fo the Classification
and Measurement of
Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture!

Lack of Exchangeability?

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*

Amendments to HKFRS T,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 73

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer a date to
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

86

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
fo influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$40,281,000 for the year ended
31 December 2024 and, as of that date, the Group had netf
liabilities of approximately HK$18,380,000. Its current and non-
current borrowings (included convertible loan notes and bonds
payable) amounted to HK$32,572,000 and HK$63,300,000
as at 31 December 2024 respectively, while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$9,701,000 only.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration fo the future liquidity, operating
performance of the Group, and are of the opinion that the cash
flow generated from operating activities of the Group will be able
fo meet the funding needs of operations and repay the outstanding
interest bearing borrowings and liabilities. In order to improve the
Group's financial position, the directors of the Company have
been implementing various measures as follows:

taking active measures to collect loan receivables to
improve operating cash flows and its financial position;

ii.  reviewing its invesiments and actively considering to realise
certain financial assets af fair value through profit or loss,
in order to enhance the cash flow position of the Group
whenever it is necessary; and

ii. implementing an acfive cost-saving measures to control
administrative costs through various ways to improve
operating cash flows at a level sufficient to finance the
working capifal requirements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continved)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have carried out detail review on
the Group's cash flow projections prepared by management.
The cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In preparing the
cash flow forecast, the directors have considered historical
cash requirements of the Group as well as other key factors,
including the availability of the loan finance which may impact
the operations of the Group during the next twelve-month period.
They are of the opinion that, taking info account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group would have sufficient
working capital fo finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate
fo prepare the consolidated financial stafements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 on a going concem basis.

However, there are inherent uncertainties associated with the
future oufcomes of the above measures and these indicate the
existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concermn. Whether the
Group will be able fo continue as a going concern will depend
upon the following:

[i)  whether the Group is able fo collect the outstanding loan
receivables so as to improve operating cash flows;

[i)  whether the Group is able to speed up the possible disposal
of cerfain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
fo enhance the cash flow position; and

liii)  whether the Group is able to imp|emem further cost
confrol measures on capital investment, production and
administrative operations fo reduce overall operating costs
of the Group.

Should the Group be unable to confinue as a going concern,
adjustments would have fo be made to the consolidated financial
statements to adjust the value of the Group’s assefs fo their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and fo reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assefs and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a)

88

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and ifs subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the invesfee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power fo affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control unfil the date when the Group
ceases fo control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All infragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating fo fransactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Opfiona/ concentration fest

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
fest, on a transaction- by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of acfivifies
and assefs is not a business. The concenfration fest is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrafed in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assefs under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assefs, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred fax liabilities.
If the concentration fest is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not o be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets or financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a fransaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

90

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an infegrated set of activities and assefs which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute o the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they
are critical to the ability fo continue producing outputs,
including an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience to perform the related processes
or they significantly confribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assefs fransferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Croup to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisitionrelated costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
"Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
levies, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21
the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.

instead of the Conceptual Framework fo identify

Confingent assets are nof recognised.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

4. ERETHBEERER#)

(b)

ERSHRWBEE (B)

EBE G
EBR—BERPREE HTFERE
—HEAR—EAEDBE  HARY

BIEEL ZBENEHERNER - M
ESzBRHEETEEN ZENE
MEE BRABLERE MHEX
M%Zﬁ@%z 58) 1 R TTHERR B
RERHEBEEELZENE
Eﬁﬁ%’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%
REY - REGEREBEEEN NS
Eﬁ%%ﬁ&$ BAOHERZIER
BEHERA - AR REAEEE -

W 15 T AR ARR - 154 6
BEIRENVARFEFE Z2F
BERASEER EERNKERS
NFE ARBEWREELD 2EAR
AEIE 2 BB RN E B BT AR AR
o B 7 1 A 2 AN 2 Zi'ﬂoﬂﬁl
BHEXANELRERRAER

P BB R I BRI B E R AREN B E
VR E MBI EH 2 ELR (TH2AE
RNDANEERBENTR  HEES
STEBIE 7RG  AABERAR
BEXEE (BBRMBEREZREES
A)%E%Q FHEHEANRZS R
EHBRIN RZBEAT  AEEER
BIPR & 5t 2RI 375 sk B8 (BB Bf
BHREREZER)REFE 21 mIE
R AE 2R DA B B EL R 3 75 & OF F Pk
EHBE HAEELTHER °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assefs acquired and

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entfered info fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 at the acquisition datfe (see the accounting policy
below):

assets [or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinved Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Rightof-use assefs are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable ferms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

92

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continuved)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferesfs in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at acquisition date. If, affer re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-confrolling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or af fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
fransaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
refrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXE:HREER (&)
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent seftlement is accounted for within equity.
Confingent consideration that is classified as an asset or @
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquire is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains confrol), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity inferest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplefe. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, fo reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed af the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

94

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as esfablished at the dafe of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
["CGU") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU |or group of CGUs| to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than ifts carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first fo reduce the carmrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then fo the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the atfributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained, unless the Group can demonstrate that some
other method better reflect the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5-20 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assef and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

96

()

Leases

The Group assesses whether a confract is or contains o
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception
of the contract. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ materially
from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration fo components of a confract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or nonlease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract fo each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-ease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Shortterm leases and leases of low~valve assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption fo leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain o
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assefs. lease payments on shorterm
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a sfraightline basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EXREFERXRER (&)

(Continued)
(e) Leases (Continued) e) HE#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) REFERARBA (BF)

Rightofuse assets AL E

The cost of rightof-use asset includes: EREEEZKABRLE

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease e MHEBBEZVKTESLHE:
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the e N B S 2 AIFTIEZ EM
commencement date, less any lease incentives HERMK  BREER 2 EMME
received: EHRE

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and e XAEBEELZEMVIBEEK

NS
e an eslimate of cosfs to be incurred by the Group s AEBEFRKLEBBRHEEEE-

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Rightof-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straightline basis over the
shorter of ifs estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

98

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS @ and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments fo
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate af the lease
commencement date if the interest rate imp\icif in the lease
is not readily deferminable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rafe as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected fo be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

e payments of penalties for ferminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option fo
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
friggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

e) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Llease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related rightof-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease ferm has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rafe at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
renfal rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

® a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease (see below for the accounting policy for “lease
modifications”).

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

100

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments fo that stand-alone price fo reflect the
circumstances of the particular confract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
ferm of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assef.

When the modified contract contains one or more additional
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relafive stand-alone price of the lease component.
The associated non-lease components are included in the
respective lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(f

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair value af the acquisition date.

Subsequent o initial recognition, intangible assefs acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as infangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried af cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an infangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9)

102

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assefs and infangible assets other than goodwill with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assefs have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order fo determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
test for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assefs are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-fox discount rafe that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset [or a CGU) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced fo its recoverable
amount. For corporate assefs or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis fo a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assefs or portion of corporate assefs allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a proTata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assef (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased tfo the revised estimate of ifs recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs| in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

104

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assefs are recognised and derecognised
on a frade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assefs that require delivery
of assefs within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market p|oce.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenuve from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are direcily attributable
fo the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assefs or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on inifial recognition. Transaction costs directly atfributable
fo the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating inferest income and inferest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rafe is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an infegral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial |iobi\ify, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, fo the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Inferest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXE:HREER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial assef is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dafes to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
inferest on the principo| amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial assef is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets;

and

e the contractual ferms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination fo which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EXE:HEER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

106

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

®  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages fogether and has a recent actual pattern of
shortterm profittaking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured af the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rafe to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become creditimpaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rafe fo the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the defermination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXE:HREER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value af the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assefs

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS @ [(including trade
and other receivables, deposits, loan receivables and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In confrast, 12-month ECL [“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

108

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifefime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since inifial recognition.

(ij  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as af the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial insfrument
as af the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken info
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (iF ovoi|ob|e)
or internal credif rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debior;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

® an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

110

(h)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the oufcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Croup has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriafe fo ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely fo pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Confinved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
evenfs of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
creditimpaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
confractual reasons relating fo the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an acfive market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Irespective of the above, the Group considers that a
financial asset is creditimpaired when it is more than
Q0 days past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

112

(h)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of frade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assefs
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking info
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitufes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical dafa adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is defermined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking info consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
confractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
° Noature, size and industry of debfors; and
e  External credif ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
fo ensure the constituents of each group confinue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of frade and
other receivables and loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

114

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition,/modification of financial assefs

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assef to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A maodification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a subsfantial modification from original ferms faking
info account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset,
after reducing gross carrying amount that has been written

off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified confractual cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining ferm. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss af the date of modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liobilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of o
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a
residual interest in the assefs of an enfity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
cosfs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity insfruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or af
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, borrowings and debt element of convertible
loan notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

FEUBRRME
“mE+= A=+ —ALFE

4. EXRETHEERER ()

(h)

FEE R REERERA

SWMIAE)

EHEERER

DHEREHLIER
%ﬁ&&%élﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁé R E
BARUEEMABEMEETAZE
%ﬁ*ﬁ)?% MAEgEs -
BT A
BaTADBENRAEEMERE

é/ﬁé{FZﬂﬁ%%\ ZEAELH K
NABETzER T AREWHAFRIA
FIRR B WATROANEERR

BRARRAG 2 THATI NS

WE&EE:. IR o BEEBLEE -
CBITHEBEARAARG ZEET

ﬂﬁ"?@ & R M e s 1A o

THRE

FMATRABEERRAERNEAZ
B ATIE R FER ABRFE -

REHEK AT EZ 2B E
THER(BRENESRRELEM
fﬁ%’ﬁlﬁ TH?EEE BENARAT#
BRERERBEZEBLY) RECHE
m%‘Jﬂ—/fBﬂ%E%ﬁﬁg$*‘|’E o

ZTEZOFHR 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

116

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible loan notes containing debt and derivative
components

A conversion option that will be setfled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Group's own equity
instruments is a conversion optfion derivative.

At the dafe of issue, both the debt component and derivative
component are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible loan notes
carried af amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion fo their relative fair values. Transactions costs
relating to the derivative component are charged fo profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relafing fo the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bond using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-T

FEUBRRME
“mE+= A=+ —ALFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXE:HREER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible loan nofes containing equity component

The component parfs of the convertible loan notes are
classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be seffled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
[including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium account. Where the conversion opfion remains
unexercised at the maturity dafe of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will remain in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion fo the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly fo equity. Transaction cosfs relating fo
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

118

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition,/modification of financial liabilifies

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rafe, is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. The above said fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other's behalf. Accordingly, such modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any cosfs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is considered
as non-substantial modification when such difference is less
than 10 per cent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition,/modification of financial liabilifies

(Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified confractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in
profit or loss at the dafe of modification.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a firstin, first
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental cosfs directly
atfributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

(k)

120

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(a)  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
shortterm cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
fransferred fo the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the custfomer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creafes or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

O the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed fo date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
confrast, a receivable represents the Group's uncondifional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A confract liability represents the Group's obligation to
fransfer goods or services fo a cusfomer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A confract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
confract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Further details of the Group's revenue recognition policies
are as follows:

(i) Sales of Chinese health products

Revenue from sales of Chinese health products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods is fransferred, being delivery of the goods to
the cusfomers.

(i) Inferest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding af the applicable interest rate.

(iii)  Sales of investment in financial instruments

Revenue from investment in financial instruments
includes realised fair value gains or losses on trading
investment on a trade date basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

122

(h

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income and expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rafes
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statfements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assefs are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred fax assefs and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and as the fime of the transaction does
not give rise fo equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognifion of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
fax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised fo
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to ufilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected fo reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

Taxation (Continved)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is seftled or the assef is realised, based on fax rafes
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, fo recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
fransactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
defermines whether the tax deductions are aftributable fo the
rightof-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
affributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities, and the
related assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred
tax asset related fo lease liabilities to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred fax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assefs against
current fax liabilities and when they relafe to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

124

(m)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entfity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency [i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are refranslated af the rafes prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monefary ifem is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit
or loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary ifems that
are measured in ferms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setlement of monetfary

items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continved)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are franslated info the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the exchange rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses are
franslated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange

fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation aftributable fo the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assefs
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or affer 1 January 2005 are treated as assefs and
liabiliies of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing af the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

126

(n)
(1)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans including
the LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
the cost of providing benefits is defermined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out af he end of each annual reporting
period. In determining the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations and the related
current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, the Group attributes benefit to periods
of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However,
if an employee's service in lafer years will lead to o
materially higher level of benefit than earlier years,
the Group affributes the benefit on a straightline basis
from:

(o) the date when service by the employee first
leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not
the benefits are conditional on further service)
until

(b)  the date when further service by the employee
will lead to no material amount of further
benefits under the plan, other than from further
salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes fo the asset ceiling [if
applicable) and the return on plan assefs (excluding
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income s reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be
reclassified fo profif or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continved)

(i)

Retirement benefit cost (Continued)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (inc|udmg current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and seftlements):

L4 net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group's
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from
this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plans or reductions in future contributions to
the plans.

Discretionary confributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of
these confributions fo the plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

128

(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

(1)

Retirement benefit cost (Continued)

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there
will be contributions from employees or third parties,
the accounting depends on whether the confributions
are linked to service, as follows:

° If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example confributions are required to reduce
a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or
from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the nef defined benefit liability
or assef.

e If contributions are linked to services, they
reduce service costs. For the amount of
contribution that is dependent on the number
of years of service, the Group reduces service
cost by attributing the confributions to periods of
service using the affribution method required by

HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be offset
as a deemed employee contribution towards the
LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it
is measure on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined affer deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group's MPF confributions that have
been vested with employees, which are deemed fo
be contributions from the relevant employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continved)

(ii)

(iii)

Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All shortterm employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid. Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
ferm employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected
to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except fo the extent that
another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
resfructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(o)

130

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted fo employees

Equity-sefiled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-seftled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking info
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises ifs estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with @ corresponding adjusiment to the share option reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited affer
the vesting date or are sill not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be fransferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions affaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and fransferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related asses.

Government grants related fo income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support fo
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “Other income, gains and
losses, net”.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

132

(r

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to setile the present obligation
af the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
fo seftle the present obligation, ifs carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the

fime value of money is material).

Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets

Contingent assefs arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits fo the Group and they are not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
continually the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from
past events but is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to setile the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and if
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the exiremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EXREFERXRER (&)

(Continued)

()  Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

[i)  has confrol or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

[)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associafe or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

[iv)  One entity is a joinf venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

[v/  The enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related fo the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

() Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

(t)

(vi)  The entity is confrolled or joinfly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the enfity or is a member of key

management personne| of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity);

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company's

parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, service

or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected fo influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on hisforical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinved)

(i)

136

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and rightofuse assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are sfated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In defermining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, partficularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. VWhen it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset [including rightof-use assefs), the Group esfimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assefs belong, including allocation of corporate assefs
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
af the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assefs have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amountfs.

As at 31 December 2024, impairment losses of HK$nil
(2023: nil) and HK$796,000 (2023: HK$321,000)
in respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assefs have been recognised respectively. Details of
the impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
15 and 16 to the

of-use assets are disclosed in Notes
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinved)

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s unlisted
equity securities amounting to HK$576,000 (2023:
HK$559,000) are measured at fair value with fair value
being defermined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating fo these factors could result in material adjustments
to the fair value of these instruments. Defails are sef out in
Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses necessary fo make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe indusiry cycle.
The directors of the Company reassess the estimations at the
end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

138

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinved)

(iv)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL
on frade receivables which are not assessed individually
using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on
aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking
into consideration the Group's historical default rates
and forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forwardooking information
are considered.

The Group assesses whether the probability of default on
a loan receivables or other receivables at the end of the
reporting period has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information including
historical and forward-looking information which is available
without undue cost or effort. The Group calculates ECL
allowance for loan receivables and other receivables based
on the estimated probability of default of counterparties with
similar credit ratings, with adjustment to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The ECL assessment on trade and other receivables
and loan receivables involves significant management
judgements and estimates on credit risk assessment, the
uses of models and inputs in the calculation of ECL af the
reporting datfe. Defails of ECL assessment are disclosed in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities for
the year is as follows:

WARDEHRE
ERAEEAREEEBEET KADK
m

2024 2023
—EWE —EZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Revenue from contracts with customers REBUEREERE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15: HERAZEFEHWA :
Trading of BB
— Chinese health products — PERER 112,832 129,523
Revenue from other sources: HAeb R A -
— Money lending business — WEER 1,131 10,656
— Investment in financial instruments — RESHBIA (388) 6,138
743 16,794
113,575 146,317
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts HREBEFSHNWRASTHEZS
with customers
Timing of revenue recognition from contracts ~ TEFRR B & P & A 2 B [H
with customers
— At a point in fime — R—ERHEE 112,832 129,523

The Group detfermines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”)
that are used fo make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable and operating segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and requires different business strategies.
The following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

e Chinese health products: sale of Chinese health products

e Money lending business: granting loans

. Investment in financial instruments: investing in financial
instruments

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no intersegment sales in both years.
Corporate income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss that is used by the CODM for assessment
of segment performance.

AEERBHEFELRRE [AFES
REE ) MERRAUELREREZ RE

BEREBELNE -

AREBA=ZER RERKELDE - &0 E
BYER JTHRSEBRAETAER -

AHEETRLBHEE A THRAER
SETRED W2 LHEY

e FERER: PERBMEE

DERAEIRBEIEBEL ZHA - KRR E
FEMESMEHE - AR QB A K
XAERFAEFEELRREFGEDBRE
RHER 27 B M kB R ER - AL &

PRELEDH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continuved) 6. BWARDBHRE (&)

(a) Segment revenue and results (o) DEUMARFEE
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE_Z_NFE+-A=t—HLHF
E

Chinese Money  Investment

health lending in financial
products business  instruments Total

Sk - REESH
REm - RERER IR et

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FHET

Revenue from external customers Zha8% P WA 112,832 1,131 (388) 113,575
Segment loss before B PT1S B¢ AT 29 P
income fax E518 (6,049) (10,162) (6,410) (22,621)
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE_T_=F+_HA=+—HIF
E
Chinese Money Investment
health lending in financial
products business  instruments Total
&% RETH
PR 62 an BIE R TH #Et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THET THET THT

Revenue from external customers Zha8E 2 WA 129,523 10,656 6,138 146,317

Segment profit/(loss) before FRETIS LRI 9 &
income tax Al (E518) 3,192 (115,859 (5,677)  (118,344)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 6.

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

WAR D EBEHE (4)
() ZEYAREE(E)

2024 2023

—E-MEF —T =4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FHT

Reportable segment loss Al RE D EpE R (22,621) (118,344)
Loss on substantial modification of ATBMBREREEREXN

convertible loan notes 1B5T 2 B8 (6,300) -

Unallocated finance costs ROMREE KA (4,399) (5,534)

Unallocated corporate expenses RAORAFFAZ

— Staff costs — BIRA (2,581) (5,362)

— legal and professional fee — ERENEXREA (448) (415)

— Others — Hit (3,679) (2,404)

Consolidated loss before income tax BrPTS R Rl AR A B 1R (40,028) (132,059)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continuved) 6.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b)

WAR DR E (&)
THMEERER

142

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

AT RAEBERAREDFE D 2E

liabilities by reportable segment: ERBBEZON:
2024 2023
—®_NF —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Segment assets PHEE
— Chinese health products — RERIER 75,206 88,690
— Money lending business — MEFHS 8,760 17,647
— Investment in financial instruments —RESBMITA 35,591 40,441
Segment assefs DEEE 119,557 146,778
Unallocated corporate assefs RAOBAREE
— Cash and cash equivalents — HekReEEY 138 992
— Derivative financial assets — TEEREE 2,200 -
— Other (Note) — Efb(ffat) 151 1,900
Consolidated total assets e BEEEE 122,046 149,670
2024 2023
—E-WEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Segment liabilities PEEE
— Chinese health products — PERER 45,314 50,070
— Money lending business — MEX® 806 1,290
— Investment in financial instruments —RESBMIT A 20,586 17,883
Segment liabilities DEBEE 66,706 69,243
Unallocated corporate liabilities ANRAFERE
— Convertible loan notes — AR ERER 14,300 72,239
— Bonds payable — BiES 49,000 =
— Others (Note) — HApth (ffaE) 10,420 3,790
Consolidated total liabilities e BEEs 140,426 145,272

Note: Other unallocated corporate assets and liabilities include
certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments, certain
other payables and accrual charges and deferred tax

liabilities.
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6.

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WMARDHBBRE &)
Other segment information included in segment ) PBEESITFEEZ2H M
results or segment assets &8
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_FE-_NFE+-A=t+—-HLHF
E
Chinese Money  Investment
health lending in financial
products business instruments  Unallocated Total
hE RE&
RER  BEXK $RIA A st
HK$'000  HK$§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEx TRz THT TR
Inferest expenses FIEFS 2,095 - 1,805 4,399 8,299
Depreciation of property, Nk BERRIERE
plant and equipment 329 - - - 329
Depreciation of rightofuse assets ~ (FFREEENE 6,841 - - - 6,841
Impaiment loss on rightofuse assefs & FIEE E R EREE 796 - - - 796
Impairment loss on loan W E SR EREFE
receivables, net = 2,350 = = 2,350
Fair value loss on financial assets & AF Bt Az
at FVIPL, net JEMEE
ZATEEREE - - 4,187 - 4,187
Employee costs [including BEEAT(BHEESEME)
directors’ remuneration| 19,408 6,977 - 2,581 28,966
Additions fo property, REDE  BERRE
plant and equipment 257 - - - 257
Additions o right-ofuse assets NEFREEE 7,098 = = = 7,098
Other segment information MEREEREEEH
regularly provided to CODM: Rt Bt D EER -
Income tax [credit]/expense s (Ke),/ X - - (1,061) 1,314 253
PESEREERERARN —E MR 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

144

(c)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WARDHBRE &)
Other segment information included in segment c) PWBEBEHTHBEEZH Mo
results or segment assets (Continued) B8 (E)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HILF
E
Chinese Money Investment
health lending in financial
products business instruments  Unallocated Total
& RE
wiEgm  HEXK  ERIA ROHR st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL THT THT
Inferest expenses FEHY 2,079 - 1,380 5,534 8,093
Depreciation of property, nE  BERRERE
plant and equipment 383 = = = 383
Depreciation of rightofuse assets ~ HREEENE 5,232 - - - 5,232
Impairment loss on rightofuse assets (£ A EREERE 321 = = = 321
Impairment loss on loan W E SR EREFE
receivables, net - 107,469 - - 107,469
Fair value loss on financial assets A TFER A&
at FVTPL, net JEMEE
ZATHEERTE = = 10,344 = 10,344
Employee costs (including EEXT(BHEEEME)
directors’ remuneration| 20,215 16,841 - 5,362 42,418
Additions o property, NENFE - WERRE
plant and equipment 191 = = = 191
Additions to rightofuse assets NERRELE 6,978 = = = 6,978
Other segment information MEREEREETH
regularly provided to CODM: R EMDHEH :
Income fax expense/(credi) i EAC:R) - 2,696 - (197) 2,499
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 6. WMARDHHRSE &)
(d) Geographical information (d) HEER
Information about the Group's revenue from external RIR & B H S E m (T E P B
cusfomers and non-current assets by geographical region, EFTEM RN R S E - GEAKER
according to location of operations or the location which BINRREP 2 WA NERE EEE R
the products are delivered and the location of assefs, is as (N
follows:
Revenue Non-current assets (Note (i))
WA FRBEE (ME())
2024 2023 2024 2023
—RoME —T-o-F ZB-ONFE —T-o-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT TR FHETT
Hong Kong (Note (i) B (B 72 (i) 113,575 146,317 7,371 7,984
Note: Hiat -
(i) Excluding financial instruments. (i) TBEemMIA-
(i) Revenue from interest income and sale of financial (i) FEWAREEEMTEZIIATY
instruments are disclosed by location of operations. R BRI FE o
(e) Information on major customers: ) EEEFZEH:

No external customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for both years.

R

RMEFEAREIBEFRERMASE
BUWABDZ AL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7 HARA - KRS
—E-DF —Eo=&

HK$000 HK$/000

FART FAR

Fair value loss on financial assets
at FVTPL, net

Loss on substantial modification of
convertible loan notes

Loss on written off of property,

BAFEFABZZEMEEZ

AP EBRTE (4,187) (10,344)

AREERRREXN

B3 2 B 1R (6,300) =

WEME - BERREBER

plant and equipment (2) (2)
Others HAi 8 179
(10,481) (10,167)
8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KBRFIBHAIEIE
loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRATIS BRI ES 1 TS BR T 2B IBIRIGH
2024 2023
—EWE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 70,759 79,374
Auditors’ remuneration % S 60 BN & 900 1,300
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% - WEREREBITE
equipment 329 383
Depreciation of rightof-use assets FREEENE 6,841 5,232
Employee costs (excluding directors’ BEKA(TEBEEZEHE)
emoluments) (Note 13) (BaE13) 19,875 23,357
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) EE=Me (B 14) 9,091 19,061
Shortterm leases expenses T HAE S A 1,690 2,268
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 9. BMERA

2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Inferest on borrowings BEEFR S 3,218 2,737
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERB 682 722
Interest on convertible loan notes AR E R EE A B 4,399 5,534
8,299 8,993

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTEFHBEX

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the estimated
assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any
part of the estimated assessable profits over HK$2,000,000.
No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the Company's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for both years as they either did not
derive any assessable profits from Hong Kong or had esftimated
tax losses brought forward to offset against the estimated
assessable profifs.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is
25% for both years.

No Enferprise Income Tax has been provided as the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC did not derive any assessable profits from
the PRC for both years.

R

BANEGRIREFERBENRZ A
BETZAAZ N \B - HERMEERTG
MEB—_Ba8ETcEMBoZED Z
TARBAFE -BRMEFEARRZE
AMBARYARBBEEETMNERT G
Mo AR EGEHRRERAEHEMGE
b A A R ZFRBIELEE
FIS i -

BIEREARLFMBE ([REA]) CEMEH
E(EEMBRE]) RECEMBRER
1% FREMBARRMEFEZHREY
BEAAZ=_tH-

AR AR E 2 B 8 A B R fE 4 E
AR BEEEEAERTEHN - Bt R
EHEEMEHERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Confinved)

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated statement

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

10. FREHMAX (&)
FEBREREMEEKRERAZAEHA

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents: X &I
2024 2023
—2omE —E=HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERMFH
— Overprovision in respect of prior years — REFEBEREE (1,061) =
Deferred tax BRI IR
— Charge for the year — FAXH 1,314 2,499
Income tax expense PSR X 253 2,499

The income fax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

FAMEHALER
W KRR 2RISR BE RN T ¢

meBaMEMEE

2024 2023
—®_NF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Loss before income tax TSR R E 18 (40,028) (132,059)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax RERBE (Ao EH)
rate of 16.5% AEZBIA (6,605) (21,790)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Hi iR e EZ B A A
operating in other jurisdictions TR R 2 Z & (17) (18)
Tax effect of income not faxable for AW A Z I8
fax purposes (4) (1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEHBFA 2 TR E
for tax purposes 805 439
Overprovision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (1,061) =
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences % #E 58 7] 1 &
nof recognised ERBBEE (11) 12
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ANERRBBE BB E 7,146 24,455
Utilisation of tax losses previously PHREAMAERZ BHIEEE
not recognised = (598)
Income tax expense PRS2 253 2,499
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11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

11.

The directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the

year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

12.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable fo

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

iR B

EETEBNREBZ_T_MNF+_H
St ALFEZEARE(ZT =%
&) -

BRER
RDFEAEAEESRERRE AT
RIBA T BB

2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Loss for the year affributable fo owners of RAUGTEERERNREEEE
the Company used in the basic and RARERANEEZFAEBR
diluted loss per share calculations (40,281) (134,558)
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
Number of shares gl 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary RN EERERREEEE Y
shares for the purposes of basic and TR F A
diluted loss per share 770,480,836 770,480,836

The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not

assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible

loan notes since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease

in loss per share.

R

RAEFEz8RETERZAELER
RARBHARBRAIBEERZBECES
B RACHEBRRETE/SEHERER
BFTRD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Employee costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) comprise:

13. BERAE
RERA(TREEEMS) 0F

2024 2023

—ENF —E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T BT

Basic salaries and discrefionary bonus EARFH & MBIBIEA 18,813 21,498
Other staff benefits Hib 8 THEF 150 896
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RONRE A ET B3R 912 Q63
19,875 23,357

There was no forfeited confribution under any defined contribution

refirement plans available which may be used by the Group to

reduce the existing level of contributions, nor any contribution

under any defined confribution retirement plans was forfeited
by the Group during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

14. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 14.

EMOLUMENTS

(a)

150

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to

REBEE_ZTE_NFER-_ZT-_=F+=A
=+ RALIEFE  NEBEWESUWATMA A
AR BAKIR A FKFE 2 E R HFUR ARG
BIF 2 INEAE A E B KRR ETE

T2 KB -

EEREREBAEZHE

(o) EZEME

ENEEMNARRRES 2B E AR

the directors of the Company are as follows: N
2024 2023
—EWE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Directors' fee EF58e 3,230 12,520
Basic salaries and discrefionary bonus EXRFH & RMIBIEA 5,802 6,487
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR K48 F| 5121 £ 3¢ 59 54
9,091 19,061

No emoluments have been paid by the Group fo the
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continved)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Confinued)

The emolument of each director for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:

4. EERESREBAEZHME ©)

o) EEBE(®

BIEFEZBMeHIIMT

Basic
salaries Retirement
and benefits
discretionary scheme
Name of director EEn Fees bonus  contributions Total
EXFHER BAIKRER
we [R=REEAN Bt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive directors HITES
M:r. lei Hong Wai THELE 760 1,000 - 1,760
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REELE 760 - - 760
Mr. leung Alex RINE 120 2,970 18 3,108
Ms. lo Ming Wan SRRt 120 584 13 717
Mr. Tse Chi Keung B ®REE
[Resigned on 30 September 2024) (R=—ZT-_mF
NAZ=ZTHEE) 90 1,248 14 1,352
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia REBELE 1,020 - 14 1,034
Independent non-executive BIUFHITES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim MBS L 120 — = 120
M. Lien Wai Hung EEELE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen mEGLE
[resigned on 1 July 2024) (N=—ZE_mE
+ A—B#HE) 60 - - 60
Mr. Tsang Chin Pang RIS L
(Appointed on 1 July 2024 (RZZ-mF
+A—BEZE) 60 - - 60
3,230 5,802 59 9,091

On 27 January 2025, Mr. Yang Qiang Sheng was
appointed as an executive director.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Llei Hong
Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton voluntarily waived
their entitlement to the director’'s emoluments amounted fo
approximately HK$3,420,000 and HK$3,420,000,
respectively (2023: nil and nil).

RZZE_RF—A=-+tH HGEBLE
ERITEHNITES -

HE-_ZT_NF+-_A=+—HLLFE "
THBRAEERREELSED R BBEKRESE
EMeH=—AanNt+ AT E=0+=
EBT(ZE=F: ERE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continved)

(a)

(b)

152

Directors’ emoluments (Confinued)

The emolument of each director for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

14 EEREREBAEZHE (@)

(a)

EE=ME (@)

ZEEREBEE_ZT _=F+—-A4
—t—HIEFEZBMESHENOT :

Basic
salaries Retirement
and benefits
discretionary scheme
Name of director EEHE Fees bonus  confributions Total
EXFHe Rk RIRET
e BB EAL FTEI K et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T T T FHT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai THELE 4,940 - - 4,940
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton ok B{E o A& 4,940 - - 4,940
Mr. leung Alex RIRE & 120 3,510 18 3,648
Ms. lo Ming Wan SRRE Rt 120 Q49 18 1,087
Mr. Tse Chi Keung ENEE: Ve 120 2,028 18 2,166
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia RIBELAE 1,920 - - 1,620
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
M:r. Lai Hok Lim REEESE A 120 - - 120
Mr. Llien Wai Hung EEREEE 120 = = 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen mERTE 120 = = 120
12,520 6,487 54 19,061
Five highest paid individuals b) EUESHFMAL

Five (2023: five) directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in the analysis presented above were among the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HE R -
MEHRE HERRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHET
At 1 January 2023 RZEBE_=F—HF—H
Cost BN Q12 1,268 2,180
Accumulated impairment RETRE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation REE (278) (844) (1,122)
Net carrying amounts ARMEHEE 464 212 676
Net carrying amounts at RZZE=Z=F—H—H
1 January 2023 ZERHEFE 464 212 676
Additions NE - 191 191
Depreciation charge WESH (270) (113) (383)
Written off b6 = (2) (2)
Net carrying amounts at RZFB_=F+"-RF=+—H
31 December 2023 ZERMEFE 194 288 482
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+=HA=+—H
Cost DN Q12 Q70 1,882
Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation ZEtin e (548) (470) (1,018)
Net carrying amounts AREDFHE 194 288 482
Net carrying amounts at RZZEZMF—H—H
1 January 2024 Z BREFE 194 288 482
Additions NE 161 %6} 257
Depreciation charge wELH (251) (78) (329)
Written off i sH = (2) (2)
Net carrying amounts at RZZE_ME+-_A=+—H
31 December 2024 ZERHEFE 104 304 408
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_WF+=-_A=+—H
Cost AR 1,073 577 1,650
Accumulated impairment 25HRE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation 2FtinE (799) 61) (860)
Net carrying amounts FREDFE 104 304 408
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ-_MNE&+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved) 15. 1% - BERKE #)

154

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, due fo confinued
losses for several refail shops of the Chinese health products segment,
the directors of the Company considered there was indication for
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with carrying amount of HK$180,000 (2023: HK$188,000) and
HK$4,223,000 (2023: HK$2,534,000) respectively. The Group
esfimates the recoverable amount of those refail shops, each representing
a CGU, to which the assets belong when it is not possible fo estimate their
recoverable amount individually, including allocation of corporate assets
when reasonable and consistent basis can be established.

The recoverable amount of CGUs was based on the value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors of the Company covering a five-
year period, and pretax discount rate of 14% (2023: 13%). Other key
assumption for the value in use calculation relates fo the estimation of
cash flows which include budgeted sales, such esfimation is based on the
CGUs' past performance and the directors’ expectations for the market
development. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year period is 2.5% (2023: 2%), which do not exceed the long-
ferm growth rate for the industry in the corresponding country. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised impairment loss
of HK$nil (2023: HK$nil) and HK$796,000 (2023: HK$321,000)
on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assefs respectively as
the carrying amounts of these assefs exceeded the recoverable amount
at 31 December 2024. As the carrying amounts of these assets have
been reduced to their recoverable amounts, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in
further impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of refail shops, offices and warehouses
for its operations. lease contracts are entered info for fixed ferm
of 1to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years). lease terms are negofiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Cerfain leases of retail shops comprise variable lease payments
that depends on the original monthly sales of those retail shops if
the amounts are higher than the original monthly rental. The rest of
the leases comprise only fixed payments over the lease terms.

16.

HE
HMEEB 2 HE (UAEBAF D)

AEBRELBERELEASTEEH  HA
EREE-BEANNE—ZEZ=F2Z2EE
FHITY (T _=F: —Z2=F) -HE
IR IR E R A % - BEA T RIER
KA - REE T & 16K & 51 1 o] sk 88
HEsEER AEEERANERLE
EAH ] b TT 2 #AfE -

ETTEENEERmIARENR &
SR RIRN LS T EEBA A LW
B (R ESRNGARRS) - BT
S EENRBRZ BEMK -

2024 2023
—B-oQmEF —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Buildings leased for own use, carried EERRGHEE 2 EF
at depreciated cost (BRI ERATIER) 6,963 7,502

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in
W p 9
profit or loss is as follows:

BAEBRTHERACHEABZATERE D
ManE

2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT

Variable lease payments not included in AT AHEGBTHEZ
the measurement of lease liabilities FEIHEMR 130 309
Shortterm lease expenses HHHERY 1,690 2,268

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 December

2024 was HK$9,673,000 (2023: HK$9,933,000).

R

HE-_Z-_WME+-_A=+—BLLtEE~Z
HEREREEBEAENEB AT EE=ZTH
T(ZE-=F: NAL+t=E=FEFx) °
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved) 16. HE (&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HEEBZ2ME (UEBEASH) (&)
(Continued)
Future rental payments relating to leases not yet commenced to BEAEER _T_NER-_T_=F+=
which the Group is committed as af 31 December 2024 and A=+—BHEAmERRBZEHERHZ
2023 are as follows: ARRBESRRAT

Later than
one year and

Not later than not later than
one year two years Total
BB—F
THEB—F BLOREF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZE_MOFE+_-_A=+—H
Retail shop TEEW - - -
At 31 December 2023 R-ZEBE_=F+-_A=+—H
Retail shop TEEH 876 876 1,752
lease of refail shops are either with only fixed lease payments TEEMCHERGEEHENKSEER
or contain variable lease payment that are based on 8% to 16% BREBRARHEERBIZN\EBESZTR(Z
(2023: 8% to 16%) of monthly gross sales and minimum lease T_=F BHAZN\EBAHZTRNIGHEZ
payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment ferms are AIBAENR MEREEENKRIDNEE
common in retail shops in Hong Kong where the Group operates. HAETE AEBEMEECEETEER
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable 2GR - FRE N A HEE L
fo relevant lessors during the year are as follows: BAZEERTEESNREBEHIINT

156 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

16.

HE (&)
HEEB 2 HE (UEBAFRD) (8)

BE-ZE_NF+-A=1+—HLFE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments
EHBE  BEEMR  ARMR (ARAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET TR

Retail shops without variable lease 3 #& 7] # 30 & 1F 58 2

payments ZEEH 1 878 - 878

Retail shops with variable lease REAEHENRZ
payments TEEH 9 5,044 130 5,174
10 5,922 130 6,052

For the year ended 31 December 2023

He=E==rt= H=—H|EEE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments
JEH8E ERENEA AJ R (NE/SEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THETT

Retail shops without variable lease 3 f& B] B30 & 58,2

payments TEEH 1 781 = 781
Retail shops with variable lease REAEHENRZ

st TEES 9 4,479 309 4,788

10 5,260 309 5,569

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is RAENRGER 2 BBUBTERER

that higher rental costs are incurred by shop with higher sales. RatHER  ERELERSHEN K - &

Variable rent expenses are expected to continue fo represent @ Ha#r HeMXBEBRRNARKFEE

similar proportion of shop sales in future years.

R

JE#IHE R 2 LULL ) -
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

movements are as follows:

16. HE (&)
HEEB 2 HE (UAEBAERD) (&)

EREEE
AEBERBEEZREEREZFHWT

Buildings

BF

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 January 2023 R-ZE—_=F—H—H 6,077

Additions NE 6,978

Depreciation e (5,232)

Impairment (Nofe 15) BB (B 15) (321)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZBE_=F+-A=+—HK

—E-mF—H—H 7,502

Additions VN 7,098

Depreciation e (6,841)

Impairment (Note 15) WA (1t 15) (796)

At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_WFE+=—A=+—H 6,963
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities and the
movements are as follows:

16. & (&)
HEEE
AEEHERBEZREEREZFHNT

Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%—H—H 7,595
Additions NE 6,978
Inferest expense M EF X 722
lease payments HE K (7,356)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R-BE-_=F+-_A=+—H8BXK
—FEZMNFE—-HA—H 7,939
Additions NE 7,098
Inferest expense FERAX 682
lease payments HE R (7,853)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-—WFE+=—A=+—H 7,866
Future lease payments are as follows: ARKREERNTKAT :
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Interest  lease payments
BEHEE
REEENK FI 2 FRBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2024 R-FB-_NFE+=-A=+—H FHET FHET FHET
Within 1 year —F R 5,734 (512) 5,222
More than 1 year but A —FELRWF
less than 2 years 2,462 (135) 2,327
More than 2 years but HEMFELRESF
less than 5 years 330 (13) 317
8,526 (660) 7,866
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved) 16. HE (&)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEE®#E)
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Interest  lease payments
xEHEE
SEBERK A 3R E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2023 RZEBZ=F+=HA=+—H FET FHET FHET
Within 1 year —FR 6,262 (472) 5,790
More than 1 year but il —FELRME
less than 2 years 2077 (89) 1,988
More than 2 years but HEMFELREF
less than 5 years 164 (3) 161
8,503 (564) 7,939
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: AEEENKZRESTAT :
2024 2023
—EF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Current liabilities mEla & 5,222 5,790
Non-current liabilities FEMBEE 2,644 2,149
7,866 7,939
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the incremental HE-_ZEZ_WF+_A=1+—"BILFE "
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities range from 7.00% to ERREEABZEEBERMNENFES
11.00% (2023: 5.95% to 11.00%). ZTEHTEERA T BT (ZE=F:

BAZEBNAEBSIZ T—HT) -

Total lease payment related to lease contract entered info between HE_ZT-_NWF+-_A=+—RHILFE "
the Group and a fellow subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of HAEBEARA—EZEFERRZ —HRA
the Company amounted to HK$ 1,540,000 for the year ended ZMBARMEIVEESNIEBEZEHER
31 December 2024 (2023: HK$1,656,000). HEmEA—BATHESL(ZE_=F:

—BATHREXRTET) °
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FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL 17. &8

2024 2023
—F-omEF —To=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Cost A 614 614
Accumulated impairment 25HEE 614 614
Net carrying amounts IREEE - =
Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at BBEFRAHUBZEERKER SRS
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that TR R EBEHER RS EEEMN -
business combination. For the purpose of impairment testing, cost FRERATS  MERAUKREEER
of goodwill and infangible assets with indefinite useful lives were AERFHEREESREE #FIH

allocated to CGU identified as follows: SELABMOT
Goodwill Intangible assets (Note 18)

BE BILEE (K2 18)

2024 2023 2024 2023

—E_NE o= ZEBENFg —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THT FET FHET
Cost 5%
— Chinese health products — FRE(REE M 614 614 5,094 5,094
Accumulated amortisation and R 5T 84 KB E
impairment
— Chinese health products — FRE(REE R 614 614 5,094 5,094
Net carrying amounts IRENEE - = - =
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

8. BILEE

Trademarks
[ELE
(Note)
(FfT5E)
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5%
1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, E/\\fg:_i A—H -—Z2-_=%+—A
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 =t+t—B -—ZEZ-_MWM&F—AF—HK
—EoNF+_HA=+—H 5,094
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt #ERRE
1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, RZE—_=F—HA—H8 —ZT_=F
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +ZA=+—H8 -ZZ-_mF—A—HK
—E_F+=-—A=+—H (5,094)

Net carrying amounts
At 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2024

BREF{E
A—E_=F+_A=+—HK
—E-mME+-A=+—H

Note:

The useful lives of trademarks, which were acquired through the acquisition
of the Group’s Chinese health products business, are estimated by the
directors of the Company fo be indefinite as the trademarks are renewable REBEREIBEARAZEGIE
Z-NETZA=T—HIEAEAERRZER

at insignificant cost at the option of the Group. Full impairment loss was
recognised during the nine months ended 31 December 2019

Hrat -

BEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES 19. BB AT
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December RZEZWNFR-FE_=F+=-A=1+—
2024 and 2023 are as follows: B ARBIZMBARFBHOT :
Place of Form of Particulars of
incorporation business issued share capital/ Effective
Name of subsidiary and operations structure registered capital percentage holding ~ Nature of business
AR BRIRE/
WEARER EXBE EBBREFA AR BEREREDL EBME
2024 2023
—E-RE -To=F
% %
Shares held directly:
EERAZRG
Future Empire Limited Britsh Virgin lslands ~ Corporce Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Invesiment holdings and
investing in financial
insfruments
Future Empire Limited HBEBREE AR AR 50,000%T REERNEESRIE
Ace Season Holdings Limited Britsh Virgin lslands ~ Corporce Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Invesiment holdings
Ace Season Holdings Limited AEARREE AF @R 1,000%T RE R
New Mind [Hong Kong) limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1 100 100 Investment holdings
el (&) ARAA &k NG LRRIET RERR
Hong Kong Healthwise Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK§ 1 100 100 Dormant
EARRRREARAR &h NG LRRET TEXB
Shares/investments held indirectly:
MERE RS/ RE:
Ulira Classic Invesiments Limited Britsh Virgin lslands ~ Corporce Ordinary US$1 100 100 Invesiment holdings
Ulia Classic Investments Limited AEABRREE AF LTERI%T RE R
Good Cheer Global Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1 100 100 Money lending business
Good Cheer Clobal Limited &k NG LRRIET BEXH
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES (Confinved) 19. BT (&)
Place of Form of Particulars of
incorporation business issued share capital/ Effective
Name of subsidiary and operations structure registered capital percentage holding ~ Nature of business
A LR BRTRE/
HWEARAE EXmA EBBREA AMEFHR ERBRAIL 344
2024 2023
“B-ME C-T-=F
% %

Shares/investments held indirectly:

MEREZ RS/ RE:

NPH Holdings Limited Biitish Virgin slonds ~ Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Investment holdings

NPH Holdings Limited ZEABREE AW LR 50,000% T REER

Poo Yuk Loong limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$350,000 100 100 Investment holdings

REEARAA &h NG LR 350,00087 RE R

NP H SinoMeditech Limited Hong Kong Corporale Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Investment holdings

BT ERARAF &b NG TRR2ET REER

Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1,200,000 100 100 Trading of Chinese hedlth
Company Limited producs

B T2ERNBRAT &R NG @R 1,200,000 PERRRES

Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen] The PRC Corporate Registered 100 100 Trading of Chinese health
Company Limited? RMB3,000,000 producs

REERM R BRAF e NG &R PERERES

AR 3,000,0007
g Limited liability company (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong Kong or # REBERY Y EREEAT (EEHAE -
Macau legal person) established in the PRC. FEH R RPTE ARE) o
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

20. BAVPEFABECZEHEE

2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — MNEE LT ZBRAES —
at fair value BAYFE
— Current portion (Nofe (a)) — REED (K itla)) 35,015 39,861
Unlisted equity securities JEETRRAFE S
— Non-current portion (Nofe (b)) — EREBIBD (M aE(b)) 576 559
35,591 40,420

Fair value of listed equity securities is defermined based on quoted
bid prices in the Stock Exchange. Fair value of unlisted equity
securities is defermined based on valuation using assetbased
approach.

As at 31 December 2024, a portfolio of listed equity
securities with carrying amount of HK$35,015,000 (2023:
HK$39,861,000) have been pledged to secure margin loans

from securities brokers (Note 26).

Note:

(@)  The equity securities are classified as financial assets at FVTPL as
they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
near term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking. Changes in their fair
values are recognised in profit or loss (Note 7).

(b)  Fair value of unlisted equity securities was determined based on
valuation using assetbased approach. Further details of fair value
measurement are disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
sfafements.

E IR 5 2 DR TR R B X P PR
BIREE - FLEMRAZFHFZAFETIR
BERBEEELMELERERE

RZE_NE+_A=+—H  EmEALX
BEAAEME=TEEZE B8R THETL
(ZBE—=F: =Z=Fha N+t A~E—FEFx)
ETHEE  UREBREBHELELZRER
B (HsE20) °

MrEE -

(o) BRBREABHFNEZREHANLEMEA -
FERARRRER ARG SHITAS
G2 —#n  BARBEENOHERRE
BAIBBERER OB RER ?@'ﬁ
ABRZEREE RFERLABEFZA
EZBNERNER L) °

b) ELETRAZBFZATFEIAEERER
ZHFETHEMEE - A FEEZE
— T HBENER S TS IRR MO WEE -
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
2024 2023
—E-WF ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Finished goods SURK 49,770 56,023

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no wrife-
down of inventories was recognised.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS

The carrying amounts of frade and other receivables, deposits and

RBEE_TE_—_NEER_ZTE_=F+_A
=T HIFE TEERMRGFEES -

22. BEREZRAREMEBYRRE &

EREMNRE

EWE ZERANEMEEFIE HE KA

prepayments are as follows: NFIEZREBEWT :

2024 2023

—ENEF —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 R 4,680 6,137
Less: allowance for ECL B TREE EEEEE (616) (616)
4,064 5,521

Deposits and other receivables e & H b E W FRIA 3,434 4,880
Prepayments TR FRIA 1,347 3,326
8,845 18,727
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continved)

(a)

(b)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of
allowance for ECL, based on invoice dates as of the end of
reporting period, is as follows:

22.

BHREZRAREMEWRRIE - &

ERBEMRE )
) ERBEREHRZERARZEK

BSERNRAREEEHERE) 2
RRECDATANT

2024 2023

—EF-NmE —T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

0-90 days ZEA+H 4,060 5517
91-180 days Nt+—HZ—A/\t+H 4 4
4,064 5,521

The Group's sales are on open account terms. Credit ferms
are reviewed on a regular basis. The normal credit terms
range from 30 to 90 days (2023: 30 to 90 days) but
business partners with strong financial backgrounds may be
offered longer credit terms.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no impairment
loss was recognised in respect of trade receivables (2023:
nil).

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's trade and other

receivables are disclosed in Note 38(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

R

PN
B

(b)

NEE 7 HEL ARG ET 12
BERReTHRT - EREEHNT
=tHENL+B (ZE=_=%: =+
BEA+R) BEHHEEZ ¥R
BEHUSRTREZEES-

BE_ZT_NWF+_A=+—HIHF
£ WEREWE S IR FER R EE
B(ZEZ=F 1 8&) o

B 78 512N 5 [ B B 5 B K S A e WK
HETRMEEBEFGZE—FTHEBR
iR B TS RER MY 5 38(a) R EE -

1
E
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. ERERR
The carrying amount of loan receivables from money lending BAKEREEREAZ RREREEE
business of the Group was as follows: R
2024 2023
—E_MEF —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTAT
loan receivables arising from money BRERBESE Z BBER
lending business 308,655 311,313
less: allowance for ECL, net (Nofe) B TBERE B E R EF R (M iE) (300,087) (294,218
8,568 17,095
Nofe: At -
2024 2023
—E_ME — S =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Accumulated allowance for ECL R—A—BZEHEE
as at 1 January B8 2 REH S 294,218 186,749
Allowance for ECL recognised, net ERERECEBEEEFE 2,350 107,469
Unwinding of discount AR RR BLIR 3,519 -
Accumulated allowance for ECL R+-—A=+—82
as at 31 December TEHEEEB 2 Rt #E 300,087 204,218
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, loan receivables are unsecured, RZF-_WNER—_E-_=F+-_A=+—H &
inferestbearing ranging from 8%—13% per annum. WESRREER RENENFADZNEAD
Z2t=3t8-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continved) 23. EWERK &)
The maturity profile of the loan receivables, net of allowance for RBEHRR  BRER (MR REREEBR
ECL, if any, at the end of the reporting period, analysed by the B (A))IREHETASIE R 2 FeR BIRR
remaining period fo its contracted maturity, is as follows: DT BBBERNT
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Within 1 year —F R 7,719 15,623
Over 1 vear B—F 849 1,472
8,568 17,095
Included in the loan receivables is a loan fo the ultimate holding BREFRBERARAA —BEERTD
Company of a substantial shareholder of the Company amounted BEERAGIRENERNEEBEZTNE
to approximately HK$7,092,000 (31 December 2023: —FAL(ZE=Z=F+=—A=+—8:
HK$8,858,000). NBNTHEBNATET) -
Farther details of ECL assessment on the Group's loan receivables ERAHASERUETETZRBEES
are disclosed in Note 38(a) to the consolidated financial B G2 E —PHFEREE P ERERME
statements. 38(a) #EFE ©
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, BERAEEEY
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Cash and bank balances e NIRITHEER 9,701 14,421

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group’s bank balances
are disclosed in Note 38(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

R

RITERBEEHN RS DHFEERLE
BRI 2 FE R ZIRIT ©

EREASERTERETIHEBEES

B2 £ — T HBRES B RRME
38(a) #EFE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 25. BERNESBRRRAEMEBENRBERE

CHARGES TEA
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TR
Trade payables FETE 5 BRR 18,069 23,268
Other payables and accrued charges H At e R KR e 5B A 15,421 10,159
33,490 33,427
The ageing analysis of frade payables, based on invoice dates as ERNBERENRIEZAHZRNES
of the end of reporting period, is as follows: BRRZREDITNT :
2024 2023
—ENEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
0-90 days ZENTH 17,930 23,129
91-180 days N+—BZE—B/N\+TH - =
181-365 days —BNA+—BE=BATHH - =
Over 365 days B=E/NthH 139 139
18,069 23,268
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. BERROTHEERR/RNLTRXK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

26. BORROWINGS 26. 1B E&
2024 2023
—E-EF ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Margin loans from securities brokers 2R B B H &L 42 < RE 2 E K 18,872 15,108
Other loan B ER 13,700 13,614
32,572 28,722

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had margin loans from
securities brokers of HK$18,872,000 (2023: HK$15,108,000).
The interest rates of margin loans range from 8% to 10% per
annum (2023: 8% to 10%) per annum, repayable on demand and
were secured by a portfolio of listed equity securities with carrying

amounts of HK$35,015,000 (2023: HK$39,861,000).

At 31 December 2024, the Group had other loan of
HK$ 13,700,000 (2023: HK$13,614,000). On 3 May
2024, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement with
the lender and was entitled to extend maturity date at the latest
to 16 May 2026, with the total revolving loan facilities up to
HK$20,000,000. The outstanding principal amount will be
payable at maturity. The related inferest is payable annually in
arrears on the last business day of every year after the drawdown
date of the first advance. For the period from 17 May 2024 to
the final repayment date, the other loan is inferestbearing at 12%
per annum (for the period from 17 May 2022 to 16 May 2024:
interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate (as quoted by the
designated bank| plus 4% per annum), secured by share charge
over issued shares in a subsidiary of the Group and guaranteed
by the Company. As the other loan contains a repayable on
demand clause, the entire outstanding balance of the other loan
was classified under current liabilities.

R

R-ZBE-ME+-—F=+—H  KA&EBEKH
BHELCRLZRESERBE—TNABNT+LE
E_FTAT(CE_=F: —FHE—T8
NTEL) -RESERZEFEMEN TN
EE+E (T -_=F: \EE+E) A
JEEREEZE YUFRME=TREAZ 58
AFET(ZE_=ZF: =ZFALENTE
—FBL) 2 EBRAFESHEE (ERA

RZZE-_NWF+—_A=+—H8 Zx5£EHE
HwBR—TFT=gttBB L (T =_=%F:
—F=ZBAT+T—BEFTET R
FRAA=ZH AEEHEERARHED
FO VARSI ERECE ST - AF
AATANE BERBEERATERS A
—FTEAET - MAEEASHERIHAX
- HENEARRREZEERBHES
FRE—AE¥AXN -B=ZFT-_HFA
BTtEEZRAEERS HMWEFIRF
BI2EFE(BEZE-_—FRAA++HE
“E-NFERA+AH RBAEBSREERF
KR (RETRITMHR SMEBAE L)
UAEBE —FHHBARZE TG 2K
DAL EET  YHARAFIREER- A
REMERE A EREREEKR  Hib
Bz 2 REBEHRIESBEARSARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities during the
year, without taking info consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, if any, were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

27. EFERIR

EEBIAEE -

FRECHELAERAEES (Tt RA—
Biis AR A IE S (0B 1 T -

Allowance
for ECL
on financial
assets
REmMEE
EHEE
EBEFTREZ
B
HK$'000
TFABT
At 1 January 2023 RZE_=F—fF—H 2,697
Charge fo profit or loss ERiEEaeilS (2,697)
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and R-ZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H "
31 December 2024 “E-pmWFE—-—A—BXK
—EoNE+-A=+—~” -
Deferred tax liabilities: BEEFIERE
Bonds Convertible
payable loan notes Total
I
EAES BRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT AT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE_=%—AF—H = 368 368
Credit fo profit or loss FFAET - (198) (198)
At 31 December 2023 and RZE-_=F+-"A=+—HEK
1 January 2024 —E-_WE—-HF—H = 170 170
Charge to profit or loss BB Mk 1,072 242 1,314
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_WFE+=-—A=+—H 1,072 412 1,484
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAX (Continved) 27. BEMIE (&)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following: W AEFLIA T B IBHERIELEN IR E E
2024 2023
—ENEF T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THIT

Deductible temporary differences B AR b S = R

— Accelerated tax depreciation — RFHIEITE 6,122 6,190
Unused fax losses RE)AHIEE 1S 466,633 423,322
472,755 429,512
Deferred tax assets are recognised for estimated tax losses BEMIAEE T A RN N & el E B
carry forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax AN R AT BE EE A 2 B ER B g M B2 3R T E AT A
benefits through future taxable profits are probable. The Group B2 EEAHEBEERR AXEEWLER
did not recognise deferred tax assets in respect of estimated A A B DA B R R B SR WA 2 i =TS 1R
losses amounting to approximately HK$466,633,000 (2023: HWORARTREBAT=ZB=TERL(ZZE
HK$423,322,000) that can be carried forward against future —=F OB FT=Z=AE=t=_8_=_F&L)
taxable income. All fax losses as at 31 December 2024 and BREEMBEBEE RN_ZT_WFE_F
2023 may be carried forward indefinitely. =+ A=+—B FMAHEEES

AR HIAEEE o
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&

Authorised
EE
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
BREETEXTZ
ARRTRETEEE LR BREESHE-BIZ2EER
Number of shares Number of shares
RO EE R & E
US$'000 '000 HK$'000
TET Tk TAT
At T January 2023, R=F==%—-f—A8-
31 December 2023, 1 January “RC=ET-A=T—H-
2024 and 31 December 2024 —ZZNE-A—BR
“Z-NF+-A=1+—H 40 4,000 150,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid
BERTRAR
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of
US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
EREETEERZ
ARRTRETEEE LR EREESYS-BIzEER
Number of shares Number of shares
ROHA REEE
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T=n T THT
At 1 January 2023, RZZ_=F-H—-8"
31 December 2023, 1 January —E-=F+-fA=1+—H"
2024 and 31 December 2024 “Z-MNE-A—-AK
—E-ME+-A=+—H = = 770,481 7,705
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates an new share option scheme (the
"New Share Option Scheme”| for the purpose of recognise and
acknowledge the confributions which the eligible participants have
made or may make fo the Group. The New Share Option Scheme
was adopted by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders on 15
August 2024 (the "Adoption Date”), constituted a New Share
Option Scheme govered under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The board of directors shall, subject to and in accordance with
the New Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be enfitled
(but shall not be bound) at any time and from time to time on any
trading day within a period of fen (10) years commencing on the
Adoption Date to make an offer fo the eligible participant as it
may in its absolufe discrefion select, and subject to conditions as
the board of directors may think fit, to subscribe for such number
of shares. An option may be exercised in whole or in part at
any time during the period fo be determined and notified by
the direcfors of the Company to the grantees thereof at the time
of making an offer to grant the share options to them, provided
that such period shall not exceed the period of ten (10) years
from the dafe of the grant of the particular optfion but subject to
the provisions for early termination contained in the New Share
Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares at any time under the New Share
Option Scheme, together with options and awards which may
be granfed under any other share schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not exceed such number of shares as equals
10% of the issued share capital of the Company (excluding
treasury Shares) as at the Adoption Date i.e. 77,048,083
shares [the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may seek
approval of the shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit and/or the service provider sublimit (shall
not exceed such number of shares as equals to 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (excluding treasury Shares) as at
the Adoption Date] under the New Share Option Scheme) after
three (3) years from the Adoption Date. The vesting period for the
options under the New Share Option Scheme shall be at least
twelve (12) months, the board of directors may at its discretion
grant a shorter vesting period to an employee participant, where
it relates to grants of options for an employee participant who is a
director of the Company and/or senior manager of the Company.

29.

R

BT E

ARARET R BAIAE S (38 RE
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AEBECDEHHAEELNER - HBK
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EHRAETEEEE 2B REES -

ESgRREBEFEBARETE R MR
EEARTERE (BERL) REA A ME
AT(10)FHMEARZERRS AR R
BRAREAEEENBEEEZAERS RS
REZH VEEEFSARRA//EZIK
HFTIREAEIRE <BD - BEREAIRA
REABEFERBREAR AR BREE

BHREE MBANBBEARAZBE
NEER 2 KA D 1TE - HEZBARETFEB
B R E BB A B AR ET 1 (10) FHIR -
WA BRIE SIMEEBIRAR L
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LR EARRBE R 2 A E ARy 5t &l A
RNz BRERER TREBEER
RMBAMARREBHTRA (TREER
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NTEN+ =B (T5HEIREREED -
AARARRMEPES =)FREK
RAE LSRRI ETHABRXERE
&/ S BR% R4 E D IRRE (RIBEH B E
AEINSHEERERRKABBRARREH
TR (T EEEFED) 1% 2RNHEBE) -
MEREASETEREZRBHAZD
BTZ(2EA EFE (WFRRAR/ER
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29.

30.

176

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved)

The subscription price for the shares under the New Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the board of directors in
its discretion, but shall be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a frading
day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five (5)
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares on the date of grant. A
nominal consideration of HK$ 1 is payable for each of the share
opfions granted.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled

during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no outstanding

share options under New Share Option Scheme.

RESERVES
The Group

The natures and purposes of reserves are sef out below:

Share premium

Under the Companies Llaw (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Arficles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions or dividend
payments, the Company is able fo pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Convertible loan notes — equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible loan nofes relafing fo
the equity component (i.e. option fo convert the debt into share
capital).

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy sef out in Note 4(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Retained profits/accumulated losses

It represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES (Continved) 30. ®RE#E)
The Company b /N
Convertible
Share loan notes —  Accumulated

premium equity reserve losses Total
CIE: Y1
EREE —

IR 13 % B R #E RitEBR st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET THETT

At 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=F—H—H 112,976 19,835 (71,558) 61,253
loss for the year FREE - - (65,029) (65,029)
At 31 December 2023 and AR =F+-_A=1+—H

1 January 2024 N—_Z—pmFE—-HF—H 112,976 19,835 (136,587) (3,776)
loss for the year FREE = - (55,052) (55,052)
lapse of convertible loan notes AT AR B R #5 2R 20 - (19,835) 19,835 -
Issuance of convertible BT R E R E R

loan notes - 17,500 - 17,500
At 31 December 2024 R_ZE-_mNFE+—-_A=1+—H 112,976 17,500 (171,804) (41,328)
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31. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 31. R MEMRR R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2024 2023
“E-mEF ZE=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries PN Fo 37,033 76,398
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZ
TRIEE 576 559
37,609 76,957
Current assets REEE
Derivative financial assets THESRMEE 2,200 -
Prepayments TR RIA 151 1,901
Cash and cash equivalents RBe MR EEY 137 991
2,488 2,892
Current liabilities REIEE
Other payables and accrued charges — E &S5 IE R FERTE A 8,936 3,511
Convertible loan notes AR EREE - 72,239
8,936 75,750
Net current liabilities RBEEFEE (6,448) (72,858)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 31,161 4,099
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible loan notes AR B R E IR 14,300 -
Bonds payable FERH & 49,000 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 1,484 170
64,784 170
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) EEFRE (33,623) 3,929
EQUITY e
Share capital N 28 7,705 7,705
Reserves {1 30 (41,328) (3,776)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (EAEA) BRERE (33,623) 3,929
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REETex= .
Lei Hong Wai Leung Alex
TR R
Director Director
EBE EFE
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group had fransactions and balances with related parties, some
of which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Besides, fransactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

(a) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions

32. HREE

R-E-_WMER T _=ZF+ - =+—
B AEETESEAKAGE-

EBEATRS
BHE_Z_HWNEFR-_ZT_=F+=H
“t+—HLEFE AEESHFHEALT
(B TMiRE LA AR BEEAT) E
TRGEBERER N KRR RE
MBARZEZRIEREE ARRFEEY -
I A 5 A B FE o

S

(o) BRZFHEMBTHREREMEEDFTH
BEN AEEEGHEEALTANUT

and balances with related parties: R MaE# -
2024 2023
—E-E —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THET
Ultimate holding company of a substantial  Interest income
shareholder of the Company
ARB—HBEZMEZEZERLE  FMEBKA 676 493
Loan receivables
M & K 7,092 8,858
Fellow subsidiary of a substantial Shortterm lease expenses
shareholder of the Company
ARB—HBEIZMEZRFZMBLART BHEERX 1,540 1,656

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
remuneration

The remuneration of directors, who are key management
personnel, are disclosed in Note 14(a) fo the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration of directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the

Group.

b) FEEEEREFMEE

BEX(ERTEEBERE) MR
B IR mR MR 14(a) 5 -

EEFhFMEZEe2RAITELEK
REANFE  HREABEEETNR
AEBEAMIERRTET -
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL ASSETS

On 8 October 2018, the Company issued initially 8% straight
bonds with a principal amount of HK$120,000,000 with
conditional conversion rights. The bonds originally mature two
years from 8 Ocfober 2018 at their principal amount, or subject
fo the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent in relation to the
conditional conversion rights, can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder's option at the fixed rate of HK$O. 1
per share. On 22 November 2018, the conditions precedent in
relation fo the conditional conversion rights of the bonds have been
fulfilled and the straight bonds were changed fo 6% convertible
loan notes embedded with the rights of early redemption by the
Company (the “2018 Convertible Bonds”). On 28 August 2020,
the Company entered info the supplemental agreement with the
subscriber that the Company and the subscriber conditionally
agreed fo extend the original maturity date of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds for two years to 10 October 2022 and all the conditions
precedent was fulfilled on @ October 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
exercised the redemption rights to redeem the 2018 Convertible

Bonds with principal amount of HK$13,200,000.

On 17 August 2022, the Company entered info the supplemental
agreement with the subscriber that the Company and the subscriber
conditionally agreed fo extend the maturity date of the remaining
2018 Convertible Bonds for two years to 10 October 2024. Al
the conditions precedent was fulfilled on 10 October 2022.

On 19 August 2024, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with the subscriber, pursuant to which the subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the Company has
conditionally agreed fo issue the bonds in an aggregate amount
of HK$72,300,000, which include (i) the 6% convertible
bonds in a principal amount of HK$16,800,000 (the 2024
Convertible Bonds"); and (i) the straight bonds in a principal
amount of HK$55,500,000 (the “2024 Straight Bonds”’). The
issue of the 2024 Convertible Bonds and 2024 Straight Bonds is
fo set off in full the outstanding amount of the principal under the

2018 Convertible Bonds.

On 8 October 2024, the Company and the subscriber entered
info the first supplemental agreement to extend the long stop date
and completion date of the subscription agreement.

On 15 November 2024, the Company and the subscriber
entered info the second supplemental agreement to (i) include
a new condition precedent to the subscription agreement; and
(i) further extend the long stop date and complefion date of the
subscription agreement.
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continved)

On 22 November 2024, the third supplemental agreement was
entered into by the parties to further extend the long stop date and
complefion datfe. In addition to the supplemental agreements, at
the request of the subscriber, the interest payment term of the 2024
Convertible Bonds and 2024 Straight Bonds amended from payable
annually fo semi-annually. Other than such amendments above and
the corresponding amendments fo the subscription agreement or
the instrument of the 2024 Convertible Bonds and 2024 Straight
Bonds in light of such changes, no other terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement or the instrument have been changed.

On 31 December 2024 (the “Change Date”), all the conditions
precedent sef out in the subscription agreement have been
satisfied and the Company issued (i) the 2024 Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$16,800,000 with conditional
conversion rights (the “Conversion Rights”) and (i) the 2024
Straight Bonds with a principal amount of HK$55,500,000.

The 2024 Convertible Bonds mature two years from the Change
Date at their principal amount, or subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions precedent in relation to the Conversion Rights,
can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the
holder's option at the fixed rate of HK$0.088 per share. The
2024 Convertible Bonds contfain the redemption rights that allow
the Company as the issuer to redeem the 2024 Convertible
Bonds at par together with accrued interests at any time during
the life of the 2024 Convertible Bonds. At initial recognition,
the redemption rights are not considered to be ‘closely related’
fo the liability component of the 2024 Convertible Bonds, and
the redemption right is therefore to be separately recognised as
derivative components at FVTPL from the liability component of the
2024 Convertible Bonds. The conversion option is recognised as
equity component of the 2024 Convertible Bonds.

The fair values of the liability component, derivative components
af FVTPL and the equity conversion component were determined
at the Change Date. The fair value of the liability component,
was calculated using o market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation of the derivative component. The valuation technique/
key inputs used in the model are disclosed in note 39.
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continved)

The 2018 Convertible Bonds recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are calculated as follows:

A=+—HItFE

34. MEBREREER

AR B B TR 00 3R FE w8
BRIEZTIIEAT A E -

LERMEE @)

—E-)\FA#H

HK$'000
TET
Equity component of 2018 Convertible Bonds ﬁ’\ —E-N\Ft—HAZt+=ZRHZ
on 22 November 2018 —N\FAmRESF 2 ERT D 19,835
Equity component of 2018 Convertible Bonds RZZEZ=%—H—H"
as at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 :giii‘f’ “A=+—HK
and 1 January 2024 —E-WNFE—F—HZ
—E-N\FABREF 2 ERHD 19,835
Extinguishment of the 2018 Convertible Bonds HECE - \FRBRES (19,835)
Equity component of 2018 Convertible Bonds RZZEZWF+=—A=+—HZ
as aft 31 December 2024 - N\FAREEF 2 ERHD =
liabilities component of 2018 Convertible Bonds R-ZT_=F—HF—HBZ
1 January 2023 —E-N\FAIRKRESBERBS 71,043
Inferest expense FERZ 5,534
Coupon interest Ey SN (4,338)
liabilities component of 2018 Convertible Bonds RZEZ_=F+=—A=+—HEK
at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 —E_WOE-A—HZ
—E-N\FAREBEEF2EERS 72,239
Inferest expense M ERX 4,399
Extinguishment of the 2018 Convertible Bonds FHE T N\FaBmRiES (72,300)
Coupon interest ZR (4,338)

Liabilities component of 2018 Convertible Bonds
aft 31 December 2024

RZFE-_WNF+_A=+—HZ
T N\FRREEFZEET D

The interest expense on the 2018 Convertible Bonds is
calculated at effective interest rate of 8% per annum to the liability

component.
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES AND DERIVATIVE 34. TRREFREZEBRITEESMEE (©)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continved)

The 2024 Convertible Bonds recognised in the consolidated REREHBRARERZ T ZHF A4
statement of financial position are calculated as follows: RIEHZTIIRAT A AEE -
HK$'000
TET
Equity component of 2024 Convertible Bonds REEER-_ZT_MNF+-_A=+—HZ
on the Change Date and as at 31 December 2024 “EUFER B EHF L Em D 17,500
Liabilities component on the Change Datfe and REEFBR-_Z_NE+_A=+—HZ
as af 31 December 2024 ﬁﬁ‘u‘g 14,300

Derivative financial assets at FVTPL on the Change Date MEEH R T _NWE+_—_HA=+—HZ

and as at 31 December 2024 BAVEFABRZITEERMEE 2,200
The interest expense on the 2024 Convertible Bonds is calculated “E_NFAMREFZNERARER
at effective interest rate of 15% per annum to the liability FHEFBD 2 THEEAEHD °
component.

BONDS PAYABLE 35. Y&
HK$'000
TET
As at 1 January 2024 R-ZFE-_NF—-A—H 5
Carrying amount upon issuance BT 2 REE 49,000
As at 31 December 2024 R-CEBE-_WmE+=-A=+—H 49,000
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35. BONDS PAYABLE (Continved)

Note:

On 31 December 2024, the Company issued the 2024 Straight Bonds

with aggregate principal amount of HK$55,500,000 and the details

were set out in note 34. The 2024 Straight Bonds bear interest from

31 December 2024 af the rate of 8% per annum. Inferest on the 2024

Straight Bonds are payable semi-annually in arrears. The 2024 Straight

Bonds have a maturity period of 2 years from the date of issue.

The 2024 Straight Bonds are subsequently measured af amortised cost

using effective interest rate of 15% per annum.

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
had non-cash additions to rightof-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$7,098,000 (2023: HK$6,978,000) and
HK$7,098,000 (2023: HK$6,978,000), respectively, in
respect of lease contracts for buildings.

(b) On 31 December 2024, the Company issue the bonds in
an aggregate amount of HK$72,300,000, which include
(i) the 2024 Convertible Bonds in a principal amount of
HK$16,800,000; and (i) the 2024 Straight Bonds in a
principal amount of HK$55,500,000. The issue of the
2024 Convertible Bonds and 2024 Straight Bonds is fo
set off in full the outstanding amount of the principal under
the 2018 Convertible Bonds. Accordingly, there was no
proceeds from the issue of the 2024 Convertible Bonds and
2024 Straight Bonds by the Company.

(c) The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continved)

36. REMEZH 2B BEHIKR &)

(c)  (Continved) (c) (&)
Inferest  Convertible Bonds Leases
payable  loan notes  Borrowings ~ payable liabilities Total
Gk 3
EfFE EXE &8 EfEF HEER @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHL T THL FHL THIL THL
Note 34]  [Note 26) (Note 16
(i34)  (Bz26) (B i16)
At 1 January 2023 W-Z-=%—H—-H 827 71,043 31,264 = 7,595 110,729
Change from cash flows: RengEy
New barrowing BT = - 1,000 - - 1,000
Inferest paid BEFFE (1,421 4,338 (1,380) = [722) 7,861
Repayment of borowings BERR - - (3,542 - - (3,542
Repayment of principal portion of EERERRZAEHA
lease liabilities - - - - 6,634 (6,634)
(1,421) 4,338 (3,922) = (7,356]  (17,037)
Other changes: Hin2E
New leases bk = = - - 6,978 6,978
Finance cosfs BEMKAK 1,357 5,534 1,380 - 722 8,993
1,357 5,534 1,380 = 7,700 15,971
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January  RZZZ=F+ZA=+—HK
2024 “2-NE-A—H 763 72,239 28,722 = 7939 109,663
Change from cash flows: RenERy:
New borrowing HER - - 0472 - - 9472
Inferest paid ERFIE (2,036) - (1,805 - (682) 4,523
Repayment of borrowings BEEF - - (5,622) - - (5,622)
Repayment of principal porfion of EERERGZ ASER
lease liabilities - - - - (7171 (7171)
(2,036) = 2,045 = (7,853 (7,844
Other changes: Eft 23 :
New leases FiLiikg 3 = - - 7,008 7,098
Finance costs BAMNA 1413 4399 1,805 = 682 8,299
Accrued inferest [Est 2 4,338 4,338) - - - -
Substantial modification of converiible ~ TRREREE 2 EAER]
loan notes (note 34) (Wi 34) = (58,000 = 49,000 - (9,000)
5,751 (57,939 1,805 49,000 7,780 6,397
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-_RE+-A=1+—H 4,478 14,300 32,572 49,000 7,866 108,216
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. EXEBER

The Group's objective of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability fo confinue as a going concern in order fo provide
refurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
mainfain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of nef debts, comprising
lease liabilities [Nofe 16), borrowings (Note 26), convertible loan
notes (Note 34), and bonds payable (Note 35) less cash and
cash equivalents (Note 24) and listed equity securities at FVTPL
(Note 20), and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capifal (Note 28) and reserves (Nofe 30).

The directors review the capifal structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, issue of new share as well as
new debts or redemption of existing debts.

The net debts fo equity rafio of the Group at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

AEEEREA BN ERARSSEER
FERLE RRRREHORE HEMF S
BRERALTRHERS YHEREZEAR
BB D B AR

AEEZEARBEAERFR(BREE
BE (HEE16) - BE (M FE26) ~ ATk
ERERE (HE34) REMEZS (FEE35)
BESLREEEY (HE24)  RBRAFE
At ARG 2 EMIRAES (K&E20) kAR
BHA AEHED (BREBA (HE28) &
it (P 3E30)) o

%%*HHMETEZK LR ERMmET 2 —
CEFEEEEARAREZHRER
*ﬂ‘%ﬁZHM REEEB EZZ AK%HE
B BIRAT BB~ BATHBA KBRS K
BORAER FOEEBZEARE -

RBEEHRRAEEZERFRAYEER
BRI

2024 2023

—E-ME —E_=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Debts BEi% 103,738 108,200

Cash and cash equivalents Re kR FEY (2,701) (14,421)
Financial assets at FVTPL EAEE u‘|‘)\?§ Zﬁrﬂﬁ?

— listed equity securities — ETRARE (35,015) (39,861)
Net debts (v peE- 59,022 54,618
(Capital deficiency)/Equity (BREAL),Hesm (18,380) 4,398
Net debts to equity ratio B FERASEEAELX N/A 38 B 1,241.88%
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk

and equity price risk.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management

policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable fo ifs trade
and other receivables, loan receivables and bank balances
with @ maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. The direcfors has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customers as well as perfaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
frade cusfomers and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased. Trade receivables are
due within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 3 months past due are
requested fo settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 30% (2023: 45%) and 79%
(2023: 80%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the Chinese health products business
segments.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

188

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures allowance for ECL on frade
receivables at an amount equal fo lifetime ECL.

For trade receivables that are creditimpaired, the Group
assessed lifefime ECL individually. At 31 December 2024,
the Group considered that trade receivables with gross
carrying amount of HK$616,000 (2023: HK$616,000)
were creditimpaired and allowance for ECL was fully
provided as af 31 December 2024.

For trade receivables that are not creditimpaired, the
Group assessed lifetime ECL using provision matrix. As the
Group's hisforical credit loss experience does not indicate
sigmﬂconﬂy different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the allowance for ECL based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases. At 31 December 2024, the Group
considered that trade receivables with gross carrying
amount of HK$4,064,000 (2023: HK$5,521,000) were
nof creditimpaired. No allowance for ECL was recognised
on these trade receivables as it is considered to be

insignificant at 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rafes are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for ECL on trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

FEUBRRME
“mE+= A=+ —ALFE

38. MHEAMEE#)

B R B B & ()
(o) EERE (&)
EWE 505 (E)

FRYEEEE ZEXABEEEHET
REEEBNT

Lifetime ECL
(not credit Lifetime ECL
impaired)  (creditimpaired) Total
AFRAEHRNe AIEAFHAZ
EHEEEE BHEEEE
(W EZERE) (ZERE) FEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
As at 1 January 2023, R=—ZTE-_=%—H—H8 -
31 December 2023, —E-_=F+-_H=1+—H -
1 January 2024 and —E-pFE—A—B~K
31 December 2024 —E-WOFE+=—A=+—H = 616 616
Other receivables H i fEY 0 TE
For other receivables, the directors make periodic individual MEMEWRFIEMS EFREBAE

assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical seftlement records, past experience and
supportive forward-looking information. Except for other
receivables with gross carrying amount of HK$ 1,906,000
which is considered to be creditimpaired, the directors
believe that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of the remaining balances of other receivables since
initial recognition and the 12m ECL on these balances is
considered to be insignificant at 31 December 2024 and
2023. For creditimpaired other receivables, accumulated
allowance for ECL of HK$ 1,906,000 was recognised at
31 December 2024 and 2023.

FREEREIERARIT —TNFH

BERE  UALBRKAETIHERZ
AT RE 14 & ) S0 H th B U SR IE 2 A] U [
M 1E H E BRE B FE A - BRI R B G T
FEREC-EALEA—BLTE
NTB T2 M ERGRIASN - EE A
F HtBEWHRIER TEHRZEER
% B H )20 7 52 LA 2R 37 4 88 K38 0

MiZEEBR ST _NER T =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

190

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables

The Group's money lending business only provides loan
financing. The Group's customers principally include
high net worth individuals, private companies, or listed
companies infroduced fo the staff and management of the
Group through business/personal networks or are referred
to the Group by its existing or former customers. All the
cusfomers of the Group's money lending business are third
parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The Group has developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business. The credit policy
and procedures manual specifies the Group's credit policy
tfowards its money lending business, the risk management
of the Group’s money lending business, and the credit
procedures for the Group's money lending business,
which include, among others, the loan application, credit
approval, loan closing, and monitoring ongoing credit risk
procedures. All new customers of the Group are subject fo
loan application procedures, which include customer due
diligence, reference check for credit and character, and
financial background check. The following internal control
procedures are put in place:

(i)  Credit risk assessment of customers

Prior fo grant of a loan to a customer, the Group
carries out credit risk assessment on the customer,
faking into account, among other things, the following
factors:

(1) background and character of the customer, if
the customer is an individual;

(2)  shareholders’ background, character, and
management capability, if the customer is a
company;

(3)  purpose of the loan;

(4)  source of repayment:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk assessment of customers (Continued)

(5)  value of collateral and guarantee(s), if any; and

(6) the financial strength of the customer,
shareholder(s), and guarantor(s).

For renewo|/exfension of any gromed \oons, the
Group carries out an update assessment on the
customer. In addition, the Group also considers the
cusfomer’s repayment behavior in the past.

Mechanism in determining loan ferms

The terms of a loan are normally determined following
arm’s length negotiation between the Group and the
customer, taking into account the factors set out in
[i) above. Normally, The Group fends to grant loans
under loan fenure of not more than five years, subject
to renewals by mutual consent. The Group would
normally test the customer’s willingness/reluctance to
provide collateral /guarantee to the loan, but will take
a pragmatic approach in order to maintain flexibility
and competitiveness as compared to banking
institutions who can normally offer better rates to the
customer if they can provide collateral /guarantee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

192

Loan receivables (Continued)

(i)

Approval process for granting loans, and related

checks and balances

The approval process for granting or renewing loans

is normally as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

the Group would request the customer to
complete the Lloan Application Form, the Know
Your Customer Form, and the Personal Financial
Information Form:

the Finance Department would seek to verify
the information provided by the customer,
collect supporting documents, and complete the
Lloan Recommendation Form on the customer’s
loan application and submit to the responsible
directors;

the responsible directors would review the
recommendation from the Finance Department,
spot check the supporting documents, and
indicate their approval (with or without
modification] or rejection of the loan
application;

the Finance Department will carry out
compliance procedures on all loan applications
approved by the responsible directors. Under
the credit policy and procedures manual, if the
grant of a loan does not constitute a nofifiable
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules
and the cusfomer is not a connected person, the
grant of the loan would only be required to be
approved by the responsible directors;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)
Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Approval process for granting loans, and related
checks and balances (Continued)

(5) if the grant of a loan constitutes a notifiable
and/or connected transaction under Chapter
14 or 14A of the listing Rules, the grant of the
loan would be required to be submitted fo the
board of directors for approval; and

(6)  the Finance Department would prepare the
loan documentation for signing, and the
announcement if the grant of a loan constitutes
a notifiable and/or connected transaction.

Monitoring loan repayment

The following procedures are in place for monitoring
loan repayment:

(1) monthly loan repayment and interest payment
schedules are prepared by the Finance
Department fo enable the responsible directors
fo monitor the fimely payment of each customer.
If a custfomer does not make loan repayment or
interest payment in accordance with the loan
agreement, the Finance Department would
promptly report to the responsible directors; and

(2)  the responsible directors conduct the following
loan monitoring procedures twice a year for
each loan, which include: a review of the pattern
of credit usage, contact with the customer,
review of periodic financial statements/position
of the customer, and monitor compliance with
existing covenants or other conditions of the

loan.

The conducting of semi-annual loan monitoring not
only enables the responsible directors to identify
problematic loans on a timely basis, but also serves
as an input for loan classification in calculating
allowance for ECL on loan receivables for financial
reporfing purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

194

Loan receivables (Continued)

v)

Actions for recovering delinquent loans

The actions taken for recovering dehnquenT loans

would normally include the following:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

examine and evaluate the delinquent loan
situation;

discuss with the customer of the delinquent loan;

discuss infernally to formulate an action plan of
recovery; and

recovery sfrategy can involve a wide range
of actions, which includes the revising of
the repayment terms, adding of collaterals/
guarantees, reaching of settlement, the
commencement of legal actions against the
customer, and/or enforcement on collaterals/
guarantees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The directors consider that the above internal control
procedures significantly reduce the Group's credit risk.

The board of direcfors sfrives to ensure that the credit policy
and procedures manual is appropriate fo the markef need
and the procedures as set ouf in the manual are strictly
followed and carried out by the staff. The board of directors
has appointed APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services Llimited, an independent firm, to conduct
independent review on adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and infernal control systems of the Group's
money lending business.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
a loan receivable as underperforming which indicates that
there is a significant increase in credit risk if (i) the repayment
of principal and/or interest has been overdue for more than
one month, and (i) the principal, accrued inferest, and/
or future inferest of the loan may not be fully secured by the
fair value of the collateral at its prevailing market price. The
Group considers a loan receivable as non-performing which
indicates that the loan receivable becomes credit impaired
it (i) the repayment of principal and/or interest has been
overdue for more than three months, and |ii) the collection
of principal and/or interest in full is improbable after taking
into account the fair values of the collateral at prevailing
market price.

The Group applies the general approach, which is often
referred to “three-stage model”, under HKFRS 9, in which
ECL of loan receivable are determined based on (i) the
changes in credit quality of the loan receivable since
initial recognition, and [ii) the estimated expectation of an
economic loss of the loan receivable under consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

196

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

Under the general approach, there are two measurement
bases for allowance for ECL:

(i) 12-months ECL, which are the ECL that result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date and are calculated as the
allowance for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by
the probability of default accumulated over the 12
months after the reporting date.

li)  lifetime ECL, which are the ECL that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a loan
receivable and are calculated as the allowance for
ECL on a loan receivable weighted by the probability
of default accumulated over the entire life of the loan
receivable.

The allowance for ECL on loan receivables are prepared
with the help of independent valuer to identify the exposure
of default which equals the sum of the principal and the
accrued/unpaid interest; credit rafing of the borrower; a
loss given default rate ("LGD") based on the credit rafing
and the fime horizon; a probability of default of each loan;
a K factor based on the current forward-looking economic
scenario; and a discount rate to the date of valuation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The allowance of ECL is arrived by:

Exposure at Default x LGD x Probability of Default x K Factor
x Discount Facfor

Under HKFRS 9, the allowance for ECL of the Group's loan

receivables are recognised in the following three stages:

()  Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that
have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, 12-month
ECL are recognised.

(i)  Stoge 2 (Underperforming) includes loan receivables
that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk
at the reporting date) but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables,
lifetime ECL are recognised.

i)  Stage 3 (Non-performing] includes loan receivables
that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, lifetime
ECL are recognised.

To ensure the adequacy of allowance for ECL on loan
receivables, the Group engaged APAC Appraisal and
Consulting limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers, to conduct a valuation on the allowance for ECL on
loan receivables recognised for each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 38. MBEAMER (&)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B REEE(E)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) fEEREE (&)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE K (42)
The following table provides information about the Group's TREHEBLIEER T _HFR
exposure fo credit risk and allowance for ECL on loan —Eo=F+-_A=+—HZEER
receivables at 31 December 2024 and 2023: S MR EREHE 2 BHEEEE
Bz B -
2024 —E_ME
Gross  Accumulated Net
carrying allowance carrying
ECL rate amount for ECL amounts
FEHREE FEHEEEE

BER REAE ZRIRE AR R E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit quality REEEEEDTE

classification FET TET FET
Performing BHIES 4% 8,932 (364) 8,568
Non-performing R 100% 299,723 (299,723) -
308,655 (300,087) 8,568

2023 —E-=%F
Gross  Accumulated Net
carrying allowance carrying
ECL rate amount for ECL amounts

FEHEE TEHEEEE

Biax FRE®EE Z2AEEB AREDFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit quality ABEEEESE

classification FET FATT FABT
Performing BHIESR 3% 17,592 (497) 17,095
Non-performing TR 100% 293,721 (2983,721) -
311,313 (294,218 17,095
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Movements in gross balance of loan receivables:

38.

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE-Z-_ME+-A=+—HLEE

MERREE #)
PR E 3 (4)
(o) fEEmE ()

EREF
R ER G RAEEE

(%)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—EER FREER F=EE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T TERT TExT
At 1 January 2024 R-ZT_M%F
—HA—H 17,592 - 293,721 311,313
Decrease in loan e E TR
receivables (2,371) - (287) (2,658)
Transfer to Stage 3 HBREE =R (6,289) = 6,289 —
At 31 December 2024 N F
+—A=+—H 8,932 = 299,723 308,655
Year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=5+-_A=+—HItFE
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—FEER F_REER F=PEER wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FET FABT
At 1 January 2023 RZE—=4F
—H—H 117,544 32,850 170,406 320,800
Increase/(decrease) B E K
in loan receivables #n G d) 4,226 - (13,713) (2,487)
Transfer to Stage 3 R EE =R (104,178) (32,850) 137,028 -
At 31 December 2023 RN =4
+-—RA=+—H 17,592 = 293,721 311,313
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—T

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

38. MHEBEE &)

Bt R B B 3 ()
(o) EEmRE (&)
FEWE K (4B)

Movements in allowance for ECL on loan receivables:

EURER 2 BHEEBRBEED

Year ended 31 December 2024

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+-HLFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PR E_REE E=MBER st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET FHET FHET
1 January 2024 N —pOE
—H—H 497 - 293,721 294,218
Transfer to Stage 3 EREE =R (107) - 107 -
Allowance for ECL (BE&E) BEER
[reversed)/recognised JEHEEEE
B (26) = 2,376 2,350
Unwinding of discount iR bR BH 3R - = 3,519 3,519
At 31 December 2024 R -4
+=—A=+—H 364 - 299,723 300,087
Year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_-F+-A=1T—"HLFE
Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEER FPEER FoFEER R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FHT
1 January 2023 RZEBE-_=%F
— 5,004 11,339 170,406 186,749
Transfer to Stage 3 WEEE=[EER (4,788) (11,339 16,127 -
Allowance for B R
ECL recognised TR EESBERE 281 - 107,188 107,469
At 31 December 2023 P
+—A=+—H 497 = 293,721 294,218
At 31 December 2024, the amounts of loan receivables RZZE_WMF+_A=+—H &K

(before accumulated allowance for ECL) from the largest
customer and the five largest customers in aggregate
amounted to HK$67,865,000 (2023: HK$67,865,000)
and HK$249,897,000 (2023: HK$249,897,000),
respectively. They accounted for 22% (2023: 22%) and
81% (2023: 80%) respectively of the loan receivables
(before accumulated allowance for ECL) as at 31 December

2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—ZT—_MNE&+_-_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 38. MIERAMBERE &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B REEE(E)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) fEEREE (&)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE L ()
Maijor terms of the outstanding loans as at 31 December RIE_MNFR-_ZBE_=F+_H
2024 and 2023 are as follows: =T —HZREEERZEZERN
T
Loan and Loan and
inferest interest
recelvobles Allowance for receivables
[before ECL affer
accumulated  Accumulated reversed/ accumuloted
allowance for  allowance for ~ [recognised) for allowance for Collateral
ECL) as ot ECLasat  the year ended ECL) os at and/or
31 December 1 Janvary 31 December Unwinding 31 December Interest rofe guaranfee
2024 2024 2024 of discount 024 per annum obtained  Maturing on Notes
BEC2-pE
3 TZA=t-H R=Z=m#E
tZA=+-H LEEY —B=1-H
ZEWEHR R-B-QRF 2RE/ ZEWEHR
FS(RAK  -A-Az (E®R) FIS (MR
BHEEER HHEEEE RUREEER Tﬁmrﬁﬁ?ﬁ ERBHEAR }
ZitRh) EHE ] g RIRAR ESE ) Rz R/AER THA ik

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
THR TER TER TR TR

Stage | F-ER
Cusiomer N ZEN 1,505 (37) 8 - 1,476 8% No 11 March 2027
T —Z-tE-At-R
Customer P ZFP 7427 (353) 18 = 7,092 Hong Kon No 21 March 2025
Prime Rate +3‘% & ZZZR%E=A=t-H
BrgRE
% +3%
8,932 (390) 26 - 8,568
Stage 3 £ZRR
Cusiomer A ZFA 60,828 (60,828) - - - 8% No 30 July 2022 I
_ & "2 -FtA=1H
Customer £ EZPE 37,713 (37,713) 3,519 3,519) - 13% Yes 7 November 2022 2
7 “B-_#1-AtA
Customer | ZFI 67,865 (67,865) - - - 12% Yes 3 October 2020 3
R ZEZ-ZETAZH
Customer | 2R 25,000 25,000) - - - 8% No 9 February 2023 4
& —E--%-BAA
Customer G EFG 9,072 9,072) - - - 10% No 11 May 2023 5
A “E-=fnfAt-H
Cusfomer F EPF 30914 (30,914) - - - 12% No 15 August 2023 6
& ZE-=F)\AtEA
Cusfomer K EZPRK 9752 9,752) - - - 8% No 3June 2023 7
& — 7 — ﬁ/\ H EI
Cusfomer | EFL 6,002 (107) (5,895 - - 13% No 17 March 2024 8
A “EI-mESAT4A
Customer M ZEM 52,577 (52,577) - - - 9% No 5 December 2023 9
& ZZ-=F+-A%R
299,723 (293,828 2,376 (3,519) -
308,655 [294,218) (2,350) 3,519) 8,568
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

202

Loan receivables (Continued)

Note:

(1)

(2)

Customer A with outstanding principal amount of HK$60
million has failed fo pay the accrued interests on the loan
since January 2022. The Group has been engaged in
ongoing negotiation with him on repayment arrangements
with the view fo entering into a binding seflement agreement.
In March 2023, the Group instructed its legal adviser to
send a demand letter to him demanding his immediate
sefflement. In July 2023, the Group received a reply from
him proposing to repay the outstanding principal and the
accrued interest of the loan by insfallments. Since December
2023 up to now, the Group had been negotiating the terms
of the settlement proposal with Customer A, but has vyet to
finalise the terms.

Customer E with outstanding principal amount of HK$35
million has failed fo seftle outstanding interest for more than
a year. Customer E has negotiated settlement plan with
the Group including the giving of a corporate guarantee
provided by a PRC company fo secure the borrower's loan
obligafions in January 2022. The Group has commenced
arbitration against the guarantor in the PRC in November
2022. Under the guidance of the arbitration court, a
mediafion agreement was signed in May 2023. In August
2023, Cusfomer E paid HK$4 million to the Group to settle
part of the unpaid interest on the loan. On 30 November
2023, the Group commenced legal proceedings against
Customer E in Hong Kong. Customer E has put her
residential property and two car parking spaces in Hong
Kong on the market for sale, and has made arrangements
fo enable the Group to share the disposal proceeds with the
loan lenders. In September 2024, the residential property
and the two car parking spaces were sold, and the Group
received the net proceeds of HK$3.5 million.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

38. MEEMER (&)
B RLBR E 3E (4)
EEmR ()

(a)

&Y

EHX (&)

R

(1)

(2)

HEAREERSEA~NTEBIT
B —F—AREREITZ
EXRESFE AEEERFE
zmﬁﬂ%gkﬂ%ﬁ LABRET 32
BENRINBEERZE - R2T=_=
F=A8" $%lhrﬁiéﬁﬁﬁ
HENERE BEREZANEER
18 o F:gf:iﬁﬂ AL B 5
EEEE EZoHEEERZE
BEAEREFMNE - BT ==
FHZARES AEE—HHEHE
FPAEBBERTR G  HERR

R
ARE E R o

EFEREEACHEA=-THEE
B HARBEAEN REEZF BB
B—F - RFEER_Z-_—_%—A#
BAEEEREENE  BiEH—
KPR RREQAER  URE
EBERANEREF - AEER -Z

—ZF+—RAERREERARE
& EHEERESIT AR
—E_=FRARARRGE R
T =FN\A BFERAAKEX
NOBEESBT  £NF2ANERK
FE o quf:¢+ A=+A8"

AEBETBHEFERBAENF
A BRFEEHEMREBNEED
¥LMEFEBEAETS ERE I
BEEERHFEAEBEREAEERA
PEHERZ - KT _NFHIA -

BEEHEFEEWERMEFEEAL A
SEESHBRBEFE-"ELTE
BT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(3)

(4)

(3)

In Ocfober 2020, Customer | failed to repay a loan with
outstanding principal amounts of HK$64 million together
with the accrued interest thereon according to the loan
agreement. The loan was guaranteed by a PRC company
(the "PRC Guarantor’) and a BVI company, and the
Group obtained a charge over the shares of a Hong Kong
company which indirectly held the PRC Guarantor. The
Group has commenced legal proceedings against Customer
| and the guarantors fo recover the outstanding principal and
interests thereon. The first court hearing was held on 12 May
2022 and the court handed down the judgment in favour of
the Group on 31 May 2022. On 7 July 2022, Customer
| lodged an appeal against the judgment. The appeal was
withdrawn by Customer | on 19 September 2023. The
judgement was effective on 7 January 2024. The Group
was approached by an independent third party purchaser
proposing fo acquire the loan receivable due from Cusfomer
| and the accrued and unpaid interest thereon by transferring
the ownership of certain properties located in Guangzhou,
Mainland China, to the Group. The Group is currently
discussing the terms and conditions of such proposal with the
purchaser.

Customer | failed to setile the outstanding principal and
accrued interest in February 2023. Customer | has paid
HK$7 .4 million in 2023. The Group is frying fo negotiate a
sefflement arrangement with Customer J.

Customer G failed to seftle the outstanding principal
and accrued interest since May 2023. In August 2023,
Customer G repaid HK$3 million. The Group has been in
negotiation with Customer G on the repayment of the loan
receivables with a view fo entering info a binding sefflement
agreement.

38. MHEAMEE#)

B mEE R (#)

(o) fEEER ()
FERE S (48)
His : (#)

8) R=ZZ=-_ZF+H BFIXKER
BERBEENAEBELASHEA
ANTUEEBTZERKREFE -
ZEXA—HEHPREAF ([FREER
ADER—BEBREZHESARIER
MAEBREREZAERHERA
22— EEBRARMD 2L - A&
EEUEEFIRERARBREZF
A ANBHEREERASRFE -
E—REERAR=-Z__FA A
+—H8T ZERER-_ZT_=
AA=+—BEHAEEBFHH
ReRZZBE-__F+A+H BFEI
HZHREEEF R_T_=F
NATHLBEFEE L& #RP
—EME—ALBRAEM - KAEE
E—EBIFE=-HEHER EH
FRMAEEEES T EMCKEM
R EREAMEAREBRPIE R
Rl kBB R E BT RMAFE - &
SEREHRZEFTAIZEREZIF
TR ANEAE ©
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

204

Loan receivables (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(6)

(7)

(8)

()

(10)

Customer F failed tfo seftle the outstanding principal and
accrued inferest since August 2023. In November 2023,
Customer F repaid HK$ 1.7 million. The Group has been in
negotiation with Customer F on the repayment of the loan
receivables with a view fo entering into a binding sefflement
agreement.

Customer K failed to sefile the outstanding principal and
accrued interest since June 2023. In December 2023,
Customer K repaid HK$0.2 million. The Group has been in
negotiation with Customer K on the repayment of the loan
receivables with a view fo enfering info a binding sefflement
agreement.

Customer L failed fo setile the outstanding principal and
accrued interest fo the Group since March 2024. The
Group and Cusfomer L has entered into a deed of setlement
in May 2024, of which Customer L will settle the outstanding
loan receivables by instalments in 5 years commencing from
1 July 2024. The first instalment of HK$0.6 million was
received in July 2024. The loan receivable from Cusfomer
L was transferred from Stage 1 (Performing) to Stage 3
(Non-performing) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Customer M failed to settle the outstanding principal and
accrued interest since December 2023. The Group has
been in negofiation with Customer M on the repayment of
the loan receivables with a view fo entering info a binding
seflement agreement.

As at 31 December 2024, gross carrying amount
and accumulated ECL of loan receivables classified
as Stage 3 (Non-performing) (included default interest)
amounted to approximately HK$368,756,000 (2023:
HK$335,731,000) and HK$368,756,000 (2023:
HK$335,731,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 38. MEEAMERE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B REEE(E)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) EEERR(E)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE L ()
loon and loan and
inferest inferest
receivables Allowance for receivables
(oefore ECL (after
accumuloted Accumulated reversed/ accumuloted
dlowancefor  allowance for [recognised|for  allowance for Collateral
ECl) os ot EClasat  the year ended ECl) as ot ond/or
31 December 1 Jonua 31 December 31 December Inferest rate guarantee
2023 202 2023 2023 per annum oblained  Maturing on Notes
‘ HE 2 =f
ﬁé:?:zﬁ tZR=+-B WZZ-=f
T-A=T-B 587z +-A=t-H
JENERR  RIZ==F BBE/ ZENEAR
8 (R —A-A¢ (C#R) B (&
i‘ﬁ% EEE EHEEER RHREER BELEER EREHAR B
ZirHE) ESE B ZiriE) % R/BER EHA iz
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL FHL FHL
Stage | £-kR
Customer L ZEL 6,289 88) (19) 6,182 13% No 17 March 2024
& —Z-mEZAttA
Cusfomer N ZEN 2,092 43) 6 2,055 8% No 11 March 2027
f ZEtE-A1-H
Customer O ZFO = (85) 85 = 8% No 10 Augus t 2023
t “E--£)\AfH
Customer P REP 9,211 = (353) 8,858 Hong Kong No 21 N\G ich 2024
Prime Rate +3% & ZE-RmE=A-f-H
AERER
Fil= 3%
17,592 (216) (281) 17,005
Stage 3 £ER
Cusfomer A ZEA 60,828 60,828) - - 8% No 30 July 2022 |
& —Z__HtR=tH
Customer £ REE 37713 [41,713) 4,000 - 13% Yes 7 November 2022 2
® ZB-ZE+-AtH
Customer | ZF| 67,865 (67,865) - - 12% Yes 3 Oc ober 2020 3
® ZZC-TETRZA
Customer | =P 25,000 3,577) (21,429) - 8% No 9 February 2023 4
& :S:ﬁ AnA
Customer G ZFG 0,072 (221) 8,851 = 10% No 11 May 2023 5
& ZZZ=FRA+-A
Customer F RFF 30,914 (11,339) [19,575) = 12% No 15 August 2023 6
f ZE_=F\AtEAH
Cusfomer K REK 9,752 (169) (9,583 = 8% No 3 June 2023 7
& ZZ-=%5A=H
Cusfomer M REM 52,577 (821) (51.756) = 9% No 5 December 2023 8
& —E-=F{-f:A
03721 (186533 [107,188) -
311,313 (186,749) (107, 469) 17,005
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

(b)

206

Credit risk (Continued)
Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are high-
credit-quality banks and 12m ECL on bank balances
is considered to be insignificant, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the shortterm
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed cerfain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group maintains
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available credit facilities. The directors aim fo maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines available.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using confractual rafes) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, other
loan with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
counterparty choosing fo exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

38. MHEAMEE#)

B R B B & ()
(b) MEELEE (&)

Total Within -~ More than ~ More than
Weighted contractual 1year  1yearbut 2 years but
average Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than
inferest rate amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
BRKRFH

niE RERE -fr  BB-F BEWF
FHME REE AR SEEXR EIRWE EOREF
2024 k- S 1E:2 %  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
% TER TET TET TET THET

Trade and other payables and & & 5 R 5% H i fE T
accrued charges RENREFER - 33,490 33,490 33,490 = =
ease liabilifies HERE 10 7,866 8,526 5,734 2,462 330
Borrowings BE 10 32,572 35,829 35,829 - -
Convertible loan nofes HRRERZE 15 14,300 18,816 1,011 17,805 =
Bonds payable R EH 15 49,000 64,380 4,452 59,928 -
137,228 161,041 80,516 80,195 330
Tofal Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
Weighted confractual Tyear  Tyearbut 2 years but
average Camrying  undiscounted oron less than less than
interest rafe amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years

BRRFH

fntE RERE —FR  BBE-F BERF
TIH= REE fE  RERX BLRME BIRLE
2023 “Z-=F % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAT TET TET TAT TR

Trode and other payables and 18 5 B 7% FL 0 FE £
accrued charges FENLEER - 33,427 33,427 33,427 - -
lease liabilifies HEERE 9 7,939 8,503 6,262 2,077 164
Borrowings BE 10 28,722 28,722 28,722 - -
Convertible loan notes RRERZE 8 72,239 76,638 76,638 - -
142,327 147,290 145,049 2,077 164
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

208

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Other loan with a repayable on demand clause s included
in the “within 1 year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 December 2024, the aggregate
undiscounted cash flows of other loan amounted to
HK$15,344,000 (2023: HK$14,109,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial posmon, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the counterparty will exercise
its discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that other loan will be repaid after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dafes sef out in the loan agreement, defails of
which are set out in the table below:

“EE+-—A=1+—HLFE

38. MHEBEE &)

Bt R B B 3 ()
(b) HEIEZEE ()

BERBREEGRROE M EFKE

AL#EHESNA[—FRNKES
KN - RZBE_WFF+—A=+—
B EMEFORNTRESRESH
A—THEHE=tTHNENTBET(ZZ
—=F: —FHEAE—+tEATET)
KERBAEENMEAKR  EFERAE
HFEAHTEEREEZRENEER
MATREET R - EERE HER
RS R B IR B R s S 5 B BE
FBFBHEE  HBEHINNTX:

Maturity analysis — Borrowing with a repayable on ABMBELNT - REREERBESA
demand clause based on scheduled repayments RERERGROEE

Tofal More than ~ More than

contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than ~ but less than

Inferest rafe amount  cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

BRARH -fR  BE-F BEWMF

GRS REE RERELE ABER EIRWE BIREE

2024 —E-NE %  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

% TR TR TR TR TR

Other loan Hit &K 12 13,700 15,344 15,344 - -

Tofcl More than ~ More than

confraciual Within 1 year but 2 years

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than ~ but less than

Interest rate amount  cashflow  on demand 2 years 5 years

ANANE —FR  BE-F HBERF

iR REE RERELRE IEEX EINME BIREEF

2023 S 2 % HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% FET TET TET TET FEL

Other loan A& 10 13,614 14,100 14,109 = =
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed fo fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities, fixed-rate borrowings, bonds
payable and liability component of convertible loan nofes.
The Group is also exposed fo cash flow interest rate risk in
relation fo variable rates bank balances and borrowing.
The Group's cash flow interest rafe risk is concentrated on
fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate arising from its HK$
denominated borrowing.

The Group currently does not have an inferest rate hedging
policy. It manages ifs interest rate risk by closely monitoring
the interest rate movements and where considered
appropriate using financial instruments to hedge the interest
rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been defermined based
on the exposure fo inferest rates af the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease in variablerate borrowing represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded from
sensifivity analysis as the management considers that the
exposure of cash flow inferest rate risk arising from variable-
rate bank balances is insignificant.

At 31 December 2024, if inferest rafes of the borrowing
had been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group's loss for the year
ended 31 December 2024 would have increased/
decreased by HK$69,000 (2023 : HK$57,000).
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(d)

210

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
majority of the transactions being seftled in HK$, United
States dollars ("USD") and Renminbi ("RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, which are denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currency of the Group.

The following table details the Group's exposure af the end
of reporting period to currency risk arising from forecast
fransactions or recognised assefs or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
fo which they relate:

38. MEEMER (&)
B RLBR E 3E (4)

(d)

S B J1 it

AEERBERTEEE  KNBOR
GBI ETL(ET) AR
TAR®]) &HE - HMER KB ARK
BERXS CDHIABEERAE HMNU
WHAEEDEEE 2 BHHE -

TRAAEER RS HRK A B
RGHAEBERZEEE AN
E¥IEZEHREERRBEZIME
[\

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=4F
RMB Us$ RMB Us$
AR ESH AR ETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T THT T T T T
Assets BE 119 576 Q3 559
Liabilities =K - - - -
119 576 Q3 559

The Company is mainly exposed to the foreign exchange
risk of RMB against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD,
the Company does not expect any significant movement
in HK$,/USD exchange rate and this is excluded from the
sensifivity analysis below. Management will monitor foreign
exchange exposure to mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The Company currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The Company will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(d)

(e)

Foreign exchange risk (Confinued)

As at 31 December 2024, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against RMB, while all other variables
are held constant, the Group's loss for the year ended 31

December 2024 would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$6,000 (2023: HK$5,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been defermined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been applied to each of
the group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
items in existence at that date, and that all other variables,
remain consfant.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed fo equity price risk arising from listed
equity securities in Hong Kong classified as financial assets
af FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair valve through profit or loss

The Group manages ifts equity price risk by regularly
moniforing equity portfolio fo address any portfolio issues
promptly and spreading price risk exposure by investing a
number of listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure fo equity price risk at the reporting date. As
at 31 December 2024, if the prices of the listed equity
securities in Hong Kong with quoted market price held by
the Group had been 15% (2023: 15%) higher/lower, with
all other variables remain constant, the Group's loss for the
year ended 31 December 2024 would have decreased/
increased by HK$5,252,000 (2023: HK$5,979,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 30 BEREs e ERMEERERHEARS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BME
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial AEBR_Z_NER-_ZT_=F+_A
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are =T HBRAZEHEEREHBEZR
categorised as follows: HESBENT :
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TABT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost B AT EC S REE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREMESEED) 25,767 41,917
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABEZEMEE 37,791 40,420
63,558 82,337
Financial liabilities SEAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost SR AT 22 S mEE 137,228 142,327
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FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continved)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following fable provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried af fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly |i.e.
derived from prices); and

level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market dafa (unobservable inputs).

0. REFE S 2EMEERERMEE

BE (@)

FEEBEAVELEMFEZERHT

AN¥E

TREIURFEIEzEBTRAEAF

BERZ M

F—4: HREEXABERNEBRMETZ

WE CREHE) ¢

F_H BRE-LMEREREINREER
BEANEE (AER) KEE (A
REER)BEMSIEE &

F=R: REERBBZTABEMEH
B(NABREE) 28E -

2024
—E-NE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& BFZR B=& et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEEFABRZ

SEEE
— listed equity securities — FARAFF 35,015 = = 35,015
— unlisted equity securities — FLTIRAEFH - - 576 576
Derivative financial assets PTESREE - — 2,200 2,200
35,015 - 2,776 37,791
2023
B =

level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
F—R E_R F=M et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHT THT FHT

Financial assets at FVTPL WMAFEFAERZ

SEEE
— listed equity securities — ERAE S 39,861 = = 39,801
— unlisted equity securifies — FLEIRAES = = 559 559
39,861 . 550 40,420
PESEREERERAT —ToNER 213
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

0. REABIS 2EMEEREMEE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continved)

In estimating the fair value of financial instruments, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available. Where
level 1 inpufs are nof available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Group work closely
with the independent qualified valuers fo establish the appropriate
valuation fechniques and inputs.

Fair values of listed equity securities have been determined by
reference fo their quoted market closing prices at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined based on
valuation using assetbased approach. Fair value of individual
business assets less liabilities of the investment company was
considered fo arrive the fair value of the Group's equity inferests in
the investee company. The significant input is the nef asset value of
the investee company. The net asset value is positively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity securities.

Fair value of derivative financial assets was determined using binomial
option pricing model, with certain parameter included expected
volafility, and subsequently measured af fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

The following fable presents the changes in fair value of financial
assefs which are classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

BE (@)

FEEBRAVEKENTEZEMT
AERFEGE)

ERFeRmIAZATER  AEEES
ERTSAERBE - WEXNEE R
BB AEEEeZRBELAERMGEME
TEE AEERBYAERGEMER
BfF - WREEEE 2 EXRMREAE -

EHRABH 2R FEIZEERREN
RETRETEERE

FLEMEARFEZ 2D FETIANEERER
ZEEEREE - Erf RRE QB Z R
BEERABZ R FENSEARNEENHE
RERARBZAFE BREAESK
RERBIZEEFRE BEFEHEF LT
BAE S Z X FEFEKIEL

FTESMEEZ A TFETRA - BRER
ETERAEE AFETEHREEN
RBE HAEBEATEHE ATESS
RRZE R -

TREISAAATFHERE=RZLR
AEDTERD

Derivative Financial assets

financial assets at FVTPL Total
BEAYE
PTHE sFAEHEZ
SREE TREE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET
At 1 January 2023 RZEBEZ=F—H—H = 1,143 1,143
Fair value loss on financial assets =2 AFET AEZRZ
at FVTPL SREEZAFEEE i (584) (584)
At 31 December 2023 and R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—8BxX
1 January 2024 —T_MF—-H—H = 559 559
Recognition of derivative WRITETRIE E
financial assets 2,200 - 2,200
Fair value gain on BRATEFABRZEREELZ
financial assefs at FVTPL NEE R = - 17 17
At 31 December 2024 RZE_WMF+=-_A=+—H 2,200 576 2,776
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continved)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continved)

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was
no transfer between level 1 and 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried
af amortised cost were not materially different from their fair values

at 31 December 2024.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried
at amortised cost were not materially different from their fair values
at 31 December 2023, except for the convertible loan notes,
which had a carrying amount and fair value of HK$72,239,000
and HK$70,700,000 at 31 December 2023 respectively.

The fair value measurement of the convertible loan notes was
classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value of the convertible loan notes was determined based on a
discounted cash flow and binomial option price model.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to be
consisfent with the current year's presentation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZT_MF+_A=+—HILFE

41.

42.

216

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 March 2025, Good Cheer Global Limited, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, ("Good Cheer
Clobal”), as lender, entered info the a supplemental agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”) with Eternity Investment Limited
(“Eternity”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, as
borrower, fo extend the repayment date of the revolving loan
facilities up to HK$Q million granted under the loan agreement
enfered by Good Cheer Global and Eternity on 22 March 2023
(amended and supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 26 February 2024) (the “loan Agreement”), for twelve (12)
months from 21 March 2025 to 21 March 2026 (the"Extension”).
Saved as the Extension, the principal ferms and conditions of the
Lloan Agreement remain in full force and effect.

Eternity is a substantial shareholder of the Company, which is
a connected person of the Company as defined under Listing
Rules. The provision of financial assistance upon signing the
Supplemental Agreement consfitutes a connected transaction and
a discloseable transaction under the Listing Rules. Details of the
provision of financial assistance to a substantial shareholder of
the Company were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 22 March 2023, 26 February 2024 and 21 March
2025.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material
events after the reporting period and up to the date of approval of
the consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2025.
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